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) HERERER 2309,104,0008 8% {7 (E 5 100,000,0008% A H #2515 @SR HEEE )+ &2

i)  FIChina Gas Group Limited ([CGGLJ) & % # B 2494,478,0000% A% 17 - CGGLHAJoint Coast Aliance Market Development
Limited ([ Joint Coast ) B 50% 25 * MJoint Coastm B E2EHAE + K&

i) ARIBEBHFRIEERGIE317(1) @)K - 2% 4£EBECGGLEFortune Max Holdings Limited ([Fortune Max]) 8T 2 —B#p R
207,968,000/ HHE A - K&

iv)  Joint Coasti AIRCGCLE =B 2 & $£702,446,0000 i R B s ©

CGGLIR AR & $£702,446, 0008 A& (D R #E B iz « B35 ¢

)  FCGGLEZMHE 2494,478,0000& /1 :

i) REEAEREEEGE317(1)@)E - CGGLABREFortune Max & 2l 5c A 5137 2 — B i##1 207,968,000% B0 h # A 25

R s S A (TEF 524 1) ~ First Level Holdings Limited ([ First Level]) ~ Fortune Oil PLC & Fortune Max¥3 & 1E& B B & #£702,446,000

MRRR D R A R - BE

) FCGGLE =M A 2494,478,00088 8% ° CGGLAFortune Oil PRC Holdings Limited ([Fortune Ol PRC ) #EA50%# % © Fortune

Oil PRCHFortune Oil PLCZ2E&#A ° Fortune Oil PLCHIFirst Level#B36.51%#25 » MFirst Level I8 5t A B 09%#E2S 1R
BESH L EIEEGIZES17(1)@1F * Fortune MaxiBE B ECGGL KR Bl £ 5T 2 — B iR 1R 494,478, 0008 IR P HE B - K

i) Fortune Max®E z=#E B 2 207,968,0000& A& 1% ° Fortune MaxEB EBSLAE R EHER -
b I E B AR A 7)E 1ERBeiing Enterprises Group (BVI) Company Limited B 2 2 964,902,132 I Fh A 1S ©

Chey Taewon%t 4 ([Cheyst4E 1) »~ SK G&C Co., Ltd([SK C&CJ) * SK Holdings Co., Ltd. ([ SK Holdings]) % SK E&S Co., Ltd. ([SK
E&S)HE e & ££687,603,0000 R ir R A ER - B1F ¢

) FASK E&SE RS 2 614,595,00008HE 15 *SK E&SHISK Holdings A 94.13%#2§ SK HoldingsE SK C&CHEA 36.92% 25 -
MSK C&CHChey T £ 40% - &

i) FPusan City Gas Co., Ltd$5 2 73,008,000/% %15 ° Pusan City Gas Co., LidFSK E&SH#H B 43.09% % o
BRBOLER T —=F=A=1+—H 2B %174,569,725098 AT & °

3361&HE TR FNECMATRE - BEERE
AL (RAREFHESTRABRINRARBRDIAEBRO P HEARENER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYKBERES

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Gas Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 3 to 153, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2013, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

HPERRERERAAIIMCEKR
(REFRZZMA T2 BRAA)

AZHEITE TR EREIE13EMBTEMER
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EERAREUMBBRRARENEE

ERRESAARARBEEEHNAGHMANEA
MBEREENRBEARGINRERCRUER
MAFIMNEAFBRE - TREEEZREL
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RIEKFE S sR B E R A SH AR AL

BB R E

AT EEEREAITHEZH G M HERREL
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYKBERES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2013, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

June 26, 2013

2 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BI¥ASFIZ AR A 7

ERERWITRFAERBBEAMBHREMEE
BREBRENNEZRE - MEENEFIURR
ZEREM R HI B - B R RTA B RO RKEE Sk B BR T 8 AR
EMBRRFEERERPANER - £FEZXF
RE - ZBEE BEZARREAEEM A FIIH
HER A TSR A RS - URFHEENE
ZiEF - BAF SRR AEZEFINREERE
R BRNEBRABEEMRANGITRRNAE
HRAEREFHEFT AR - UL ERA M
B MEBRSIHA N

RIIRR AIMEBRREEZRMNEHEELAR
TTHEZE RIRHEER

=z
=

KITRE  HAVBBRROEREBZEMBREE
AIEERATFRREEEN_—"F—=F=A=1
—HZHBRARESEEEZ B LFE 25
Reng IORREBRARNKIZEERELZE
% -

EE e MERS AT
R G
e

—E—=ZFXAZ=+RH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FmEETEBRARR

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B ZE —E—=F=HA=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-= —F—=
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T FH&T FHET
Revenue WA 7 21,250,266 18,933,565
Cost of sales SHE AR (16,876,300) (15,327,831)
Gross profit EF 4,373,966 3,605,734
Other income HbUg A 9 459,525 384,018
Other gains and losses E b iz K &8 10 226,936 132,427
Selling and distribution costs SHE K SHAK AR (849,816) (733,202)
Administrative expenses THRFAX (1,315,287) (938,922)
Finance costs % E R M (726,989) (916,045)
Share of results of associates JE(REtE Nl 2 ¥4 21 339,614 86,408
Profit before taxation B 5 A g A 2,507,949 1,620,418
Taxation TIE 12 (466,631) (478,502)
Profit for the year FEHF 13 2,041,318 1,141,916
Other comprehensive income HEm2mBA
Increase in fair value on AIHEERENTE
available-for-sale 3
investments 1,039 (6,854)
Exchange differences arising MEEA IENERE
on translation 193,569 136,640
Other comprehensive income FEHEMEAEUIA
for the year 194,608 129,786
Total comprehensive income FE2ERALRE
for the year 2,235,926 1,271,702
Profit for the year attributable to: FERAGES
Owners of the Company YiN/NEIE YN 1,764,264 953,926
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 277,054 187,990
2,041,318 1,141,916
Total comprehensive income 2EWVABEEES
attributable to:
Owners of the Company YiN/NEIE YN 1,922,775 1,058,328
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 313,151 213,374
2,235,926 1,271,702
Earnings per share FHEZF 17
Basic AR HK39.37 cents #&fll HK21.76 cents {ll
Diluted e HK36.86 cents #&fll HK20.55 cents (Il

B #% ¥R FINANCIAL REPORT 2013 3



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR R

At March 31, 2013 R=F—=F=H=1+—H

3.31.2013 3.31.2012 4.1.2011
—E—= —ET—=F —T—F
=HA=+—H =A=+—H rmA—8
Notes HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
5T FET FET FET
(restated) (restated)
(&7)) ==2))
Non-current assets IERBEE
Investment properties "EME 18 244,967 450,600 408,135
Property, plant and equipment E YN ] 19 17,357,949 14,423,598 13,799,669
Prepaid lease payments TEfSHEERIA 20 1,132,135 1,093,945 1,128,929
Investments in associates REE RE 218 E 21 2,652,109 2,286,243 1,009,505
Available-for-sale investments A E 2 RE 23 78,983 76,658 85,884
Goodwill GRS 24 1,209,279 1,038,591 1,535,326
Other intangible assets EfEpEE 25 1,267,221 1,281,448 1,444,208
Deposit for acquisition of WHEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment B tien 165,305 202,919 600,040
Amount due from an associate FEURES: & N R FIE 26 187,462 141,932 163,166
Deferred tax assets BEERTBEE 39 97,236 94,065 91,466
Deposit for acquisition of an BB N R 2 S
associate - - 133,627
24,392,646 21,089,999 20,399,955
Current assets mEEE
Inventories rE 27 1,122,838 1,743,372 1,076,525
Amounts due from customers BREFzAHTIE
for contract work AR 28 305,658 173,519 166,884
Trade and other receivables EoRBERREEM 29 4,019,190 3,169,928 2,388,040
fEURBRIE
Amounts due from associates FEURES: & N B FIE 26 185,605 124,792 92,115
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERE 20 34,586 33,656 34,283
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBERE 30 11,110 10,893 11,948
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITIFR 31 650,711 710,459 1,647,444
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIIRE 31 4,298,095 4,817,767 5,081,589
10,627,793 10,784,386 10,498,828
Assets classified as held for sale DEABERENEE 32 347,121 - -
10,974,914 10,784,386 10,498,828
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables ESEMEREHEM 33 5,543,696 4,737,019 4,580,506
FEfTERIB
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 34 = - 32,122
Amounts due to customers for ARESSPASES
contract work Ti258 28 310,280 244,667 285,728
Taxation I8 179,730 189,339 149,592
Amounts due to associates JETHE 2 N R FRTE 26 2,907 2,302 13,254
Amount due to a non-controlling FEAT BT /B A 7
interest of a subsidiary FEIT i 2 SR TE 35 4,366 5,165 5,042
Bank and other borrowings — HITREMEE —
due within one year R—FRNEIH 36 9,082,138 8,963,385 7,312,837
15,123,117 14,141,877 12,379,081
Net current liabilities mEBEFE (4,148,203) (3,357,491) (1,880,253)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEBAE 20,244,443 17,732,508 18,519,702

4 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED # BIfAE IR BBR A F)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR R

At March 31, 2013 R=F—=F=H=1+—H

3.31.2013 3.31.2012 4.1.2011
—_Eg—= —E—-F —E——4%F
=HBA=+—H —A=1+—H mA—A
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FET FHET FHET
(restated) (restated)
(E71) (E31)
Equity P
Share capital f& 7 37 45,697 43,831 43,831
Reserves & 11,438,943 9,698,382 8,643,373
Equity attributable to owners SFEANAIEAA
of the Company ZHES 11,484,640 9,742,213 8,687,204
Non-controlling interests FEFER I = 1,352,090 1,066,777 1,675,102
Total equity =B 12,836,730 10,798,990 10,262,306
Non-current liabilities EMBEE
Bank and other borrowings — RITREMEE
due after one year R—F&EIH 36 6,862,710 6,408,777 7,720,327
Deferred taxation EERIR 39 545,003 526,741 537,069
7,407,713 6,933,518 8,257,396
20,244,443 17,732,508 18,519,702

The consolidated financial statements on pages 3 to 1563 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 26, 2013 and
are signed on its behalf by:

LIU Ming Hui

218518 RKE
Executive Chairman

HITERE Bl FHE A TE

FOREICBAZKEAMBHRACHETEN _-F
—=FERNAZTABHERRERTEM TIES

HEEE

LEUNG Wing Cheong, Eric

Deputy Managing Director

Bt # 3R & FINANCIAL REPORT 2013 5



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEZEBR

For the year ended March 31, 2013 X —E—=F=/A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERDEEL
Employee
share-based Investment  Properties Non-
Share  Share compensation Translation revaluation revaluation ~ Specill  Capital  Statutory Accumulated controlling
capital premium  reserve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reserve  reseve  funds  profits Total  interests Total
EERf b I
Re  RGEE GHEE EXRE  EMER EGEE NRRE  EABR  tEEE M gt FERER it
HGO00  HKBOD  HKS000  HKBOO0  HKBOOD  HKS000  HKBOOD  HKSO00  HKOO0  HKBOOD  HKGO00  HKBOOO  HKS000
Thn  TEr TEr Thr TR TEn  Thr TR TEm A TR TR TR
(note 38 {note 39 ot ) [note i)
(Wikss)  (Hskes) (hish) (W)
Athorl 1, 2011 fes ofghaly sitee)  R=F——EBA-B (RXE3) 43831 5866011 9100 dr5 10636 1601 1002 [351) 291502 2047062 8764676 1575,102 10339778
Poryer adisment o) LR (M) - - - - - - - - - M) M) - ()
dorl 1, 2001 st #-3--#mF-R (89) B SEM T0T MTE 0FB W 162 (@51 AR 19950 BRI 1TRIN 10262306
Otercomprerensienoome.—— EEARZERA

forthe year - - - 1126 (6804) - - - - - 44 %3/ 129786
Puftfor e jear EgH - - - - - - - - - OB WU N0 1141916
Tota comprehensive noome FRAEMGE

for the year - - - 1126 (6,854 - - - - W30 100838 213314 127702
Recogniion o equty-seted BIERRGR R

hare-based payments ¥t - - 1046 - - - - - - - 1940 - 1946
Tersroacoumueted ot FRAERER AR

wpon oreture of shae opfons B FER - - 4am) - - - - - -4 - - -
Aoustions o acldiordl imerest WEEMBATESER

of subsidares 1ot £0B) (Hz08) - - - - - - T - - TET iy (167463
Rogston of a subsidary WiEnELa (Kap)

[note 418) - - - - - - - - - - - 4089 4089
Disposd of a subsidary nole 4201)  HEMBAE (Frzkaon) - - - - - - - - - - - [606) (606)
Deemed disposal of a subsicary ﬁi’%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%’ il

[note 43) #9) - - - - - - - - - - - [M3159)  (#13159)
Tensfer 0 accumuated pofts upon VEEWEA g

deemed clposal of asubsday  BAEHER| - - - - - - - - U - - -
Capd contbuion fom HERTHERERLE

non-controling inferests

of subsicary - - - - - - - - - - - QN BN
Diicends ped by subsires o~ WEBAFRMZEER

non-contoling ifrests Eaks - - - - - - - - - - - BI04 (123104
Dierds i EfiRg - - - - - - - - - (53 R
Tiansler & - - - - - - - - TR (T65T4) - - -
AtMarcn 31, 2012 HoB-—F=f=1-A 43831 5866071 04087 564513 3782 1601 1002 30160 38076 2779490 9742213 1066777 10,798,990

CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED # BIfA IR B R A7)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B ZE - E—=F=HA=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRALTERA
Employee
share-based Investment  Properties Non-
Share  Share compensation Translation revaluation revaluation  Special  Capital Statutory Accumulated controlling

capital  premium  reseve  reserve  reserve
Eshh R&

R RGEE GHEE EXER  EfEE
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000

reseve  reseve  reserve funds  profits Total interests Total

S

Effif RHBR HARRE itREe TR 4% AEERR 4R

HKS000  H

KS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000

Tan  ThRn  TEn  TAn  TAr  TEn TEn TR TEn TRm TR A TEn
(note 38)  (note 38) (note ) (note i)
(Kis8)  (Kistse) (i) (i
A Aorl 1, 2012 R-E-—EMA-A 43831 5,865,071 94087 554513 3782 1,601 1602 30,160 368,076 2779490 9742213 1,086,777 10,798,990
Obercomprerensienoome.——~ EEEHZARA
for the year - - - 157412 1,039 - - - - - 15851 36,007 194,608
P o e e g : - - - - - . - - T TR OO0 2031
Tola comprehensiee income FRAENNLE
forthe year - - - 154 1,039 - - - - 1764264 1922775 313151 2,285,926
Recogriton of equty-seted TRRRER 2R
shere-besed paymen's Fatfist - - 419 - - - - - - - 400 - 4810
Tensfer o accumuited pofisupon SRAERRERBAZ:HER
forfeture of share options - - (140 - - - - - - 1440 - - -
Acouistion o aotoral merest WEMBARESMER
of subsidars ot 40 (Hikaom) - - - - - - - [100956) - - [100956)  (36828) (1a7784)
Acouistion o 2 subsiday WENELR (KR4
feie 414 - - . : - . . - - : - BB B
Disposdl o a suoscay noie 42))  EMBAT) (Rhikazy) - - - - - - - (14) - - (14 @S psH)
Bierciss of shae cptons il 1066 244906 (53409 - - - - - - - 1B - 193363
Capta contbuion fom HEATHERERLE
non-controling inferests
of subsicrs - - - - - - - - - - - 68704 68704
Diidends paid by substlies o~ HEBARRMFARER
noroonfoling nterests hE - - - - - - - - - - - (M9 (199
Diidends pi i : - - - - - . - - Qg @) - )
Tt £ - - - - - - - - R (08 - - -
AtMacn 31, 2013 RZE-Z§ZR=1-A G697 600977 44157 THO85 48 1601 1602 (10810) 437143 4198467 11484640 1,352,000 12,836,730
Notes: 5T
() The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the (i) AEEZFFRIRE IR AR R FTREENE A A
nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal ZROEEERNQFROR—ANLEF LW
value of the Company's shares issued for the acquisition at the time of SEEHARRETWEMBETROEEZE
the group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in % o
1995,
(i) In accordance with statutory requirements in the People’s Republic of (i) 1RIEBHREARLMEA(HE]  TBEEFS)N

China, other than Hong Kong (the “PRC"), subsidiaries registered in
the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage of the annual net
income from accumulated profits to the statutory funds, until the statutory
funds is accumulated up to 50% of its registered capital. Under normal
circumstances, the statutory funds is not allowed to be distributed to
the subsidiary’s shareholders as dividends. The statutory funds shall only
be used for making good losses, capitalisation into paid-in capital and
expansion of its productions and operations.

EERE R BEEMANE A RAN R
MEHEFEFRAETEOLBEZEES
BEEATESERNHTMERORS L - F£—
RIBRT  EAEESMEDIRTZMEBRRK
RIERIRE - EZEESERIERMHER &
NMEEBAEARRERAEENEE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
Profit before taxation BR 70 A 7 2,507,949 1,620,418
Adjustments for: AT
Change in fair value of investment BEME L N THEE
properties (96,865) (41,491)
Allowance for trade receivables B MR 5,949 2,290
Depreciation of property, plant ME  BERRETE
and equipment 695,669 556,969
Release of prepaid lease payments BETANHERE 31,863 33,945
Amortisation of intangible assets B ER 46,834 46,264
Change in fair value of held-for-trading KEEBEREZATEEY
investments (217) 1,055
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - Jﬁﬁ%& SEEE
and equipment and prepaid REREER
lease payment 9,771 6,196
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB QA (2,421) (2,035)
Loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary ~ BIEHENB AR 2 EiE - 60,176
Gain on deemed disposals of an associate  RIEHEME NG 2 Hiz - (2,370)
Interest expense MEFX 726,989 916,045
Share of results of associates NS ES (339,614) (86,408)
Share-based payments IARR 1 72 A 3R 4,919 19,405
Interest income | BIA (79,978) (78,884)
Change in fair value of derivative TESRMIAECAFEES
financial instruments - (32,122
Operating cash flows before movements BEEC R 2L
in working capital ¥BEER 3,510,848 3,019,453
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER D (EmM) 664,146 (684,837)
Increase in amounts due from customers EREP AL TR2RIEEMN
for contract work (127,801) (21,568)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 FE MK R 0 e L b FE MK BR TR 8 (728,536) (888,345)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due JFE B 2 8 R RIE (38 0 i >
from associates (15,503) 7,328
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 FE A< BR 0 N L ftb FE A< BR IR 484,115 540,462
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to ENEPZAHIRERE
customers for contract work L) 59,496 (26,726)
Increase in amounts due to non-controling  JE{H BT A A FEHR AL #E 25 ZIEIE N
interests of subsidiaries 14,807 3,965
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to FEfTHERIE S E AR R X
shareholders of jointly controlled entities (R )1 (3,273) 49
Cash from operations CEEBELERS 3,858,299 1,949,776
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BRI EMER (476,700) (437,811)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEBHERETH
OPERATING ACTMITIES 3,381,599 1,511,965
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended March 31, 2013 & Z =

E-—=ZFZHA=+—HLFE

2013 2012
—E-=F T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
fisE FHET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Interest received BUF & 79,978 78,884
Repayment from associates R & NEEN 7,388 165,699
Advance to associates 1B & A BIED 2 23R (91,560) (31,380)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEME - BB RS E
property, plant and equipment BREe (72,247) (119,128)
Pledged bank deposits placed BEARITERFA (509,814) (495,830)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIOEEMRRITER 587,323 1,436,165
Addition of property, plant and equipment  REWE - BE KRG (2,950,246) (1,705,221)
Addition of prepaid lease payments NERMNHEERE (76,528) (78,230)
Addition of available-for-sale investments AEAHNERE (409) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BER&E
plant and equipment and prepaid RIEMHEEFE
lease payment FfSsE 26,165 58,272
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash WS - MBRATERE
and cash equivalents acquired kAL EEEER 41 (107,001) (71,124)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHB QA 42 (3,702) 2,439
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELERBRA] 43 - (253,781)
Addition of investments in associates NERBEDRRIZEE - (126,073)
Repayment from non-controlling BB AR TR ERER
interests of subsidiaries 47,788 09,844
Advance to non-controlling interests EIIEYNGE S 5
of subsidiaries 1’EH3'Z§TA (51,231) (10,799)
Repayment from shareholders of EHFEHIEEREER
jointly controlled entities 8,368 28,216
Advance to shareholders of jointly A R B AR S A
controlled entities ZEB - (12,862)
Capital injection into an associate RSN FNEE (15,213) (47,619
Settlement of obligation on capital EEREEGIEEEMRR
injection to a jointly controlled entity RAREGHEETIECRE
by other shareholder of the jointly
controlled entities - (23,448)
Dividend paid by an associate BE A EAIRE 4,728 11,606
NET CASH USED IN RETHFMARESTFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,116,213) (1,124,370
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fisE FET FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ (726,989) (902,185)
Proceed of issue of ordinary shares BT R 2 TS 508 193,363 -
Dividends paid BRRE (277,660) (96,395)
New bank and other borrowings raised MERRBITREMEER 11,228,983 11,552,715
Repayments of bank and Laﬁfﬁﬁ&ﬁ/rﬂﬂ g
other borrowings (11,161,730) (10,912,796)
Advance from shareholders of jointly HEZEHEBRRER
controlled entities 53,000 6,423
Repayment to shareholders of jointly A L R B BB AR SR A X
controlled entities (6,913) (14,174)
Advance from non-controlling MERAFEERERER
interests of subsidiaries 11,360 36,869
Repayment to non-controlling NS A B IR R E
interests of subsidiaries (39,981) (87,595)
Advance from associates %%Q Témk 547 -
Repayment to associates Bla=UNGEN - (11,008)
Acquisition of additional interests W BB I B A Bl ME =
in subsidiaries 40 (137,784) (205,558)
Capital contribution from MEAREERERLE
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries 68,704 42,215
Dividend paid by subsidiaries L) EYNEN IR E 2 g
to non-controling interests 2B (71,938) (123,104)
NET CASH USED IN MEEE A
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BeFHE (867,038) (714,593)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BeRBEEEBEAZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS B FE (601,652) (326,998)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNzReRREEHEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 4,817,767 5,081,589
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExgH o8
RATE CHANGES 81,980 63,176
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZBESRBEEEER
END OF THE YEAR 4,298,095 4,817,767
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReRkHALEEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R AT
Bank balances and cash RITEBRIRE 4,298,095 4,817,767

10 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BI#AFAZ AR A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

General 1. —RER

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Bermuda ARBAREREFMHLZARERA
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed Al B HERRERRR  EROHRES
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). BAZT AR AR(TBR]) E o AR
The address of its registered office and principal place of business BaAMMEERF B L EMEIARERF
are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” of the WwARER | —ETNIEE -

Group's annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities RRARA—BEERRKR AT - ARElEEH
of its principal subsidiaries are set out note 50. & ARz EEEAMEES0 ©

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong RAFBHRRTABTTB TR M
dollars (“HK$") and the functional currency of the Company and its KRR REMBAR ZIEEKA A AR
subsidiaries is Renminbi (‘RMB”). As the Company is a listed entity in (TARE]) - ARARBAREBLTZE
Hong Kong, the directors of the Company consider that it is appropriate B MARNRIESRAUBTEYESH®
to present the consolidated financial statements in HKS. WMERBRE -

Prior Year Adjustments 2. tHEERE

During the year ended March 31, 2013, an executive director of
the Company and a member of senior management of the Group
were re-appointed and the Remuneration Committee of the Company
further concluded and resolved that they were entitled to receive bonus
payments for their services rendered for the financial years ended
March 31, 2010 and 2011 which amounted to HK$50,721,000 and
HK$26,751,000 respectively in accordance with the terms of their
services contract and employment contract with the Company. The
bonus amounts for each financial year should have been determined in
accordance with their contracts and provided in the respective years.
The bonus amounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2011 were
apportioned to reflect the actual length of time they rendered services
for the Group. The term of such bonus entitlement was ended on
March 31, 2011.

The bonus payments have not been accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements for each of the financial years ended March 31,
2010 and 2011 and accordingly, prior year adjustments have been
made to restate certain balances as at March 31, 2012 and April 1,
2011 in the consolidated statement of financial position.

HE-_Z—=H6ZF=1+—HItFE V&
BARA—EZRTEERAEB —E2a5RE
BABR  ARABIFMEE SRELZERZ
WITESRAEESAEEABBERES
iRt IR BB EFEHARAFITOMR
BEeRLkERAEGRSNESBEEZE - —F
FEN_E-——F=ZRF=+—HIHHBEE
50,721,000/ 7T %.26,751,0007 JL I TEAL ©
EUHFENCASCERIZRESENARE
EWREEFETR MBEZT—F=
A=+—RIEWBEENILLL SRR
ERBAEENERFEIZLOIERE - Lt
TAMBRR_ZE——F=A=1+—HB#%
io

L LBEIRERBE T TER_T—
—F=ZA=+—ALEMRFENGRE T
HEAHE  ARAEEBRETGE MK
NEFHEE-E——F=A=+—B k=
T——FMA-—HBZETHESKEL EFEHA

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IERRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B ZE—E—=F=A=1+—HIFE

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments

to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants ("HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets; and

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of
financial assets.

12 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BI#AFAZ AR A A

2. Prior Year Adjustments (Continued) 2. tEEREE)
The effects of the adjustments are as follows: FEZENT -
Consolidated statement of financial position GZEMBMRRBE
As at As at As at As at
41,2011 Adjustment 4.1.2011 3.31.2012 Adjustment  3.31.2012
RZZ——% RZZ——% RZB--F R=B-=F
mA—A #% @©mA-B =ZA=t-H #% =ZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TAT TAR TAT TEx TEx TEx
(originally (restated) ~ (originally (restated)
stated) stated)
(REZ250) (B3)) (R%EE23) (E5)
Total effects on net assets HEBE F2EE
Trade and other payables EC)
HfEEIRIE 4,503,034 77472 4,580,506 4,659,547 77472 4,737,019
Total effects on equity UG YERS
Accumulated profits KA 2,047,062 (77,472) 1,969,500 2,856,962 (77,472) 2,779,490
The adjustments have had no effect on the amounts reported in the RARUEZ T ——FR T —=F=AF=
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the years ended +—HIEFENGEE2EBAREMEZRD
March 31, 2012 and 2018 TRIELE -
Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 3. ERAHIIREBITIEEMBHRE

ZR([EBUHREER )
RAFE - REEERMNAT B BB R
RE(EEGHAAE )R 2 EEHHR

R 2 53T -

ERAGEAE12R(BETA) EEHE: KE

HEEE &

EERBRERUNEREIR) SRIE: RE
-—EEIRE
Eo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKAS 12
“‘Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” in the current year. Under
the amendments, investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for the purposes
of measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in
certain circumstances. The amendments to HKAS 12 have to be
applied retrospectively.

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair value
model. As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS
12, the directors of the Company reviewed the Group'’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group has a business model
for its investment properties whose objective is to hold all investment
properties so as to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the Group’s investment
properties has been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through use.

As the Group has previously recognised deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of investment properties on the basis that the entire
carrying amounts of the properties were recovered through use,
the directors of the Company considered that the application of the
above amendments has had no material impact on these consolidated
financial statements.

The application of the other amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

FERFTR] RAIER]I B R M B R E
ER(EBMBHREER ] (E)

R ERFE125 (BT ELES
H:REHEEE]
AEEEARAFEEBBL G ERIE 12
SRUERIA) EERIA - WEEREE] - &
RRZIER] - IRIBEB G EAFI0RKRE
MEIARNTFHEREG B ZIRENE Rt E
BREFRBERREAIM D ERTHRED - R
ETERTZBERRKDERIN - FE G E
AIF 125 (ERTAR) BB WER -

AEERARATFEREFEERENE - B
RERBAGHEMS12R(EBITA) - A
AAEFCEHNAKEZREMEAELE
E o ARBEREMECZAEEARBEAMRA
BREME(MIFPEBLE) UBEEFRER
HREREMER S ZBREDLENE -
It BEAKERENEZELCHEBCDRE
FREATBRORAEI RIEERTE -

RN A B BTRIEM % 2 2 SIS A A
B AT 2 BRI A % > AT A
PRREERE - HAADEER A L
ST RS RA B REL MEREAY
2 o

RAFERAB BV B REER 2 EMBERT
WEBAEERAEEBEFE2MBR
BREMRA R RGeUBRRAT 2 HES
HELEMNERYE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IERRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

3. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

HK(FRIC) — INT 21

IR ST

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle’

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities'

Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures®

Consolidated financial
statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure
of interests in other entities:
Transition guidance’

Investment entities?

Financial instruments®

Consolidated financial
statements’

Joint arrangements’

Disclosure of interests in
other entities’

Fair value measurement’

Employee benefits'

Separate financial statements'

Investments in associates

and joint ventures’
Presentation of items of

other comprehensive income*
Offsetting financial assets

and financial liabilities?
Recoverable amount disclosures

for non-financial assets?
Stripping costs in the production

phase of a surface mine!
Levies?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

FERFTR] RAIER]I B R M B R E
ER(EBMBHREER ] (E)

3. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 3.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments BB REENFFSMTE

EANEHELAEIR (R _STAFEEMH)
SHEMEREENERINBIHER &
BB RELEESR(R T —FF(EE])
MALHSREBEIERIERRIEER R

=

iE o

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

BRPBWMELAESR 2 TEREHMANT

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

BEEGERFEIRI M ITA « 5
REGEIRERNZAECERTRE
EERGREIHEKN AL A FETE -
FHlZ BRARMANREREZ
EBRARNMKE RAWASRE
ERUXNAREREREERSHE
ZEBRE  —RRERETHEE
HRRBIEKAGE - TEEMER
KRERBAREORERRE BEE
HHZQATEE - Wi REFE
I EERFEN - BREAMEL AR
BEZEE UREME2EKRAZR
BARE(XIFFEEEE) AFEZ
HEg#g —RAAREKAGRE

KRR -

SRIEEEBESRATAEIKZ SR
BEMS @ BRIFNEMEEBRATE
REENEERRNENTE  Ke
RSP ELEIBEBRNGFHEE - B
MBRERNFEISRRAERENEER
RmEmslIHeRAaBEAFERRE
MEBHINEMEEBRAFRLY - &
BEENEERREDSIBFNEHE
BEAFEEFHERTIEEHROHER
@ o RIBFB G EREI5% - HE
BERBRBRAFEIEZEREED
RTPEEPSHE HE2BEREBERTE
5I) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS
9 in the future will have impact on the classification and measurement
in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale investments but not on the

ERAHITREETEEMBRE
ER(EBUMBHREER ] (E)

BRMBHRELENFIRESRMIAE)
EEVBRELRESFA T —RF— A

—REZRABZFREMEER - WRFFR
B

\

ARRIEFEHBERREBE LM BHRE LR
FORBFEAEEAHRLERE (L TEF
ERGEZEMEREERERAB) 2N

Group’s other financial assets and financial liabilities. It is not practicable HE 8 o ERAKFMRT 281 EEARZY
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review BIR AR o

has been completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

EHEAKRE  AERE BEAD
&HEZ%ﬂﬁgwﬂgm

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint pra —FXA EmTAEBSAERE
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including A ;z%# e NAI R E 2 AHERE
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) 4 BIEEEMBERELEBFI105 - BAEE

and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ%*%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%m
B BB ENFER(N T ——F{&

'ET)&%E;% = aﬁ'ﬁ%,ﬁ\”%%?ﬁ( NZE——F&
HPE
Key requirements of these five standards are described below. ZATEER Z FBEFEEMMMAT o

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and separate BRI HHREENF10FMAR BB SR
financial statements’ that deal with consolidated financial statements. FoTHRI B MBI EHE |G ?V?E\ B 7%

HK (SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose entities” will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10,
there is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition,

BRZHAOANE - BEAIREHRZREE -2
BE12%5RE - BRENERISNEER
TEERE AR E 1058 £ R H BIREE - $E<T)“‘%T/’§

HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains three RS ERIE10% - RAKRBE ZHE—
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable RYEGIRE o Uboh - BB MELER |J%10sfi

returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS
11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC) — INT 13 “Jointly
controlled entities — Non-monetary contributions by venturers” will
be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS
11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to
the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types
of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures
under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS
31 can be accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate consolidation.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application
of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013 with earlier application permitted provided that
all of these standards are applied at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these standards will be
adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning April 1, 2013. The application of these five standards
may have significant impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements. The directors are in the progress to perform a
detailed analysis of the impact of the application of these standards
and hence have not yet determined the extent of the impact.

FERFTR] RAIER]I B R M B R E
ER(EBMBHREER ] (E)

FRGERE  GERY BELT
KRB 2 # T R ARG RT 2R (42
EEMBHREENENFBRRE B G ER
FNFNAZELRZER - BEMBREE
AU 1SR ER IR W A sk A = A HER H R
BZAERHZNBIE  BERERHER
B -REBE R AREHNER 827
ZHEEHEE BN EETBREERNEN
SR BB - REBAMBRELENS
158 BERHRTLHSETT 2N R
BEEDRAEEBHAEDLE - HR - RE
BEGEUENT  AERHEOR=ER
A KREGERE - KREHNEERARE
BIRTS o I BAVBREERNE1HRA
MEZALERARAERGIAAR - M
BAGTERENFARE 2 KRZEFE R
AR AR mE AR PR A EAR

RZZB——FtH FEUBREENE0
S BAMBRELENZ 1R REEWH R
EEAFI12% ZE ] ERMIA BB B RE
RAZAREEMHEREENNE TRRIERE
3l e

ZAIFEAER B BBRE MRS 2B R
—E-ZF—-A-ARZERBZFERH
ER WAFIRERSE - WARERZT
FIRZER] o

ARREBREY  ZEFENBNAEE_F
—ZFOA-ARRZFERRZEE TS
WRTER - ERZOBEL R S RA Y
BREMEBZCBENEATE - A
E=DHEARSEAZZELETHAD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general,
the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than
those in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all
assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors of
the Company anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning April
1, 2013 and that the application may affect the amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements and result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

18 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BI#AFAZ B A BR A 7]

ERAHITREETEEMBRE
ER([ERPBHREER]) (&

ﬁﬁ%éﬁa‘é%iﬁ‘%%ﬁa
REBEZHITREIETER(E)

ERVBRELERNF1IRATETE

ERUBRELRNBISRELE R TFEZE
ERWECE 55 - REARERFE

BUAEAFEZERERREAFEAEZ
BE- - BAEMBREENF IR ZEERE
FR - BRARNEGEEMBEREER FREFIE
MAT)BEHEMERRFEAEREEZE
MTAKFEMTAER - —KRM5 > A
PR IREERF 135 2 WE BRI IRITER
ZBREREME - BHIRF - BEHERRE
B BREENERERTA: HEIT
ZEBMTEZ=FRVFESERZELIFEN
BE - SRBEMH RS ERE135RMEKR
EREARERNZMBEEERARE -

BEMBRELENF 1SRN T —=F—A1
— Rz RMABZFEHEER  WRFFR
FRA - AR EFERE BV BRE LR
BISHEBRAEBR T —=FHA—AH
WM FEMEZEAMBRRTER  mE
MEAAEHERAMBREMER I TE
KEE  TERRGEPBHRRPIELER
T 5E



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1
comprehensive income” introduce new terminology for the statement of
comprehensive income and income statement. Under the amendments
to HKAS 1, a “statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as
a “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” and
an “income statement” is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss”.
The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped
into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present items
of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

‘Presentation of items of other

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2012 and will be applied by the Group for annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2013. The presentation of items
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

FERFTR] RAIER]I B R M B R E
ER(EBMBHREER ] (E)

BERETHEASIREMEEKRAEE
2512185
EREERHERE IR EMbEmKRAERZ
S | ZEFT B2 T ATRR K e & 5l AT
Mg - REBEFEGFENF 1R BT - [2
EWATREK B2 A BELEMGEERAR
K] mMkERIAERRMER®RK] - B8
FEIEF IR ZETRE TR —EE K
MR MIEB I MEE s RA25E8 R
Hip 2ERAZBEZRE - A BEGE
B 1R 2 ERTRERAREMEEBAIRR D
RME: @QHERBITEENHIBERE A
B ROBERENEREMREFAIENNER
EHRRZIAR - b2 EKR AR B WMEHR
BIRAREETUDE - B BN IZR
WA RE 2 A2 EBATRE (& E
-

BEESHENE IR ZEBITIR_E—ZFt
R—Bsz%FAnz FEBBAER  mA%
BER-_ZE—=ZFNA— B 2EBEBRZF
EHIMER - ERARREFTHMERAZERT
B EM2EWAIER 2 25158 B i &
Eo

RABEREY  ERAEMHTIREETZ
BEMBRELENB IS YR BERRE
AEMERFE °

e

BEXETHE

RAMBRRIDBREBTBEHMAGHEMZ
BEMBREENER - LI A MBR
RIFAB R AES EmARR( ETHRAD
REBRAGHIFTRENERREES

RIREMERETERMIARAFEAER
TXEHERROBER)IN - RAMBHRER IR
JESe B AN B AR EL o B 2 AR — ARAR IR IR ER
EMFANREZATE -

TEEFBERHEIIMT -

B3R % FINANCIAL REPORT 2013 19



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

4. ERSFBERE)

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted (the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to
non-controlling interests) and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (i) recognises
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest, with any resulting difference
being recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred directly to accumulated profits as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19
‘Employee benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into a replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date (see accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with
that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’'s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another Standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incompleted by the
end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business or a jointly controlled
entity (which is accounted for using proportionate consolidation) is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
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impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount,
any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

4.
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fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant
influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the Group'’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Investments in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity
of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The Group recognises its interests in jointly controlled entities using
proportionate consolidation. The Group's share of each of the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the jointly controlled entities are
combined with the Group’s similar line items, line by line,
consolidated financial statements.

in the

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Group's interest in jointly
controlled entities is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition on a business
or jointly controlled entities (see the accounting policy above).

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 EZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly controlled
entity are recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-
current asset is avallable for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
except for investment properties which are measured at fair value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. BERGTHHE(E)

Revenue recognition (Continued) H&Aﬁﬁiﬁ(é%)

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the . RSHEBMEEFZ AR ALRE
transaction will flow to the Group; and @ 53

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction o B SREH D E LA 1S3 A BB A
can be measured reliably. BESIR] SERTE ©

Revenue from sales of natural gas, liquefied petroleum gas (‘LPG"),
coke and gas appliances are recognised when the gas or goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Deposits received by the Group prior to meeting the above for revenue
recognition criteria are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

Connection revenue from gas pipeline construction is recognised when
the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably and the stage
of completion at the end of the reporting period can be measured
reliably. Revenue from gas connection contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to
the proportion of contract cost incurred for work performed to date
bear to the estimated total contract costs. When the outcome of
a gas connection contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue
is recognised only to the extent of contract cost incurred that it is
probable to be recoverable.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
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is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding m&;@ﬁﬁ BN R (T het R RIS WAR
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly SREEC AHRFHERAREZEEYS
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected BREEMEEIZIANR)UAEEL P EER

life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 EZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land (classified as finance
leases) and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
and services, or for administrative purposes, (other than construction in
progress and described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Properties, pinelines and other assets in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such assets are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Building under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to eam rentals or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties include land held for undetermined
future use, which is regarded as held for capital appreciation
purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Internally-generated intangible assets - research
and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an interal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 EZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. BEBRGHBEE)
Intangible assets (Continued) BEEE(E)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research
and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same
basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when
the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
measured based on the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs, except
where this would not be representative of the stage of completion.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included
to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt
is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown
as amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts received
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trade and other receivables. W AR R N B A FE UL BR 1A ©
Inventories 7E
Inventories, including construction materials, gas appliances and gas FE BREELEDE - HEZRARE LK

for sales, LPG, coke, consumables and spare parts, are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

4. ERSFBERE)

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis, except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
under the heading of translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interest as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
jointly controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before January 1,
2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the
acquirer and reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date
of acquisition.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after January
1, 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
and state-managed defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entiting them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the above
general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected
manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
on production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as FVTPL, of
which interest income included in net gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. BEREFBER(E)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRTAE
Financial assets (Continued) HEEE)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BAVEFABSCEHEE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group comprise AEBZAFEFABRZ ZEREERIERT
held for trading financial assets. A financial asset is classified as held EBEZESRMEE - (MBTYHRIE  £2f&

for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

EDNDERFBFESR :

o IZERAMHANHEREMEA X

o

s SREEAAEERAREEZEMT
BEWMEEEZ o hHEAGHER
BERIRA %

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging o SREEAPEEMMIEETNAME
instrument. TR o

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or

BRAFEAABRZEBREEARFER
E MAEHFAEMEENRITFEZEHNE

loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised HAHIANEERIBREZ RIBXRIZ AR
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial SEEETEE TR ESERMEEZAE -
assets.

Loans and receivables BERKEWFIE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from associates, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4, BEREFTBEE)
Financial instruments (Continued) ¢RWMIAE
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEEREE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as (a) loan and receivable, (b) held to
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating
to interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. BEBRGHBEE)
Financial instruments (Continued) tWMIAEE
Financial assets (Continued) CHEEE)
Impairment of financial assets TRIEERIE

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a

EREENBERRAFEFABRZZERE
ERINEREREPRFHRETR - HE
FOREBRTNEAR S HATHEEREE

result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition Z2—HENZEEHMSEMEE 2 hEtREK
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial RERZETE  AlemBEES TURE -
assets have been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged BAHEERETIEEMS @ ZIREZAFE
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered NiEskREFE N EK AR W18 BREC ZE
to be objective evidence of impairment. EIE o

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could BEHMERMEEMS @ BEZREEE
include: B

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o BIARRZYHFHREAMBREE -

%
° breach of contract, such as default and delinquency in interest o EREXD PlIEN B EmAEERE
and principal payments; or MeRARS ; s

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,

s BRABWUEHBHREXMEEMA
4

s RFAMBRE eREEREELTRM

5 o

RETERMEED B(WE S EKERR) M
5 WA RTEEMBEZEERRER

assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of RS FOEMITRER G - EWFEEA S BIE
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s ZREFIEA A ARE B IO RIE 7 B EK
past experience of collecting payments and observable changes in B ANREIRE/R EUNRIE A B 2 B R el i [&

national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. BERGHBEE)
Financial instruments (Continued) EtWMIAE
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SRIEERMEE)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When the
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. BEBRGHBEE)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRITAEE
Financial liabilities and equity instruments THEERKATA

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represent financial liabilities held for trading,
which comprise derivatives that are not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

At the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due to associates and a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and
bank and other borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. BEREHBEK(E)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRTAEE
Derivative financial instruments TEZMT A

Derivatives financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value at
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently

TEERTANPRIIUMTETAGORH
MAFEAR ERRBREMRENFES

remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The HAFE - IEEERFNRERER - M7
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless £ T EYETERIEAY T ARSI FELIER

the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on
the nature of the hedge relationship.

T RERERAZKHEEFEMEERZMT

Embedded derivatives M#ELTET A

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as EVETEMATTETEZER - WHERIE

separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their PTEFARZOIAT A AR EREEET S

risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host REVEZYEE  BEXARWIFEAFE
1+

contracts, and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group'’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

4. ERSFBERE)

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (employee share-based compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to employee
share-based compensation reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in employee share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
pasis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over
the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful life
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

4.
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EET TR E Rz EFERR

5. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 5.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at March 31, 2013, the carrying amount
of goodwill was HK$1,209,279,000 (2012: HK$1,038,591,000) with
no impairment loss recognised. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation disclosed in note 24,

Impairment of intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, management assessed the
recoverability of its intangible assets arising from the acquisitions of
businesses/assets, in which the carrying amount at March 31, 2013
was HK$1,267,221,000 (2012: HK$1,281,448,000). The business of
the cash generating unit continues to progress in a satisfactory manner.
Detailed valuation analysis has been carried out and management is
confident that the carrying amount of the asset will be recovered in full.
This situation will be closely monitored. Any change in the business
environment may lead to the change of expected future cashflows in
the future. If the future recoverable amounts fall below the carrying
amounts, additional impairment is required.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual value and the
useful life of the property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimates, such differences from the original
estimates will impact the depreciation charges in the year in which
the estimates change.

46 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED H B FIER AR A A

AT RRERMEL 2 AEE S BER
Fp Rk A&z EBBRRERBEHRGET
AMERZ A EERROREOEFEET
B R FE 2 EERAEZREELRAE
HEZERER)

EERE

ErRERGLRAAAGTEEMIRE
NEERBEENARREEEEN 2 FEH
BEFEREZTNESE - FFEFEAER
B AKEEMGGREEESUBERKE
EZRERE  NRERESE 2R R
HRE BEBRRKRRESRELRIEHR
AlgEASENRERE RZT—=F=A
=+—A  ‘mEZEKEEARI,209,279,000/%8
JT(=F—=% :1,088,591,000/87C) * B
MERBEEE - sTEKRESB 2 FER
REIEE24 -

BEEERE

RIRERER EEETHKBEYR EE
EXCEREEZARERE Z%SEF
BER-_ZEZ—=€=ZA=+—Hz&K@A
B /£1,267,221,0008 7t( = & — = F:
1,281,448,000/87T) - BEAR S EE BN
BHEEBREZER - FHRHESTELE
T MEBERRELEEZREBAISNE
HUE - BRABRBZEIER - EHIRE
M E BRI R 2 AT AR R
&) o AR R AT U B S REEMBREE + RIZEE
HEEINEE -

ME - BERKBZINE

ME - BELERBEZINETINEG AT BF
HINIREAOEERITE - WG RAE RIS
BlE AEESRFFHYE  BELRE
ZRREENRATBFEY - MiKEREF AR
RERAERE - MERBGEGFZZEBHE
BECFRNMEBRBRTE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 5. AstTHBREZZEERR(E)
(Continued)

Deferred taxation BRI

As at March 31, 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of RZZE—=F=A=+—8 ' KEEJHEH
HK$3,371,554,000 (2012: HK$2,822,417,000) available for offset R B34 ) 2 K {8 PR B T 5 18 /83,371,654,000
against future profits. No deferred tax asset in relation to these BIR(ZT——4F : 2,822,417,0008 7T ) ° &
unused tax losses approximately to HK$3,290,495,000 (2012: EBEWENGEAMEAARRANEZENARER
HK$2,748,194,000) has been recognised in the consolidated BB EI8 493,290,495 0008 T ( =2 — £ :
statement of financial position. In cases where there are future profits 2,748,194,0008 70) L IBEEFIBEE A%
generated to utilise the tax losses, a material deferred tax assets may EARTAERIEER - Bn]ge3| E AR
arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated statement of ERIEEEE - ek SRERIEE E N IERTI
comprehensive income for the period in which the estimated future Bh st R ARG F 2 B NELR A 2R A RE
profits are expected. TR -

Revenue recognition of gas connection contract MREBEHZBWAER

Construction revenue from gas connection contracts is recognised on MABBEBREHNZIRRADRTKBEDLLF
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the FEHER  WRERECSTRZIREA S
proportion of the contract costs incurred for the work performed to B A BB DR A Z L HImET £ -
date over the estimated total contract costs. Accordingly, any changes It HEHAE DR AR Z F B Eg R e &
to the estimated total contract cost may have material impact on AN EetHBRER 2 & W ABK
the contract revenue recognised in each accounting period over the BERTE -

contract term.

Financial Instruments 6. TRITH

Capital risk management BEXRERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concermn while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged throughout
the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
the amount due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and bank
and other borrowings disclosed in notes 35 and 36 respectively, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital disclosed in note 37, reserves and accumulated profits as
disclosed in consolidated statements of changes in equity.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

FEBEBHER  UBREAEEETES
BAEBNSEREERZE  RARERE
EEBRBAFERABRRLONR - FA - A
SE BRI -
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6. SRMIAE)

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Categories of financial instruments SR T EER
2013 2012
—E—=%F —E—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 78,983 76,658
Held-for-trading investments HEEBRE 11,110 10,893
Loans and receivables B ERGRIE
(including cash and (BRERAe MRS
cash equivalents) Z@EI\A) 7,452,478 7,556,761
Financial liabilities EEAE
Amortised cost BEIER AR 19,646,333 18,506,028

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investments, amounts due from/to
associates, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
amounts due from/to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries, bank and
other borrowings, pledged bank deposits and bank balances. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risks
Currency risk

The Group collects most of its revenue in RMB and most of the
expenditures as well as capital expenditures are also denominated
in RMB. However, the Group has certain bank balances, amount
due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and bank and other
borrowings that are not denominated in functional currency of the
respective group entities. The appreciation or devaluation of RMB
against foreign currencies may have positive or negative impact on
the results of operations of the Group.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. ERIA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEEREEBERBE(E)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) miEE k(&)
Currency risk (Continued) Bk (&)
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy KREBB MW EIINEEHIBE  BEFEEE
but the directors monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider ERINERK  NETE  @ZREPEKX
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise. SNER R o REREHIR - AL B LSNERHE
As at end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the Group’s ZEBEENRBEZEREAENT

monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currency
are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
EE i=F
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —ET-——-F —ZE—= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000
FEx TET FET TET

United States Dollars (‘USD”) FEa(l=x]) 676,916 1,651,010 8,258,632 4,121,957

HKS HBIT 24,010 18,936 - -

Japanese Yen ("JPY’) HE(TBE]) - - 537,653 444,725

Euro Dollar (‘EURO’) BT (BT ]) - - 48,181 -
The carrying amounts of inter-company balances of certain group LAONBEHE 2 E TEBER 2 ARIBERE

entities which were denominated in foreign currency are as follows: HEHMT :
Liabilities
afE

2013 2012

—E2—= —EF——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH&xT FET

UsD E7T - 35,869
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

$RMITAE)
BREARTERERKE(E)

Market risks (Continued) miEE R (&)
Currency risk (Continued) B Ebs (&)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2012 5%)
increase and decrease in RMB against respective foreign currencies.
5% (2012: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2012: 5%)
change in foreign currencies rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5% (2012: 5%)
against the relevant currencies. For a 5% (2012: 5%) weakening of
RMB against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the result for the year and the balance below
would be negative.

TRAMAEERLARE X SINEFHERE
B5% (ZE——fF 1 5%) Z2HURKJE - 5% (=
T——F %) BATEEEAERNT2R
INE R B LR - WHRKREEERIN
WE RSB AL B ENIET 25T - BE D
WMEREEITEINZINETEEEE - I
BINEER 5% (ZF— 4 : 5%) B FHRN
WEHRFRELIRE - TRARZESEH
MARBHBEEEAEY (ZF——F :
5%)EF - BB EFEEM LA - WARKE
HEBEBMESYS (ZE— 4 : 5%)K
SHEEEEERBARERAZFE AT
s RE AE R -

Increase (decrease)
in post-tax profit
for the year

FEBRRBEFNEM (BD)

2013 2012

—E—= —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAxT
USD impact ELHE 96,815 94,005
HKS$ impact BT E (900) (710)
JPY impact AEZZ 20,162 16,677
EURO impact -7 1,807 -
117,884 109,972

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

$RMITAE)
BREARTERERBE(E)

Market risks (Continued) mi5 k(&
Interest rate risk F =@ B

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on interest rate
level as well as potential impact on the Group's financial position
arising from volatility. Interest rate swap is the hedging instrument most
commonly used by the Group to manage interest rate exposure.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
amounts due from associates, amount due to a non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary and fixed-rate bank and other borrowings issued by
the Group (see notes 26, 35 and 36 for details of these amounts
respectively).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and floating-rate bank and other
borrowings (see notes 31 and 36 for details of bank balances and
these borrowings respectively). It is the Group's policy to seek to
maximise its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rate risk for both floating-rate bank and other borrowings,
together with the interest capitalised to construction in progress at
the end of the reporting period. Floating-rate bank balances have not
been included in the sensitivity analysis as the management considers
that the interest rate would not fluctuate significantly in the near future
and therefore the financial impact to the group is not significant. A
change of 100 basis points (2012: 100 basis points) was applied to
the yield curves and interest rate on both floating-rate bank and other
borrowings, together with the interest capitalised to construction in
progress. The applied change is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. If
the interest rate of variable rate bank and other borrowings, together
with the interest capitalised to construction in progress had been
100 basis points (2012: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year,
after taking amount of interest capitalised, would decrease/increase
by HK$81,540,000 (2012: HK$80,513,000).

AR & BIAR I3 ) K R 1 3 7 5 B 81 7R
RFER 2 EETEEEEN TR - FX
BHRAKEETERAZEHTTA  EE
FEER o

7 52 [5) T i, B B ABgE i2  R) ROEL - FE ST BT BB
REZFERER Z RARANEEEITZER
RITREMEE(BEZERBZFBEAIAR
BiE26 - 3536) A2 AT EMEEAL -

AREBE JNE RS N7 BIRITRER MOF SIRTT
REMER(ZERTEHRREEFBEIHR
M1 M36) 2 e MEBNKRER - NEH
ZBEDFREZFHHNERNEEANRER
EAFENERL

BRRE DT

BREE D IR T BIRIT R EMIEE 2 F)
KREK  BERARREHACEAEEZIRE
RZHMEET - HRNEEBRARA RiEHE
MERGRIERE  WAEENHHEZET
A AN E BIRIT S ABRME DT
oo BERUEEIRIT REMIEE 2 SR Kk
MR(EEBEAEREIREAZAE)ER
T00MEES (=T —=F : 100EEE) &%

B - RAFAEEEEABLHAZAR
NefREAgs HAREBEEUTEY
BIEAREE B 2T o W7 BIRTT REME
EZHR BRCEAGERIREARZFE
EA/TBRIC0EES (=2 —=4F : 100f#
) MAAEGESMEIE  AAEE
ZEERBEEFRTRENMZ M B&E
181,640,000 TT( B — — 4
80,513,000 7T) °
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

$RMITAE)
BREARTERERBE(E)

Market risks (Continued) miEE k(&)
Equity price risk IR AE 1 EL B

The Group’s available-for-sale investments and held-for-trading
investments are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks of listed equity instrument at the reporting
date. A 10% (2012: 10%) change is used when reporting equity
price risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in
equity price.

For the year ended March 31, 2013, if the market bid prices of the
listed investments had been 10% (2012: 10%) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year would increase/decrease by HK$928,000 (2012: HK$910,000)
and the Group’s investment revaluation reserve will increase/decrease
by HK$1,009,000 (2012: HK$905,000) respectively. This is mainly
attributable to the changes in fair values of the listed held-for-trading
investments and available-for-sale investments respectively.

Credit risk

As at March 31, 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties or debtors provided
by the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each
half-reporting end date and end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

$RMITAE)
BREARTERERBE(E)

Market risks (Continued) miEE R (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERK(Z)

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks in the PRC
and banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has concentration of
credit risk on amounts due from a single associate of HK$267,250,000
(2012: HK$201,224,000). The associate operates in the business of
sales of piped natural gas and gas pipeline construction in the PRC and
no default payment history was noted. In order to minimise the credit
risk on amount due from an associate, the directors of the Company
closely monitors the subsequent settlement and does not grant long
credit period to the counterparty. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significant reduced.
The Group does not have any other significant concentration of credit
risk on the trade receivables, with exposure spread over a number of
sub-contractors, commercial and household customers.

The policy of allowances for doubtful debts of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on
management’s estimate. In determining whether impairment is required,
the Group takes into consideration of aging status and likelihood of
collection. Specific allowance is only made for receivables that are
unlikely to be collected and is recognised on the difference between
the estimated future cash flows expected to receive discounted using
the original effective interest rate and the carrying value. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowance
may be required.
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

$RMITAE)
BREARTERERBE(E)

(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) miEE k(&)
Liquidity risk MENE £ E e

The Group has net current liabilities of HK$4,148,203,000 as at
March 31, 2013 (2012: HK$3,357,491,000). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
because the directors believe that the Group has sufficient funds to
finance its current working capital requirements taking into account
of the cash flows from operations and the available long-term bank
loans facilities. As at March 31, 2013, the Group had available
unutilised long-term bank loans facilities of HK$34,519,782,000
(2012 HK$34,273,305,000). Details of the Group's bank and other
borrowings at March 31, 2013 are set out in note 36.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition to issuance of new
shares, the Group also relies on bank and other borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank and other borrowings.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal gross cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

$RMITAE)
BREARTERERBE(E)

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued) mEE (&)
Liquidity tables nBEEER
Carrying
Weighted amount
average  Payable Between  Between Total at the end
contractual on Less than 1to  Imonths  Between Over undiscounted of reporting
interestrate  demand  1month 3months to1year 1to5years  5years cash flows period
ng¥Ys  ZEER -z =@AZ YR REEER
CHES g8 JR-BA  =ERA -§ -FERE  BENL REHEE AR
%  HKB000  HKBOOO  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKBOOO  HKBOO0  HK$O000
Thn T TR TR TEm TR TEn TEn
At March 31, 2013 R-F-Z£=f=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilties FiEsRER
Trade and bl payadles BARNBIRENRE - - W78 1507751 497509 - - 250078 2590973
Other payables and accrued charges EfpEARERETER - - TR0 181941 811% - - 028 965228
Amounts due to non-contling interests EMBAREE
of subsidaries RiER 58 - B30 - - - - - 53000 53,000
Amounts due to shareholders o jonty ERARBAEERR
controlled entities L3R = 85,016 = = = = = 85,016 85,016
Amounts cue fo associates ERBERTE - 2907 - - - - - 2907 2907
Bank and other borowings BRABEE
- fixed rate -8 6.17 - - - 5200729 395202 1019292 6642223 6,030,121
- floating rafe -%8 8.16 - 1214 33267 4497109 3936436 3587,639 12005685 9914727
Amount due 1o a non-controling interest EH-FEHEAE
of a subsidiary FERER B 2 4453 - - - - - 4453 4366
146376 1,289,054 1722949 10303502 4,331,638 4556931 22349450 19,646,333
At March 31, 2012 R-2-ZFZf=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilties FiToREE
Trade and bl payables RN RENEE - - 009 1344880 443770 - - 0240758 2240758
Other payables and accrued cherges EfpEAREREER - - BRM0%5 136281 60788 - - TR 7820B4
Amounts dug fo non-contraling ineress EMBAREE
of subsidaries Ea/E - %563 - - - - - 95,639 95,639
Amounts due to Shareholders of jonty ElLERYEE
contoled enties RRLTE - 908 - - - - - 9,93 9938
Amounts e to associates EBENTE - 2.0 - - - - - 2,302 2302
Bank and ather bortowings RREtRE
- fived rate -8 6.3 - - - 466353 522006 871034 6019603 5,660,229
- floating rafe -8 8.3 - 1218 6074 4998473 4016692 280636 11,938,282 9,709,933
Amount due to a non-contoling inferest El-EHELA
of @ subsidlary FiERER TR 2 5208 - - - - - B8 565
13147 1038312 1,607,744 10,129,384 4638958 3,766,359 21,093,904 18,606,028

The amounts included above for variable rate bank borrowings are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting

period.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded in active liguid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis; and

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that
are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped
into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs

other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

6. SWMITEAEE)
NREE)
R EHBRREBCINNFELHE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position (%)
(Continued)
2013
—E-=5F
Level 1 Level 2 Total
£ ER #sct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FH&xT FH&xT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABZENSREE
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBERE 11,110 = 11,110
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets
Listed equity securities ETRAES 10,093 - 10,093
Unlisted club debentures JEEMEMES - 5,999 5,999
Total st 21,203 5,999 27,202
2012
—E-—F
Level 1 Level 2 Total
F—H FH “ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Financial assets at FVTPL BATVEFABZNSREE
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 10,893 - 10,893
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets
Listed equity securities EmRAFS 9,054 - 9,054
Unlisted club debentures ELEMEAES - 5,153 5,153
Total 4t 19,947 5,163 25,100
There were no transfer between Level 1 and 2 in the current year RAREEREFEE  F—REFE - HK 7B
and prior year. R o
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

Revenue 7. WA
Revenue mainly represents the net amounts received and receivable WAFBHEFANLAEEHEEERART R
for sales of piped natural gas, LPG and coke and gas appliances and ftama RRERREREA N RERRE
construction contract revenue from gas connection contracts by the BE&N 7z TIRAEHKRAZ B R EKRIEF
Group for the year and is analysed as follows: BT
2013 2012
—B-=% —T=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Sales of piped natural gas BBRARHEE 9,348,919 7,662,637
Gas connection income MR BRI 3,300,743 2,803,721
Sales of LPG BAiLAmRIEE 7,959,214 7,992,816
Sales of coke and gas appliances WAE N B EEREIHE 625,404 456,694
Rental income AL WA 15,986 17,797
21,250,266 18,933,565
Segment Information 8. nHEER

Information reported to the Group's chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), being the managing directors of the Group, for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods sold or services rendered which is also
consistent with the basis of organisation of the Group.

The Group had acquired 56.33% equity interest in Zhongyu Gas
Holdings Limited (“Zhongyu Gas”) during the year ended March 31,
2011, On April 18, 2011, Zhongyu Gas ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Group and became an associate as a result of share placing
by Zhongyu Gas as detailed in note 43. The Group's effective
interest in Zhongyu Gas was reduced from approximately 56.33% to
approximately 46.96% as at April 18, 2011. Since then, the CODM
reviewed the results of Zhongyu Gas being shared by the Group under
equity accounting and Zhongyu Gas is a single operating segment.

The Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are
as follows:

AARBETELERRE(TEZERR
E]) (ASEEFRRKE) 2HARETE
BARERDBERAFHZERAENEHE
MR IRE 2 BE - HIREARE 2 A
ERAYE -

AREBPREBEE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HILF
BEWERRRIZERER A FHRE])
56.33%fk#E - RZTE——FMA+N\H "
PR RR NI E FE(FHE R M43) B
PRI R T B RSB B A B MK A E
PDEl e RZE——FWA+NH » "EER
R B BRI R 2 B 8956.33%F =4
46.96% ° LATR - X BEERKEEHKIERE
HENEAEAEERERRMRR Z EE
BEFRWRRAE —CEDLE -

RIEBEMBRESEAFESH  AEEZ2
RS EDRNT -

() Sales of piped natural gas; () BERARHEE
(i) Gas connection; (i)  MEEE
(i) Sales of LPG; (i) RIEAERBEE

(iv)  Sales of coke and gas appliances; and
(v)  Zhongyu Gas

Information regarding the above segments is presented below.
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. DEEH(E)
Segment revenues and results THEWARES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by KEBZZFREELEDIEE D 2 WA R ELE
reportable and operating segment. DT -
For the year ended March 31, 2013 BE—F—=—F=HF=1+—HIEE
Sales of
Sales of coke
piped Gas Sales of andgas  Zhongyu  Segment
natural gas connection LPG appliances Gas Total
BERRR RERRE
BERARHE  HRER HE REHE  PHBR  2E4E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TAT FRT TAT THET THR TAT
Segment revenue from RENREPZ
external customers WA 9,348,919 3,300,743 7,959,214 625,404 - 21,234,280
Segment profit (loss) PEEFI(EE) 1,271,398 1,733,278 (13,541) (23,982) 99,571 3,066,724
Revenue arising from property investment #1%#% & WA 15,986
Change in fair value of RENERATEEY
investment properties 96,865
Interest and other gains FBREE 82,790
Unallocated corporate expenses NN NG R (269,891)
Finance costs BB (726,989)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARZ S 2,421
Share of results of unlisted associates  FEfEFE F MBS AR £18 240,043
Profit before taxation BRBt A& 2,507,949
HK$000
TEx
Reconciliation of revenue Lo
Total revenue for operating segments £ BAKA 21,234,280
Rental income HEBA 15,986
Group's consolidated revenue EEGAIRA 21,250,266
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. SEERE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DHEBRARESE(E)
For the year ended March 31, 2012 BE_—_FE—_—F=-H=+—HItFE
Sales
Sales of of coke
piped Gas Sales of and gas Zhongyu Segment
natural gas  connection LPG  appliances gas Total
RibEdaR MERRE
BEAARHEE  MEEX HE  REHE  PHMRE SBsE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THIL THIL TR THIL
Segment revenue from REIREP
external customers ELON 7,662,637 2,803,721 7,992,816 456,694 - 18,915,768
Segment profit (loss) SEEF (ER) 1,033,390 1,408,733 80,749 (34,052) 53018 2,536,838
Revenue arising from property investment MERERA 17,797
Change in fair value of investment RENERATEEY
properties 41,491
Interest and other gains FIE R A s 79,253
Unallocated corporate expenses RO AR (148,657)
Finance costs SR (916,045)
Change in fair value of financial SETE
instruments ATEED 32,122
Galn on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBL R 2 e 2,035
Loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary  RIEHEMB AR 2 EiE (60,176}
Gain on deemed disposals of an associate  fRIEHEEE N A2 W 2,370
Share of results of unlisted assaciates R LTEE AR EE 33,390
Profit before taxation BRI TR T 1,620,418
HK$'000
THL
Reconciliation of revenue 1N}
Total revenue for operating segments EEHBBPA 18,915,768
Rental income RO 17,797
Group's consolidated revenue SEZAEBA 18,933,565
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Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external customers
and no inter-segment sales are noted for current and prior years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Except for
segment profit of Zhongyu Gas, segment profit (loss) for remaining
reportable segments represents the profit earned by or loss from
each segment without allocation of bank interest income and other
gains, property rental income, central administration cost, change in
fair value of investment properties, gain on disposal of a subsidiary,
loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary, gain on deemed disposals
of an associate, share of results of unlisted associates and finance
costs. The segment profit of Zhongyu Gas represents share of results
of Zhongyu Gas. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

DEBMARERE(E)

NE2Hz 2B BRABKEIAETS
AEERBEFERES BREEELE

SEDENETBRREMFIMENAREE
FHBCRAER - BRAP IR D R A5 - 2T
RN D BN (E1R) 155 0 EHE F
SHEIR - WA R IRTTH S WA R B A s
Dl MERSEA - PRITBRA - KE
MEZRXFEZSY  HEWBLARZWE -
BELEMNBRAR ZBE  RIFEHEBER
Az e~ EIEIF LT E AR KA RES
BEM o PR B M8 EE PR IAR
ZEE - W ERD B RRRFEMN S [
TBELERREERNGEIDE

B %R 5 FINANCIAL REPORT 2013 61



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B ZE —E—=F=A=1+—HIFE

8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. DEEH(E)
Segment assets and liabilities NTHEEENRERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment assets and TN AAREBREZEERKET RN
segment liabilities that are regularly reviewed by the CODM: DEEENDYEEEST
At March 31, 2013 R=—F-=F=A=+—-H
Sales
Sales of of coke
piped Gas Sales of andgas  Zhongyu
natural gas connection LPG appliances gas Total
BEERE MRERRE
BERARHE  RRER HE  REHE  HRR Fk
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
TEr S TEx TEx TEx TEx
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 19,650,736 2,198,758 4,110,592 396,990 1,056,103 27,413,179
Investment properties REME 244,967
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERE

(for corporate) (&) 172,009
Prepaid lease payments BRREFIE(AR)

(for corporate) 34,914

Investments in unlisted associates RIELTHEARAEZEE 1,596,006
Available-for-sale investments HHERE 78,983
Deferred tax assets BEHBEAE 97,236
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 11,110
Assets held for sale RELEERE 347,121
Other recelvables (for corporate) Ef kiR (~A) 423,229
Pledged bank deposits CHEARTER 650,711
Bank balances and cash BUREHBERE 4,298,095
Consolidated total assets DAEERE 35,367,560
Liabilities &
Segment liabilities NEAE 1,569,480 3,137,093 235,861 115,331 - 5,057,765
Other payables (for corporate) EfEIRE(RA) 799,118
Taxation WA 179,730
Bank and other borrowings RORAMEE 15,944,848
Amount due to a non-controlling FERRBAR

interest of a subsidiary FERERTIE 4,366
Deferred taxation RIEFE 545,003
Consolidated total liabilities maBfRE 22,530,830

62 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BI#AFAZ AR A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. DEEH(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTHEENEE(E)
At March 31, 2012 R—_FE——F=H=+—H
Sales
Sales of of coke
piped Gas Sales of and gas Zhongyu
natural gas connection LPG  appliances gas Total
RIEEHRE  BERRE
EERARHE  MEEXY HE  REEE  PHMRR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FAET FAL TEL TEL
(Restated)
(E31)
Assets B
Segment assets PPEE 16,263,994 1,606,501 4,580,168 366,087 943,369 23,760,119
Investment properties RENE 450,600
Property, plant and equipment nE - BEREE(RE)

(for corporate) 174,584
Prepaid lease payments BRBEFE(AR)

(for corporate) 34,062
Investments in unlisted associates RELTBERTZRE 1,342,874
Avallable-for-sale investments HRILERE 76,658
Deferred tax assets ERPEEE 94,065
Held-for-rading investments REEERE 10,893
Other recelvables (for corporate) EfEliRIE(R7]) 402,304
Pledged bank deposits BHEMBITER 710,459
Bank balances and cash RITEHRAE 4,817,767
Consolidated total assets RABERE 31,874,385
Liabilities af
Segment liabiliies NEAE 771144 2,629,470 761,802 191,183 - 4353599
Other payables (for corporate) EfEIRIE(RA) 630,389
Taxation HE 189,339
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 15,370,162
Amount due to a non-controlling FERRBAR

interest of a subsidiary SRR IR 5,165
Deferred taxation RERE 526,741
Consolidated total liabilties maakeR 21,075,395
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8. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments:

° All assets are allocated to operating segments, except for
investments in associates other than Zhongyu Gas, available-
for-sale investments, property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments for corporate use, deferred tax assets, held-for-
trading investments, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash of the Group, and corporate assets of the Group.

° All liabilities are allocated to operating segments, except for
taxation, bank and other borrowings, amount due to a non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and deferred taxation of the
Group, and corporate liabilities of the Group.
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8. TEER(E)

8. Segment Information (Continued)

Other segment information HibpEER
Sales
Sales of of coke
piped Gas  Salesof andgas  Zhongyu  Segment
natural gas connection LPG appliances Gas total Unallocated Consolidated
i RERRE
BERARHE MRER RHRHE REME  THRRE  SBBE AR &a
HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$000
Thr TEr  TEr  TEr T TEr TEr TR
Amounts included in the meastre of RERHENEERY
segment profit or loss or segment assefs: PREENGE:
2013 “E-cf
Adaltions of prepaid lease payment BNRERERE 83,784 - - - - 83784 - 83784
Additions to goodwil HERE 145,426 - - - - 145426 - 145426
Addltions to property, plant and 0% BEREERE
equipment 2,949,993 - 11431 - - 3,064,304 876 3,065,180
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LENE  BER
equipment Bl 7,637 - 2,134 - - 9,11 - 9,11
Amortisation of intangiole assets BVEERY 46,834 - - - - 46834 - 46834
Release of prepaid lease payment HERNRETE 17,583 - 14280 - - 31863 - 31863
Depreciation of property, plant and 0% BEREERE
equipment 538,430 - 152,501 - - 690,931 4738 695,669
Alowance for trade receivables BIRNERAE - 5,049 - - - 5,949 - 5,949
Share of resuls of assocates ElBEnREE - - - - 9957 99571 240,043 339614
2012 —E-CF
Adaltions of prepaid lease payment BNRERERE 63,257 - 149713 - - 7820 - 7820
Additions to goodwil HERE - - 43,323 - - 43,323 - 43,323
Addltions to property, plant and 0% BEREERE
equipment 1,973,603 - 188106 - - 2111709 4199 2,115,908
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LENE  BER
equipment Bl 4945 - 2,701 - - 7646 - 7646
(Gain on disposal of prepad lease payments HEBNRERENRE (1,450) - - - - (1480) - (1,450)
Amortisation of intangiole assets EVEEER 46,264 - - - - et - 5t
Release of prepaid lease payment HERNRETE 20,391 - 13554 - - BWS 33945
Depreciation of property, plant and 0% BEREERE
equipment 424,607 - 127423 - - 502030 4939 556,969
Alowance for rade recelvables BARNES R - 2290 - - - 2290 - 2290
Share of resuls of assocates ElBEnREE - - - - 53018 83018 33300 86408
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8. Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
location of external customers:

DEER(E)

REBNEBETBUNPHE -

TRERAEEIZINAZT P FRELE 5B YK

ADHT

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Hong Kong B 836 960
PRC s 21,249,430 18,932,605
21,250,266 18,933,565

None of the customers contributed over 10% of total revenue of the
Group.

The following is the information about non-current assets other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets by the geographical area
in which the assets are located:

BMEZPEAEEBWAIO%AL

AT RiREEMELEI D HIERBEE (SR
TRMERERIAEERINNEHR

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAxT

Hong Kong B 156,168 146,300
PRC s 23,872,797 20,631,044
24,028,965 20,777,344
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9. Other Income 9. HflA
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Interest income FlBUA 79,978 78,884
Subsidies from PRC BB R 2
governmental authorities: N
— compensation for loss — R RERSIHN
incurred in coal EEMEE (MiTa)
gas operation (note a) 22,552 14,757
— subsidy for replacement —BRMRARBEEE
of pipelines for natural gas 2Ry (M5ED)
supply (note b) 83,795 66,223
— tax refund (note c) —iBRB (FsFe) 26,082 5,743
Repair and maintenance HIERIREIRGE
services fee 27,002 21,109
Other services income E RIS WA 58,723 50,668
Income from gas storage FRRERA
containers 42,251 39,515
Income from leasing of equipment i FH R IR 33,412 28,955
Transportation income EUA 30,512 26,986
Others A 55,218 51,178
459,525 384,018
Notes: Bt
(8)  Pursuant to notice of compensation dated August 28, 2007 (@) REPEEEBFEENR_ZZ+F)/\A
issued by the relevant government authority in the PRC, HEJE ZHNBEEOHEBNE  ARRINE
BT R AR AR HENERYR"), a subsidiary of the Company, N EEIEF R T R A R A R ([ HEEHR
received a compensation from the government authority during B BRER Z MBS E R T BRI 15 B
both years to subsidise for the increase in cost of sales of natural B AR RAREER AL N2 ER
gas by reference to monthly purchase volume by #JIE= #X. BRIz G RABESE) -
() For the year ended March 31, 2013, #& JlE ff #& and /£ 5@ & ) BE-ZTE—=F-A=1+—HLFE &

TR ERBRAR(HEMPM") received a subsidy of
HK$41,100,000 (2012: HK$33,524,000) and HK$10,831,000
(2012: HK$12,791,000) from ¥EIET B KB and FE A T &%
B2 B respectively for the cost incurred for connection contracts
relating to pipeline network for customers in new urban areas and
replacement of old pipeline network of the natural gas users in
Fushun city and Zhuangha city respectively. All the required work
has been completed by #EIEF KX and FEJAT R #E. All the costs
incurred were recognised as cost of sales in profit or loss during

the year.

In addition, YEFE IR T ERER QB (EBFR"), a subsidiary
of the Company, received subsidies of HK$25,114,000 for the
year (2012: HK$19,908,000) from MM EE for its additional
costs incurred in certain gas connection contracts in which the
connection fee is fixed by the relevant government authority in the

PRC.

JIE R A K S AR BRI T A R B R A R A )
(THEAT AR MR 1) o0 B 408 2 JIE 7 B BB R
AT R AR B BE B M B B 41,000,000
B t( = F — — 33,524,000 7T )
}10,831,0008 w( = T — = F:
12,791,000/ 7)) * LA BIEBhH#EIET K&
amFmERFEBEREM I EREN
MRARAFMESERBERELENK
AN o BB R K FER PR B SERCET B IR E
TIFF - FTBRABRAFE 2 B ER
BHERA o

SN FRAR BB R FER RS
BERABRAB(ERPRRDEER T
B BEB#EE25,114,0008T(ZE——=
F 119,908,000 T) + AMRLE T
MABEH(ERmERE BT EE B
FIH RS B ) FTEE £ 2 BEONR AR »
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9. Other Income (Continued) 9.

10.

Notes: (Continued)

During the year ended March 31, 2013, in order to attract
business in Dangyang city, the government authority provided a
subsidy of HK$6,750,000 (2012: nil) to &S RRARBRAR],
a subsidiary of the Company for the cost incurred in the certain

gas connection contracts.

(c)  The PRC government authorities have granted a tax incentive to
certain subsidiaries in the PRC by way of tax refund for natural gas

Hi A ()
Wi : ()

BE-Z-—=F=A=+—ALFE
BIEEBTERARESEY - BITH
B A2 A A Rl E R MR AR

PR A A2 48 856,750,000 T ( = &

=

—EE) UABETRRERALOM

EEZKA -

© FEBNREERE -BEVNEREBDTE
THEMBAR - AEBERFELER

business operated in the PRC. RRFBLBA -
s¢ - 1o
Other Gains and Losses 10. Rtz k&R
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other gains and losses comprise: EAtb a5 K BB B
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & E R B M W (HFE42)
(note 42) 2,421 2,035
Loss on deemed disposal of RIEHEM B R R HEE (FisE43)
a subsidiary (note 43) - (60,176)
Gain on desmed disposals of REH S & QR U (EE21()
an associate (note 21(a)) - 2,370
Change in fair value of WEMENN T EZE
investment properties 96,865 41,491
Change in fair value of BIFEEREN AT EZ S
held-for-trading investments 217 (1,055)
Allowance for trade B 5 FE U AR SR (T 5E29)
receivables (note 29) (5,949) (2,290)
Change in fair value of derivative  $TAE &R T AR T EE S (F7E34)
financial instruments (note 34) - 32,122
Exchange gain PE 5 Mz 133,382 117,930
226,936 132,427
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11.

12,

Finance Costs 11. BIBEA
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Interest on: LATIEE 2 FIE -
Bank loans and other ARAFAZHEEZ
borrowings wholly repayable RITERREMEER
within five years 583,493 607,492
Bank loans and other borrowings HBERAFRNEZHEE 2
not wholly repayable RITERREMEER
within five years 292,991 294,958
876,484 902,450
Net interest expense on RIS E 7 FH B
interest rate swaps - 81,213
Interest capitalised to BRTEEIRERZFE
construction in progress (149,495) (67,618)
726,989 916,045
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general REBRNECEFTBEAZEERKVEAS —
borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a capitalisation rate BMEEERS  KANAEREENEXZ
of 5.98% (2012: 5.89%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying 598%(=F—_F : 5,80%)FEERNLE
assets. FTE .
Taxation 12. FiE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS 462,358 485,725
Deferred taxation (note 39) EIEFLIE (MI7E39) 4,273 (7,223)
466,631 478,502

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no assessable
profit derived in Hong Kong for both years.

The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% except for the tax relief
explained below.

HAARENZMEFELERNETBELR
ARBE N WML RREEA M BRI EEF
BRIELRRAE -

BT BRBRRIN
R25% °

B A 2 B
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12. Taxation (Continued) 12.

Certain PRC group entities are entitled to (i) the preferential tax rate
pursuant to the relevant regulations applicable to enterprises situated
in the western regions of the PRC and (i) an exemption from PRC
Enterprise Income Tax for the two years starting from their first profit-
making year, followed by a 50% tax deduction in the three years
thereafter. The applicable tax rates of those PRC group entities ranged
from 7.5% to 16% for the year ended March 31, 2013 (2012: 7.5%
to 156%).

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

BIE ()

ETHEEEEREEZE)REMABER
BRARMNAPBEASEOCENERR
L Ry eHEEg@ERRFERTMENSP
BMEMEH  REEA=FHERY - HZE
ZE—=F=A=+—HLFE ZEHH
SEERBNERAMENT75%E15% (ZF
— 5 7 B5%E15%) °

FEMIBEEGE 2 WARK RS TAT (8
B\ $RRT

as follows:
Hong Kong PRC Total
EE FE Fob
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
~%-=fF Z%--f -%-=Ff —T--F -%-=F _T--F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00
Tz TET THT TET Tz THEL
(Loss) profit before taxation FRTEA (B8 )R F (9,154)  (142,881) 2,517,103 1,763,299 2,507,949 1,620,418
Tax at the domestic income tax rate BAMET SRR
FEZHE (1,511)  (23575) 629,276 440,825 627,765 417,250
Tax effect of share of results of associates  JEEB S ARIEE 2
BEYE = - (84,904)  (21,602)  (84,904) (21,602
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FEIAM E AR
for tax purpose Pl 5 pia 7 812 16,602 11,709 11,566 12,521 28,168
Tax effect of income not taxable RIEN S AR
for tax purpose WAz FEE R (1,659) (8177)  (49,389)  (24580)  (51,048)  (32,757)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses WEER 2 (B HE
not recognised Eﬂ%zwﬁ%i& 2,358 15,150 132,003 136,817 134,361 151,967
Tax effect of income tax at REBERRTEP
concessionary rate B2 WA %;’E. - - (172,064)  (64,524)  (172,064)  (64,524)
Taxation R - - 466,631 478502 466,631 478,502

Note: The applicable tax rate for Hong Kong and PRC are 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) and 25% (2012: 25%) respectively.

70 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BI¥AFAZ AR A A

Misk: BELRTEAZBEREMES R A165%
(ZZT——F 1 165%) Mo5% (=T ——
&1 25%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME
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13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13. FE&RF

2013 2012
—E—= —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAxT
Profit for the year has been arived  FEHMEBHER (GTA) THIEE ¢
at after charging (crediting):
Auditor's remuneration ZE RN & 6,800 6,500
Depreciation of property, Y BEMEBEZITE
plant and equipment 695,669 566,969
Release of prepaid lease payments 3EFBNHE KA 31,863 33,045
Amortisation of intangible assets BIRERIHEN AR B & E
included in cost of sales 46,834 46,264
Minimum lease payments for LERK KR
operating leases in respect of:
— rented premises —HEME 89,460 66,075
— equipment — A 20,166 55,119
109,626 121,194
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BELREZEE
plant and equipment 9,771 7,646
Gain on disposal of HEBMNEEREN RS
prepaid lease payments - (1,450)
Share of tax of associates FE{GEE = A BIFLIE
(included in share of results of (BREEEBEATEEN)
associates) 151,119 31,404
Staff costs: BITRUA :
Directors’ emoluments (note 14) EEME (KIsE14) 42,339 13,689
Salaries and allowances HithE 8 2 5B &k Eek
of other staff 845,734 700,197
Contributions to retirement benefit  BE B & [AEREFFT B3R
scheme contributions
of other staff 177,309 132,267
Less: Amount capitalised in B BRERIREAZSHE
construction in progress (59,204) (43,210)
1,006,178 802,943
Cost of inventories recognised HUTHEECERARI 2 HFERA ¢
as expenses in respect of:
Sales of piped natural gas BEBRARIMEE 7,313,131 6,000,173
Sales of LPG BIEAHRIEE 7,161,839 7,204,037
Contract costs recognised as MMARERIRENERBRAX
expense in respect of gas ZEHIKA
connection construction contracts 953,815 919,476
Sales of coke and gas appliances MR R AL R E 545,164 475,382
15,973,949 14,599,068
Rental income from investment WEYHEEEZESIWA
properties less outgoings TSz $51,522,000% 7T
of HK$1,522,000 (ZZ—=% : 3,361,000/ 7T)
(2012: HK$3,361,000) (14,464) (14,436)
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14. Directors’ and Executive Chairman’s 14. EERFTEEMS
Emoluments
Directors =
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 15 (2012: 15) directors ENRENS15R(ZE—ZF - 168)EF
and the chief executive were as follow: RITHBE e
2013
—E-=
Contributions
Salaries Special Share- to retirement
Directors’ and other bonus based benefits Total
fees benefits payments payments scheme  emoluments
HER Py BAER

Exhe RARA BRRA MR BE I Besg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn Thn Thn TER TR Thn

(Note vii)
(PfzEi)
Executive Chaiman WIER
r, Liu Ming Hui (Note BJoE LA (F3) - 2,010 - - 8 2,018
Execuve directors HhES
Mr. Leung Wing Cheong, Eric PkELE
(Deputy Managing Director] (BlEzBIR) - 6,949 4,000 349 15 11,313
Mr, Pang Ying Xue BASEE - 5,547 3,000 - 15 8,562
M. Znu Wel Wei REERE - 4,851 2,000 - 15 6,866
Mr. Ma Jin Long SekfiE - 3,485 1,500 - - 4,985
Non-execuive drectors HnES
M. Feng Zhuo Zni BESLE 240 600 - - - 840
Mr. Premesh Kumar Jain Premesh Kumar Jan%t & 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Muham Basheer Abdullah Al-Jart Mulnam Basheer Abdullah
(Note i) A-Jert5E (HiEhi) 90 - - - - %0
Mr. Mark Douglas Gelinas (Note ii Mark Douglas Gelinas2E 4 (P i) - - - - - -
Mr. Jo Yamagata (Note vij LR (ki) 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Moon Duk Kyu (Note vi) JEES A (ki) 240 - - - - 240
r. Kim Yong Joong Note i} SRMEE(FE) - 1,503 - - - 1,503
Independent non-executive directors BUiTES
Ms. Wong Sin Yue, Cynthia BEMLL 480 3,836 - - - 4,316
M. Zhao Yu Hua BEERE 480 - - - - 480
Dr. Meo Er Wan ITEfT 480 - - - - 480
Mr. Ho Yeung (Note i) A St (B ) 90 - - - - 90
Ms. Chen Yan Yan {Note v} RERL (M) 76 - - - - 76
2,656 28,781 10,500 349 53 42,339
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14. Directors’ and Executive Chairman’s
Emoluments (Continued)

Directors (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(vil)

Appointed as a non-executive director on August 17, 2012, became
an executive director on September 10, 2012 and appointed as
Executive Chairman on April 18, 2013

Appointed as alternate to Mr. Moon Duk Kyu on September 2,
2011 and resigned on April 18, 2013 as alternative to Mr. Moon
Duk Kyu

Appointed as alternate to Mr. Mulham Basheer Abdullah Al-Jarf on
April 20, 2011 and resigned on August 16, 2012

Appointed on December 12, 2012

Appointed on December 31, 2012

Resigned on August 16, 2012

Resigned on April 18, 2013

The special bonus payments was paid to the relevant directors for
the additional duties and responsibilities that they assumed during
the period starting from December 31, 2010 for Mr. Leung Wing
Cheong, Eric and Mr. Zhu Wei Wel, January 28, 2011 for Mr. Pang
Ying Xue and March 1, 2011 for Mr. Ma Jin Long, in each case up
to March 31, 2012, which are stated in the employment contracts
of respective directors as approved by the special general meeting
of the shareholders of the Company on September 10, 2012.

14. EBRBITEIEME(E)

EE(E)

fias -

(0

(i)

(i)

v)

(M)

(vi)

(viil)

WZE-——FNATEREZERIERT
B R_Z——HFAATERRNTE
FUR-_ZE-—=FHA+TN\REZELRH
(RE

RZE——FNAZREZEANEE
EMETESTR -_T—=FMA+/\A
BHE

R-_ZET——FEMA-_+BHEZTA
Mulham Basheer Abdullah Al-Jarfc 4 #)
BEEEYR T —F/\A T EBBE

RIZE——F+-A+-HEZE

RZE-——HF+-A=+—HEZE

KB \ATARBHE

WZE—=FN A+ N\BEHE

RRRERBR-_Z——FAATHEHK
RAIRRFRIAE EIEN S ESNRM
EHMEMESRENEIMNRE(B-F
—ZE+-A=+—HREHHE  2KEX
ERREEEE AT ——F A=+
NHEHRE : ERBEENE T ——F
—A—BEHE : SegEsd s DaHE
VME_ZT-—F=ZA=+—-B1DRAKSE
S RITEAL -
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14. Directors’ and Executive Chairman’s

Emoluments (Continued)

14. EBRBITEEME(E)

2012
—EB——F
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
Directors' and other ~ Share-based benefits Total
fees Denefits payments scheme  emoluments
2R bARR RINER
Exe  HilEN FRANR AR BegE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHET TAL TEL FHEL
Independent non-executive chaperson B FEHUTER
Ms. Wong Sin Yue, Cynthia BEPLT 480 - 457 - 937
Execiive directors BITES
M. Leung Wing Cheong, Eric PKERE - 2,808 752 12 3,572
M. Pang Ying Xue BEZSE - 1,043 - - 1,043
M. Zhu Wel Wei AERTHE - 480 609 12 1,101
Mr. Ma Jin Long Sk e 300 646 609 - 1,555
Mr. Li Xiao Yun (Note i FNELAE () - - - - -
Mr. Xu Ying (Note | REREE) - - - - -
Mr. Liu Ming Hui (Note i) S8R5 A () - - - - -
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Feng Zhuo Zhi BEERE 240 575 457 - 1,272
M. Jo Yamagata INERE A 240 - 457 - 697
Mr. Premesh Kumar Jain Premesh Kumar Jain%t £ 268 - - - 258
Mr. Moon Duk Kyu NEERE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Kim Yong Joong (Note i) SELE (M) - - - - -
Mr. Mulham Basheer Abdullah Al-Jarf Mulham Basheer Abdullan Al-Jart & 240 - - - 240
Mr. Mark Douglas Gelinas (Note il Mark Douglas Gelinas 4 (P &¥iif) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUENTES
M. Zhao Yu Hua BEERE 480 - 457 - 937
Dr. Mao Er Wen FIEET 480 - 457 - 937
2,958 6,452 4,255 24 13,689
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14. EBRBITEIEME(E)

14. Directors’ and Executive Chairman’s

Emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Removed on April 26, 2011
(ii) Appointed as alternate to Mr. Moon Duk Kyu on September 2,
2011

(i) Appointed as alternate to Mr. Mulham Basheer Abdullah Al-Jarf on
April 20, 2011

Mr. Liu Ming Hui ("‘Mr. Liu") is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive. Apart from the emoluments
payables to Mr. Liu for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013
disclosed above, during the year ended March 31, 2013, Mr. Liu
received HK$33,814,000 and HK$17,834,000 as the bonus payments
for the financial years ended March 31, 2010 and 20711 respectively in
accordance with the terms of his services contract with the Company
as detailed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Remuneration Committee received a note from Mr. Liu in respect of
his declaration to donate, the entire proceeds from the bonus payment
made to him for the financial years ended March 31, 2010 and 2011
as an obligation on him to establish a foundation. This foundation
aims to incentivise the directors, senior management and staff of the
Company for their contribution, past and future, to the Company and
to reward supporters to the Company for their legitimate help in the
Company's development paths.

MiaE

0] R-ZE——FMA -+ NBHER

iy M-ZEB——FAA-BEEEAEEE
ENEATES

i)y RZZTE——FWONA-THEZEA
Mulham Basheer Abdullah Al-Jarft 4 &)
BIE=s

2B E(RLEEDMABEARR ZITHE
b EZINS B EREEEITRAR
RHOBREAZAGE - BRLEAMEZREEE-T
——ERZE-ZFZAZ+RALFEEN
RlEAEZIEN RBEE-T—=F=-A=+
—BALFE - BEEREBARRZREEL
BER(FRBHNREVBREME)REBEE=Z
—EER-E——FZA=Z+—ALVREE
% Bl Yg BL33,814,0005% 7T & 17,834,000/ JT &Y
B - HNEZ B WEIZ L ERNBA - BAK
ERBE2_T—TFRZF—F=RA=+—
Bt BEEmESRELSEY  EAEKT
EeWEY ZESECRDARAEE &
MEBABREIHARNRBERKEAMESR
WEE  YEEARRIHFERNRAANER
BIRFIREMEZED -
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15. Emoluments of Employees

During the year ended March 31, 2013, of the five individuals with the
highest emoluments in the Group, five (2012: three) were directors
which included the Executive Chairman of the Company whose
emoluments are included in note 14. The emoluments of the remaining
two individuals including one individual before the appointment as
director for the year ended March 31, 2012 were as follows:

REBEE-_Z—=F=-A=+—HLEFE &K
SEsRFHcAAEAF  AH(ZE—=
F:ZR)REZ(BEARANTER) &
BB KT FE14 - HBpMA AL (EFR—
CREZERESHINREE-ZE——F=A=
T—HIFEZMESHT :

HK$'000
FHET
Salaries and other benefits e RHAET 3,244
Retirement benefit scheme IRIRIRAET B FR

contributions 24
Share-based payments BARZ D FE =T R 564
3,832

Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZMSEEMT ¢
No. of
employee
EBEAH

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T2 1,500,000/ 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T ZE 2,500,000/ 7T

1
1

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the chief executive or the
directors as an inducement to join the Group or as a compensation
for loss of office for both years.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during both years.
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16. Dividends 16. R E
2013 2012
—E—=F ZE—ZfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Final dividend paid in respect BEfEE—ZE—=—F=A=1+—H
of financial year ended IETERFE
March 31, 2012 of HK$0.0892  &M%0.08928 7T (ZFT—_%F :
(2012: HK$0.022 in respect BHE-_ZT——F=A=+—H1Lt
of financial year ended FFE &880.022/87T)
March 31, 2011) per share 2 ARHRR S 100,493 96,395
Interim dividend paid in respect B EEZT—Z—FHhA=1+AHL
of six months ended 7~ A & 0.0227 7T 2 R ERRR B
September 30, 2012 of
HK$0.022 per share 177,167 -
277,660 96,395
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of RI|EHRE  EFERRBEHE-_T—=
HK$0.0628 in respect of the year ended March 31, 2013 (2012: FZAZ+—BLEFEEHR0.0628FL(=
final dividend of HK$0.0392 in respect of the year ended March 31, T-—F HE-_ZE-——F=A=1+—H1t
20712) per share has been proposed by the directors and is subject to FEFRK0.0392B Lz REAKE ) 2 REARR
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. B MEZE SRR SR JE i AR R K & e 5 AT
Z .
17. Earnings Per Share 17. BREF|

DTV AN IR AR R B T
THIEMHE -

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FAET
Eamings for the purposes of FTESREALEE
basic and diluted earnings BRzABR (BARAREA A
per share, being profit for JEAEFE R A])
the year attributable to owners
of the Company 1,764,264 953,926
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17. Earnings Per Share (Continued) 17. BRER(E)

2013 2012

—E2—= —ET——%F

’000 ‘000

T B &
Weighted average number of AEERERANZ
ordinary shares for the purpose & 3B INAE T

of basic earnings per share 4,481,353 4,383,055

Adjustment for effect of dilutive TRIRBETEE ERE
potential ordinary shares:

Share options HEh e 305,089 258,977
Weighted average number of SEEREERT
ordinary shares for the purpose &3 INAE T
of diluted earnings per share 4,786,442 4,642,032
18. Investment properties 18. BEYH
HK$'000
FAET
At April 1, 2011 RZE——FMHA—H 408,135
Exchange adjustments Rk 7,219
Deemed disposal of a RIEL KB A F
subsidiary (note 43) (FM§3£43) (6,245)
Change in fair value NEEEH) 41,491
At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 450,600
Exchange adjustments Rk 8,551
Change in fair value NEEEH) 96,865
Amounts reclassified as ENMOEARBIELENEESSE
assets held for sale (311,049)
At March 31, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 244,967
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18. REWME (&

18. Investment properties (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties are analysed as follows: NEBEZIHEYMESTWT -
2013 2012
-—2—= —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Properties held under EHRHBEORE 2 ME
medium term leases:
- in Hong Kong —[IREE 119,000 108,550
—in the PRC — A EY 125,967 342,050
244,967 450,600

The fair value of the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong
at March 31, 2013 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out as at that date by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited.
The resulting surplus of HK$10,450,000 (2012: HK$2,670,000) was
included in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to comparable market transactions
for similar properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties in the PRC at March
31, 20183 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
at these dates by CB Richard Ellis Limited. The resulting surplus of
HK$86,415,000 (2012: HK$38,821,000) was credited to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction price for similar properties
in the same locations and conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the
Group’s investment properties has been measured based on the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amounts entirely through
use.

REBMURBEAZRENER =T —=F
A=+t BZAFEDNREFNEITIE
MAERARNZBETZHESH - Al
EE 210,450,000 TBHB(ZTE—=F:
2,670,000 L) BES AR E 2 EWATRE -
HEDLEEUMEZ AILTISERSHEH

RZZE—=F=ZA=+—8 ' AEEMRNF
Bz EMEZ A FEDREHMHZIETE
RARRZERSHET ZHESSE - At
EHE 2864150008 THHB(ZTE——F:
38,821,000 7L ) E 5 Afr & 2 @ A R
xR MENSEHUMENERMIZNE X
EHTZ2MERHERMSH °

AEBZBRBELEROFEARBRES K
EREAREE 2 MERE AR FEENE
ERBETARLEREDE -

RTENAAFERUGENREMEES
BIRIERIE - AABERCD IR AEEHNK
EMEAE  BRRAEEREMEIRE
B R M IFE B E RRRENERES
MBABORENESBROEBEAR
B Bl RAEAREEREMEARLTH
B BT MAAFERIAENR
EMENFREEEBHE2BRONORKZ
ERHER - it BRAKEREMENE
ERBCDRFEBER 2RO EREENR
BRRAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZE —E—=F=A=+—HIEFE

19. Property, Plant and Equipment 19. 1% - BENRREE
Leasehold Machinery  Furniture
land and Construction and and Motor
buildings ~ Pipelines inprogress equipment  fitures  vehicles  Vessels Total
HELH BER  BRR

it & BE ERIR O BF ERRE 0RE MM it
HKG000  HKBOOD  HKSO00  HKBOOD  HKBOOD  HKSO000  HKBOOO  HK$000
TR TEr TRt TEr  TAr  TEr  TEr A

oSt TS

A Apil 1, 2011 RZT——£mA-H 2010704 8114370 2321462 2307919 174021 335416 257503 15,541,395
Exchange adjustments EfE% 37201 179085 B1035 54 4114 771 693% 340915
Additions e 56064 406492 1462520 102315 3207 52310 - 2115908
Acquired on acquisition of a business WEEBmE 7437 919 - 588 728 - - 14985
Disposal for the year FRiiE (3,33)  (59,089) - 348 (3593 (8833 (59.951) (138,050)
Disposal of a subsidiary LERBAR (3,740] - - - (162) (121) -
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary Bt ERBAE (96,376) (637,168) (342,040) (10450)  (4342)  (35,502) - (1219578
Reclassfication BN 76466 618067 (775967) 80,636 198 - - -
At March 31, 2012 WoB-—EZF=+-R 2084400 8623276 2717010 2464627 207171 350541 204487 16651532
Exchange adjustments EfE% 036 2159 714718 63748 5140 8593 5783 408736
Additions e AT 469308 2178998 175599 63820 103,194 - 3,065,180
Acquired on acquisition of businesses WEEBRE 16578 78738 118149 1893 1125 14537 - 248082
Disposal for the year FRiliE (1,980 (24,755) - 4864 (6983 (28800 - 738
Disposal of a subsidiary LERBAR - - (605) - (275 (129) - 2179
Reclassfication ENAE 05913 1282604 (1415000) 66,492 - - - -
At March 31, 2013 RoB-ZE=F=+-0 2281488 10640860 3670020 2784537 270007 446770 210270 20,303,952
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TEREE

A Apil 1, 2011 WZF-—FBA-H 175300 883,676 - 3B BL6M 142421 43424 1741726
Exchange adjustments Eraz 3433 20,693 - 05 1499 333 1060 39,548
Provided for the year ERERE 06854 265,161 - 153351 299 24046 23708 556,969
Eliminated on disposals HERHR (2375 (16,546) - (1549 (30%) (1480  (52,261)  (77,309)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidlary HENBLARMR (1,242) - - - (121) (56) - 1419
Eiminated on deemed disposal of a subsidiary BiELERBAT RN (3708 (15,376) N (] (T4 (4084 - (3158
At March 31, 2012 R-T-EZf=1-F 238,357 1,137,608 - 588787 82123 165128 15931 2207934
Bxchange adjusiments EXF% 4057 27839 - 14820 2,031 4017 399 54,083
Provided for the year EREE 85465 345,983 - ATTE6 29107 52218 530 695,669
Eliminated on disposals HERHR (13%)  [B587) - I B4 (15879) - (31446)
Eiminated on disposal of a subsidiary HERBR RGN - - - - (76) (141) - (217)
At March 31, 2013 W-T-ZEZA=+-A 307,383 1502843 - 778999 100771 205347 21600 2946003
CARRYING VALUES HEfE

At March 31, 2013 RIE-ZEZAZH-A 1954105 9138017 3670020 2005538 160236 241423 188,610 17,357,949
At March 31, 2012 RIE-ZEZF=+-RA 1846063 7485668 2717010 1875840 125048 185413 188556 14423508
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

19. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 19. ¥ - MERRE(E)

The carrying value of land and buildings of the Group shown above AEBMNR Mt ZAE T RIEFT 2R
is situated on land with the following lease terms: HENREBEBRNOT :
2013 2012
—E—= —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
In Hong Kong REE
Long lease RHEATEA 27,509 27,660
In PRC NGy
Long lease RHEAFAA) 481,649 454,600
Medium term lease AR A 1,444,947 1,363,803
1,954,105 1,846,063
The pipelines of the Group are located in the PRC. REEZ REBLIATE -
The above items of property, plant and equipment other than iy BELMREEE(TEEEEL
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis at )R EEF AT FRITE

the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the HETMEEFT HYOBTNEHRN50F
remaining terms of the REE
leases or 50 years

Pipelines Over the shorter of 30 years B 0FHBEBAFZ
or the operation period of K FHREE
the relevant company

Machinery and equipment 5% — 10% e 2 2R 5% — 10%

Furniture and fixtures 15% — 50% ERRETEEE  15% - 50%

Motor vehicles 25% B 25%

Vessels 7% (new vessels acquired Wiha T%(REHEREAZ
from suppliers) or Friafa) sk

34% (acquired from second 34%(W=ZFiimEA)

hand market)

At March 31, 2013, interest capitalised in construction in progress R-ZB—=F=ZA=+—H0 BREZTE
amounted to HK$149,495,000 (2012: HK$67,618,000). E AR 2 F| B A149,495 0008 T( —ZE — =

£ : 67,618,000 7T) °

As at March 31, 2013, the Group is in the process of obtaining title RZZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—B  *&EIE
deeds from relevant government authorities for its land and buildings EEE111,073,0008 (8 — — & :
in the PRC amounting to HK$111,073,000 (2012: HK$111,238,000). 111,238,000/ 7L ) U P B 2 L3 A8 F
In the opinion of the directors, the Group is not required to incur RERBSHAENMEERN - EFR
additional cost in obtaining the title deeds for its land and buildings B AKRETERERTE L REFZA
in the PRC. BRER L) E L ERINKA »

As at March 31, 2013, the directors of the Company considered RZEB-—=ZF=ZR=1T—H FARAFAEER
that the leasehold land and buildings elements in respect of certain RETHRTEZYERKEE125,264,000
properties located in the PRC with carrying value of HK$125,264,000 BIL(ZF— "% : 114,250,000 7T ) 2
(2012: HK$114,250,000) cannot be separately identified. B REFHYEEDFHBR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B ZE—E—=F=A=1+—HIFE

20. Prepaid Lease Payments

21.

20. ENAEERE

2013 2012
- 2= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
The Group’s prepaid lease AEEZENEE
payments comprise: RIABE
Leasehold land in the PRC R 2 HE T
Long lease RHEATEA 554,961 601,404
Medium term lease FRHEATEAY 611,760 526,197
1,166,721 1,127,601
Analysed for reporting PLERIRE Mz DT
purposes as
Non-current portion FEBNERER D 1,132,135 1,093,945
Current portion BIEAER 34,586 33,656
1,166,721 1,127,601

The leasehold land and land use rights are charged to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the

term of the leases.

During the year, the Group is in the process of obtaining title deeds
from relevant government authorities for its prepaid lease payments in
the PRC amounting to HK$26,615,000 (2012: HK$25,541,000). In the
opinion of the directors, the Group is not required to incur additional
cost in obtaining the title deeds for its prepaid lease payments in

the PRC.

Investments in Associates

MELH R LERENERERBEFH

FAGEZEBARE

FR - REBIE R EEE26,6150007% 7T
(ZZ——4F : 25,541,000 T )RR EZ
TENMAERIE - 1B BBUR LB AR
Y EERE AEETSHAERFEHTE
NHEEREZ FTERRLMEETINKA -

21. RBERTIZRE

2013 2012
—E—= —F——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cost of investments in associates: ERELE N EZ KA
Listed in Hong Kong REBEM 881,766 869,679
Unlisted LT 1,049,794 1,026,960
Share of pre-acquisition dividend 71 Uk B8 BT A% 2, (1,296) (1,296)
Share of post-acquisition profit DR S T K
and other comprehensive HEma2mlA
income (net of dividend received) — (FNERFTHAY B.) 488,875 157,930
Discount on acquisition g1 A=V i
of associates 232,970 232,970
2,652,109 2,286,243
Fair value of listed investments,  tHREZ AFE
based on quoted market price (EmSHRETE) 3,024,461 1,000,741
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

21. Investments in Associates (Continued) 21, REEERTIZRE ()
The Group had interests in the following associates: REBRUTHEATHEEERZ

Proportion of

nominal value
Place of Principal of registered/
Form of registration/  place of Class of issued capital
Name of entity business structure incorporation  operations capital held by the Group Principal activities
/R TEEE KE@ABER/
ERER ERRERA HE e RAER BRIRAEELS TEEH
2013 2012
—T-=f C-T-CZf
% %
BEEMIRRRIERR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 44,00 44,00 Sales of natural gas,
BRAR joint venture gas pipeline construction
POEERE HE HE B} ARARHE MABBRR
EESREERNHERATA Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 38.69 38.69 Exploration, collection
joint venture transportation, purification
and sales of natural gas
PORERE P ik i B W& BH OFLR
HERRR
EEMALREAXAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 47.83 47.83 Sales of natural gas
BRAF joint venture
PORERE B HE i RARHE
BRETERABRELAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 48.00 48.00 Sales of nature gas and
joint venture gas pipeline construction
PORERE PE ik B} ARRHERMAEBRER
BEM=3RLRARAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 33.20 33.20 Sales of LPG
company
BREMRH HE HE B} HERLARR
RELBIEERLARAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 29.05 29.05 Refining process, storage
company of LPG
BRELRR HE HE i RICRBRRRRNIEE K
HLEREESRAAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 25.00 25.00 Sales of natural gas,
BRAR company gas pipeline construction
BRELAR PE $E B} ARRHE MAEBER
BERRARERAH Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 24.00 24.00 Sales of natural gas
company
BREMRH P E HE B} AARHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

21. Investments in Associates (Continued) 21. REE QR ZRE(E)
Proportion of
nominal value
Place of Principal of registered/
Form of registration/ place of Class of issued capital
Name of entity business structure incorporation operations capital held by the Group Principal activities
/R TEEX KEEAEER/
ERER EBRBYR ks HE RAER BRTRAEELS TEER
2013 2012
“B-=f —T-Zf
% %
RNRRBEERRBRAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 24.00 24.00 Sales of natural gas,
company gas pipeline construction
BREMAR HE PE B} ARRHE MAEBRER
EMEZREARAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 24.00 24,00 Sales of natural gas
company
BRELRR HE HE i} AARHE
BNPERRARAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 40.00 40.00 Sales of LPG
(T3 ) company
BRELAR HE FE i HERLAAR
Zhongyu Gas Limited liability Cayman PRC Ordinary 44.05 44.07 Investment holding,
company Island (note a) (note a) sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
PHRIRERE BREERT HEEE i il (M&ta) (Mzta) REZR  RAEHER
REgERR
Panva Gas Holdings Limited Limited liability British PRC Ordinary 49.00 49.00 Investment holding,
(‘Panva Gas’) company Virgin (note b) (note b) sales of LPG
Islands
(BVI")
BIRSARERAE AREEAF EBRLES HE il (M&Ep) (M) REARR  BERAMER
(IBImgl) (EBRLHE])
BNDEHRARATRE Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 44.00 - Sales of natural gas,
FRERDA( DR company (note ¢) gas pipeline construction
BRELAR HE FE i (e RARHE  MATERR
SETREARRERARA Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 35.00 - Sales of natural gas,
("$ETRT) company (note d) gas pipeline construction
BREMAR HE PE B} (MzEd) ARRHE MAEBRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

21. Investments in Associates (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

During the year March 31, 2012, Zhongyu Gas, which is listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Group and became an associate as a result of the share placing
by Zhongyu Gas as detailed in note 43 which has been completed
on April 18, 2011. The Group’s effective interest in Zhongyu Gas
was reduced from approximately 56.33% to approximately 46.96%.
On the same date, the fair value of the interests in Zhongyu Gas
held by the Company is HK$867,309,000.

On November 11, 2011 and March 24, 2012, 30,200,000 options
and 124,800,000 options were exercised at an exercise price of
HK$0.49 per share in accordance with the share option scheme
of Zhongyu Gas. As a result of the exercises of share options,
the Group’s effective interest in Zhongyu Gas was reduced
from approximately 46.96% to approximately 46.37% and from
approximately 46.37% to approximately 44.07% respectively. The
aggregate amount of gain on deemed disposals of an associate of
HK$2,370,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2012.

During the year March 31, 2013, 1,000,000 options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.49 per share in accordance with the
share option scheme of Zhongyu Gas. As a result of the exercises
of share options, the Group's effective interest in Zhongyu Gas was
reduced from approximately 44.07% to approximately 44.05%. The
change in Group’s effective interest has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial position.

On March 10, 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement (“Equity Transfer Agreement”)
with independent third parties (‘Panva Gas Vendors”) to acquire
100% equity interest in Panva Gas at a total cash consideration of
HK$530,000,000. Panva Gas is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in retail business of LPG
in the PRC.

21. REENT2RE(E)

Wi

(@)

REE-_ZT——F=A=1+—BItFE
PRRR(REBBRA LR =T ——
FUA+NBEEBRMES EHE(GFRW
F143)  BHA BRI TBAAEENE
NRIMKAREEEE QG - KEBERF
WRRNEBRIERERL56.33%M =4
46.96% ° R B + AR B AT R e R |
2 A FEB867,309,000/ 7T °

R_Z——F+—A+—A8AKk=F—=F
ZRAZ4MA - REPERRZ ERERT
£l + 30,200,00017 % Rx # % 124,800,000
DB ERTIR049B L2 ITEEET
fF o ARTTEBRE RNEERPHBR
RMERIFRE D BB A46.96%% =4
46.37% % #4746 .37 % = #144.07% ° 18
YEH S5 & A B 2 IR ek 42 5E2,370,00078
TRBEZZE——F=ZA=1+—HILFE
ZIRARERAREPER

HE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—H " REP#H
PRS2 BB AR 4 R & - 1,000,00017 8 B #E
BER049BTTZITEEREITE - ARTT
ERE R - AEBR PRI RA B R R
EMRA44.07%EE444.05% - FEBE
PR E 2 BB AR B 2 B IR R
BRRE -

RZE——F=A+8  ARA2EME
AERBYE=ZHFEIREES DT
hEEGR(REEERERBRE]D - U
530,000,000/ L2 B3R &R EWERT T
MADIIME - BTRRAREIERD
a EMBAREEATERERIEH
R TERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IERRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

21. Investments in Associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

On June 4, 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into the supplemental agreement with Panva Gas Vendors
to amend and supplement the Equity Transfer Agreement, pursuant
to which (i) a subsidiary of the Company has conditionally agreed to
purchase and Panva Gas Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell
49% of the entire shares of Panva Gas for a total cash consideration
of HK$259,700,000; and (ii) Panva Gas Vendors have agreed to
grant the call option (“Call Option”) to the Group for acquiring the
remaining 51% issued shares of Panva Gas held by Panva Gas
Vendors at a total cash consideration of HK$270,300,000 within
1 year after the completion of the acquisition of 49% of the entire
shares of Panva Gas by the Group (“Option Exercise Period”). The
exercise of Call Option to acquire the remaining 51% issued shares
of Panva Gas is subjected to obtaining of the substantive approvals
for anti-trust application, having been obtained from the relevant
competent PRC authorities. The acquisition of 49% issued shares

of Panva Gas was completed in June 2011.

On May 29, 2012, a subsidiary of the Company entered into the
second supplemental agreement with Panva Gas Vendors, pursuant
to which Panva Gas Vendors agreed to extend the Option Exercise

Period to September 30, 2012.

On July 27, 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
pursuant to the Call Option, entered into an agreement (“51%
Agreement”) with the Panva Gas Vendors pursuant to which a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has conditionally agreed
to purchase and the Panva Gas Vendors have conditionally agreed
to sell 51% of the issued shares of Panva Gas for a total cash
consideration of HK$270,300,000. As at March 31, 2013, the
substantive approvals for anti-trust application have not been
obtained from the relevant competent PRC authorities and the 51%

Agreement has not been completed.

(c)  During the year ended March 31, 2013, %)/8#[® ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group and became an associate as a result of the
partial disposal of interest in /8#T& as detailed in note 42().

(d) During the year ended March 31, 2013, China Gas-SK Energy
Holdings Company Limited (“China Gas-SK Energy”), a jointly
controlled entity of the Company, has set up a company, namely
£ #E M a8, with other independent party, pursuant to which China
Gas-SK Energy has 35% equity interest in £ ZE M =58, The Group’s

effective interest In &M &as is 17.5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 & Z =

21.

E-—=ZFZHA=+—HLFE

Investments in Associates (Continued)

At March 31, 2013, included in the cost of investment in associates
is goodwill of HK$708,010,000 (2012: HK$690,741,000).

The financial year end date for Zhongyu Gas is December 31. For the
purpose of applying the equity method of accounting, the consolidated
financial statements of Zhongyu Gas for the year ended December
31, 2012 and 2011 have been used as the Group considers that
it is impracticable for Zhongyu Gas with its shares listed on the
Stock Exchange to provide a separate and complete set of financial
statements as of March 31. Appropriate adjustments have been made
accordingly for the effects of significant transactions between that date
and March 31, 2013,

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates
is set out below:

21, REBE QT ZRE(E)

R-ZT—ZFZA=Z+—H8 BERAAZKR
B ABFEREZE708,010,0008 T(ZE—=
£ 1 690,741,000/ 7T) °

PRV RFEAERAT _A=1T—
H- BEAERSIE  ASEBERATH
MARBE_T——FRZF——F+=ZA=
+—HLEFEZEEMBRE  RRALSE
ERBEPBIR (DB P L) A A
BERENRZAZT—AZBIY B2 BER
Ko AKECHEEELBEZEHE  UREZ
HE-S—=F=A=+—HHE%LENE
AR S

AN E 2 B
T

REIZHBER B EE M

2013 2012
—B-=F —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Total assets BEHLE 10,399,596 8,868,944
Total liabilities BERE (5,229,222) (4,756,359)
Non-controlling interests TR (620,150) (478,357)
Net assets BEFE 4,550,224 3,634,228
The Group’s share of REEBDEBEARFEE
associates’ net assets 1,944,099 1,695,502
Revenue Wz 10,671,105 7,008,413
Profit for the year F R F 736,001 194,822
Other comprehensive income Efp2mlA 13,070 55,614
The Group's share of results REEDEHE QT
and other comprehensive FEEEMHEMEERA
income of associates
for the year 335,673 111,346
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

22. Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities 22, AHREEHERZKERE
As at March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group had interests in the RIE—=FK_FT——-F=A=+—H"
following significant jointly controlled entities: REBRATEEZHRAESEREFHESE
=

Proportion of

nominal value
Place of Principal of registered/
Form of registration/  place of Class of issued capital
Name of entity business structure incorporation operations capital held by the Group Principal activity
H /R TEEX RE@EAERR/
.22 EBRBYR bk bk RAER BRTRAEELS TEXH
2013 2012
—3-=% Z3-Zf
% %
W TRRERAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0 50.0 Sales of natural gas
(TN ]) joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
PORERE i ik i RAARHERMAEERR
BRI RERERAE Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50,0 50.0 Sales of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
PORERE B $E B} RARHERMAEERR
FRESER TR RERE Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 51.0 51.0 Sales of natural gas
BRAR joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
PORERE HE e B} RARHERNAEERR
ENPRETRRERERAA Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 49.0 49.0 Sales of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
PAEERE P E HE B} ARRHERMREBRR
ERTRIERNSERABRAT  Siho-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 500 50.0 Nature gas refill service
joint venture and gas station
administration
POEERE HE HE B} RARNAREREZ MR
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

22. Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities 22, RHEEEHIEBRE(E)

(Continued)

Proportion of
nominal value
Place of Principal of registered/
Form of registration/  place of Class of issued capital
Name of entity business structure incorporation  operations capital held by the Group Principal activity
i/ B TEEX KEBAEER/
ERER EBREEA & HE RAEH BRTRAEELS FTEER
2013 2012
“E-ZF C-EZ-CF%
% %

China Gas - SK Energy Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 50.0 50.0 Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

k- EBRER SR B EE i RARHERNAEERR

RUARRERAR Equity joint venture PRC PRC Registered 51.0 51.0 Sales of natural gas

REL%E P P Gl AARHE
Fujian Anran Gas Investment Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49.0 49.0 Investment holding
Company Limited company
(*Fujian Anran’)
BREXARRABRAT AREEAT B ik i REERK
([ERZR])
EEREAARBREREALT  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 490 49.0 Sales of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
BRELRR E i il AARHERMAEBRR
WP RAARERAA Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 40.0 40.0 Sales of natural
company gas and gas pipeline
construction
AREEAT T FE B} RARHERMAEERR
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B ZE—E—=F=A=1+—HIFE

22. Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities 22, RHEREHEBRBZRE(E)
(Continued)

As all the major financial and operating decisions of the above entities
require unanimous consent from all venturers, they are accounted for

AR EEMEEAT B REERTY
/,\%Fﬁﬁ EE— ﬁlﬂ‘é‘?ﬁ—f B AL
as jointly controlled entities. NEEAR A ERESE

AEB EREHEREZMBEEEEHIE
LEBIERAFIER - WA TNHIDIEEEZ DR ¢

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

jointly controlled entities which are accounted for using proportionate
consolidation with the line-by-line reporting format is set out below:

2013 2012
—B-=% —TCF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets mEBE 1,621,277 1,113,156
Non-current assets IERBEE 4,004,377 3,774,926
Current liabilities nEEE (2,082,902) (1,495,777)
Non-current liabilities FERSEB (614,011) (761,509)
Income recognised in R ERZ WA
profit or loss 3,423,008 2,500,939
Expenses recognised in RiERERZAX
profit or loss (3,111,890) (2,276,593)
23. Available-for-sale Investments 23. AIHHERE
2013 2012
—E-=%F —E—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in REB LM ZBRAES - BATEIE
Hong Kong, at fair value 10,093 9,054
Unlisted equity securities, FELTRAFS - 2 ANEFEGOREE)
at cost less impairment 62,891 62,451
Club debenture, at fair value ES  BAFEE 5,999 5,153
78,983 76,658

REE LD ZBRAREFESTRAFEIER - £
TERAEZZ AFEDIREARITHEA
BETE RBE-_T-—=F=A=1+—HAL
FE  RBRARATHEEREZ LHERAE

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong are stated at fair value. The fair
values of listed equity securities are based on quoted market bid
price. Change in fair value of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments for the year ended March 31, 2013 with

an increase of HK$1,039,000 (2012: an decrease of HK$6,854,000) %7 AN EEENIE 01,039,000 T ( —&F—
was recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive —F 1 F 6,854,000 L) RERA = E A
income. WFIER ©
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

23. Available-for-sale Investments (Continued) 23. AIHEERE(E)
Unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in the FELTRABTSFERPREFMA L ZFLAR
PRC. Those private entities are engaged in the sales and distribution AT ZELARRETEEERCAM
of LPG in the PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at the TEHENDEER - ThR RS BRI A
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value BRERE  REAREAFTEMTZEHE
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of the KK ARABEERAE EAFETRENS:
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably. EtE
Club debentures are stated at fair value. Fair value of the club debenture @FES IR A EYE e@mEEZAE
has been determined by reference to the bid prices quoted in the BENRERE-FHEMBIBEABET - &%
second hand market. No fair value change was recognised in both MEFEH T EERANFEEE -
years.
24. Goodwill 24, BHE
HK$'000
FHET
COST RAE
At April 1, 2011 RZE—FMNA—H 1,535,326
Exchange adjustments Rk 37,889
Arising on acquisition of B4 B E S (K5E41(8)

a business (note 41(B)) 43,323
Deemed disposal of BRIEHEHB A 7 (KisE43)

a subsidiary (note 43) (577,947)
At March 31, 2012 R-T——"F=A=+—H 1,088,591
Exchange adjustments Rk 25,262
Arising on acquisition of EA B IEEE (FIEE41(A)

businesses (note 41(A)) 145,426
At March 31, 2013 WZZE—=F=A=+—H 1,209,279
CARRYING VALUES REE
At March 31, 2013 R-T—=%=A=+—H 1,209,279
At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 1,038,591
The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and in the financial AREBREBERNETHEZRFESS
year in which the acquisition takes place, or more frequently if there BFAEmEEERE EENRKRAEER L
are indications that goodwill might be impaired. ER - SR AR -
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

24. Goodwill (Continued) 24, BHE(E)
Impairment testing on goodwill EEEE R
Management considered each subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or EEERLE EEREINEmMS &HEB
associate represents a separate CGU for the purpose of goodwill NE) > HEAEHEEREE N TRKRB IR
impairment testing. SEAEBA -
The carrying amounts of goodwill as at March 31, 2013 and 2012 R-E—=FF - FET——F=A=+—BH
are allocated as follows: HMENEEAESBENT :
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Subsidiaries or jointly RERAREKHN

controlled entities engaged MEBARSERZEHELR

in natural gas business
Clever Decision Enterprise Limited Clever Decision Enterprise Limited 154,116 160,357
BN PR TR ER BMNPRB TR ERERAR

BRAT(TEMNFLR) (TTEMAHIE]) 48,722 47,534
bR ARIEHR B R A A bR ARIEH B R A A 16,900 16,488
M AR M A BR 71,754 70,004
Positive Rise Energy Limited Positive Rise Energy Limited 108,843 106,188
WMEREE S HRARDA WMEREE S ERARDA 58,385 56,961
Briliant China Investments Limited Brilliant China Investments Limited

(“Brilliant China”) ([ Brilliant Chinal) 108,605 105,956
HERRHTRRER mEEF R TRRERAGRAR

BRAFI(EETR) (&) 16,235 15,839
ESP BT RRER G IR T R R

BRAT(EBGT) BRARIESH]) 29,510 28,790
HIRKBRRER AT HII KB RAER QA

(“HFHIRKBHIRR) (MM RBIRE]D) 33,056 32,250
PR = AR BE IR B R A ] BR7E =MmAEIRB R AR]

("EEMmEER" (&R 127,291 -
Other CGUs EfhiIR e EA B 133,266 113,010
Subsidiaries engaged in REBREABHREL ZHE LT

LPG business
Zhongyou Hua Dain Energy FURMEELER AR AR

Co. Ltd (“Zhongyou Hua Dian”) ([HmzESE]) 229,292 223,699
PEERMEER AR EBERMEERAA

(" EBER ([ FEER]) 27,271 26,605
BREERREE BRETERRIEEGRAA

BRAT(EEER) ([EzEaR]) 46,033 44,910

1,209,279 1,088,591
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BiZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

24. Goodwill (Continued) 24. BHE(E)

Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management for the next five years.
The CGUs cash flows beyond the 5-year period until the expiry of
the relevant operation period or exclusive rights ranging from 15 to
30 years are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2012: 3%) growth rate
for CGUs in the natural gas business and 5% (2012: 5%) for CGUs
in the LPG business. The financial budgets and growth rates are
estimated according to the stage of each operation with reference
to the development curve of the natural gas industry in the PRC
region. The rates used to discount the forecast cash flows for CGUs
are from 13% to 15% (2012: 13% to 15%). In the opinion of the
directors, no material impairment loss is identified for both years.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of
CGUs to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGUSs.

BB RER A (E)

ReEt Bz mMREENREREEE
oA BEEREEIERRANANEEZH
K BEXREMNEHREXKAE - E
EERRRANFHEECREERERE
EEMFERBR BB REFHTHE -
BERRENEHERET - SEBEPRE
BERAEBEE RBERTSRKZEEM
BE -

RNEBIBIEEIEEIERRAE 2 T
BHEERRBSRERY - ERARESR
R ERRERAFHEESABCES
MRBREEEAB (N T15FE0FITE)
EmnsBReEAEMRSRENDFIRAE
FEEERI% (ZT—ZF : 3%) xb6% (ZF
— I O%)HEITHE - BISTEE IR XK
DIRBESERZEERBERESEREE
ZRARITEZERIGEMET - ARTENR
REEABN RS RENMNLLERIZUE
15% (ZFE——F  13%E15%)TE - BF
RE - RZMETEREE KA HRBES
B-BEERABULLBREZEMNAETEE
ENEY T EERIREELENZEEA
B AR H 42 ] B W (B 1E -
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

25. Other Intangible Assets

25 HhEREE

Exclusive
rights of Other
natural gas operating Customer Technical
operations rights Relationship  expertise Total
RARREKZ
BRCERE HttSER ZEFBRE  FEEN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEx FET FET
COSsT RAE
At Aprl 1, 2011 RZE——FMNA—H 1,448,347 61,449 15,536 14,124 1,539,456
Exchange adjustments P X 33,101 - 379 344 33,824
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary ~ RIEHEHEB AT (91,143) (61,449) - - (152,592)
At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 1,390,305 - 15,915 14,468 1,420,688
Exchange adjustments PE i % 34,758 - 398 362 35,518
At March 31, 2013 R-ZE—=F=A=+—H 1,425,063 - 16,313 14,830 1,456,206
AMORTISATION sy
At April 1, 2011 RZE——FMNA—H 84,227 1,824 6,501 2,696 95,248
Exchange adjustments P X % 1,990 - 1569 66 2,215
Eliminated on deemed disposal RIEHEM B AR
of a subsidiary & bR (2,663) (1,824) - - (4,487)
Charge for the year FNEEH 44,082 - 1,500 682 46,264
At March 31, 2012 RZBE——F=A=+—H 127,636 - 8,160 3,444 139,240
Exchange adjustments PE X 2,647 - 186 78 2,911
Charge for the year FREH 44,626 - 1,518 690 46,834
At March 31, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 174,909 - 9,864 4,212 188,985
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At March 31, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 1,250,154 - 6,449 10,618 1,267,221
At March 31, 2012 RZT——F=A=+—H 1,262,669 - 7,755 11,024 1,281,448
Note: The exclusive rights of natural gas operation, other operating rights, MizE : RAREB ZIBRSERE - HihgE

customer relationship and technical expertise are amortised on a
straight-line method over the period of 30 years, 27 years, 10 years

and 20 years respectively.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

26.

27.

Amounts Due from/to Associates 26. U FE(SEEE D BIFIE
Included in the balance of amounts due from associates are loans SFAEWRBZE AR RBLESRZE XK
of HK$272,772,000 (2012: HK$181,932,000) which are unsecured, 272,772,000 7T (= F— =4 : 181,932,000
interest bearing at fixed rates ranging from 5.31% to 6.00% per BIT) HEEWT BB F5.31EE6.00E(=
annum (2012; 5.31% to 7.22% per annum). The remaining balance E——F . GES3IBER7.22E) ZEEN R
of HK$100,295,000 (2012: HK$84,792,000) are of trade nature aged =T B - REE100,2950008 (B ——4F
within 180 days based on invoice date. A credit period of 30 to 180 84,792,000 L )BEE ZIHE - BRERAEE
days is granted to these trade customers. As at March 31, 2013, the HHI#EFT1IS0R N - AEBRAZEESHEF
balance of HK$ 187,462,000 (2012: HK$141,932,000) is expected to KTOHZEISOAZEERH - RZT—=4F
be repayable after one year and shown under non-current assets. The =ZA=+—8 " £%187,462,0008 (==&
remaining balance is expected to be repayable within twelve months — 4 1 141,932,000/ 7T ) TEET AR —F &
and shown under current assets. All balances are neither past due B8 Wit AFERBEE - BB EET
nor impaired at the reporting date as there has not been a significant —EAARNERE Wit ATRBEE ;AN EE
change in credit quality and the Group believes that the amounts are BEWESANE  BEAEBEHEEBSRE
considered recoverable. BIEA TUE - A HREBE - FTB &5
mE A RORE o
The non-trade balance of amounts due to associates are unsecured, ENBENRIIFESEBAERE - 281
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. BRENRFER -
Inventories 27. 7€
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FAT
Construction materials M 478,296 383,867
Consumables, spare parts SHFEM - B R R
and coke materials 279,599 319,312
Natural gas RAR 57,754 37,296
LPG BIEAEHR 307,189 1,002,897
1,122,838 1,743,372
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 B ZE —E—=F=A=1+—HIFE

28. Amounts Due from (to) Customers for
Contract Work

28. ER(EBN)BEFZENITREMRE

2013 2012
—B—=f T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracts in progress at end of ~ REHR 2 EEZIRE :
the reporting period:
Contract costs incurred plus B85 2 A A A INE #ER
recognised profits less S MR B iR e 18
recognised losses 1,470,162 584,132
Less: Progress bilings R EE AR (1,474,784) (655,280)
(4,622) (71,148)
Analysed for reporting E2FHAZ DI -
puUrposes as:
Amounts due from customers B EFE 2 & #TERIE
for contract work 305,658 173,519
Amounts due to customers ENEPZEHITIEFIA
for contract work (310,280) (244,667)
(4,622) (71,148)

At March 31, 2013 and 2012, there was no retention monies held by
customers for contract work performed. At March 31, 2013, advances
received from customers for contract work not yet commenced
amounted to HK$966,084,000 (2012: HK$939,156,000) which were
included in trade and other payables in note 33.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

29. Trade and Other Receivables 20. ESRWERR R HA U ARIE
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables B S RBIRR 1,854,957 1,535,691
Less: Accumulated allowances o RETERE (257,873) (245,779)
Trade receivables Z SRR 1,597,084 1,289,912
Deposits paid for construction TREERHMMBEZS
and other materials 449,756 308,784
Deposits paid for purchase BERARKBREARARE RS
of natural gas and LPG 506,931 410,945
Advance payments to BN THEME2RIA
sub-contractors 652,696 430,058
Tender deposits wizEe 26,020 610
Rental and utilities deposits ek AEEZS 39,990 25,567
Other tax recoverable H b AT Ug B R IE 126,053 127,989
Other receivables and deposits ~ EfhEURERIB R IE S 244,045 210,908
Prepaid operating expenses TEREERY 214,691 198,998
Amounts due from non-controlling  F& U BT B8 1 &) FE4% A% #E 5 2R 7B
interests of subsidiaries 30,157 26,062
Amounts due from shareholders — JEUR X E5 H F RE AR R 508
of jointly controlled entities 131,767 140,095
Total trade and other receivables B 2 FEURBR X E Ath FE U AR TB 48 58 4,019,190 3,169,928
Other than certain major customers with good repayment history which GE TGRSR TEREFPEARER F
the Group allows a longer credit period or settlement by instalment HERREEHS BN KEE—
basis, the Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 to RAEESEFPIREFEHI0EI180B ZEE
180 days to its trade customers. HA -
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of impairment REEHIR IR EZHEHZE2Y 28 FEWEE
losses presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting R(HGBEER) ZERITIT -
period:
2013 2012
—E—=f —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 — 180 days 0-180H 1,405,322 1,083,664
181 — 365 days 181 - 365H 121,817 127,931
Over 365 days 365H A £ 69,945 78,317
1,597,084 1,289,912
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 EZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

29. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 29. ESEWERR R EMEUERIE (&

The trade receivables with carrying amount of HK$1,405,322,000
(2012: HK$1,083,664,000) are neither past due nor impaired at the
reporting date for which the Group believes that the amounts are
considered recoverable.

The Group has policies for allowance of bad and doubtful debts
which are based on the evaluation of collectability and age analysis
of accounts and on the management's judgment including the credit
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Group made an allowance
of HK$5,949,000 (2012: HK$2,290,000) in respect of the trade
receivables related to the gas pipeline construction business, which
was past due at the reporting date with long age and slow repayments
were received from respective customers since the due date. The
directors of the Company considered the related receivables may be
impaired and specific allowance is made.

AR M {81,405,322,0008 L 2 & 5 FE W AR X
(ZZ——4F : 1,083,664,000/ 7T) R RE B
I Em EA ek HEURE - AEBBEZER
1B ThiA8 BRIk o

REE 7 RIFRB BB VIR BB @ FRIAK
R THERBRBZERRON - LIRBERE
HEEREREPZERENRKKEEZH
B o

REE-ZT—=FZA=+—HILFER &K
SEpEEREEEREH B E SRR
FAEH5,949,0008 (=& — =4 : 2,200,000
BT B RAAZSFIERHREAEE
BHE - HERER AR A BT P B /R BHIBAKR
ZEFREEE NARESRABEEKK
IHo 2R E - WHEL S ERE -

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: RIZERBE B8 -
2013 2012
—EB—=f —TE——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Balance at the beginning FHIEH

of the year 245,779 237,692
Exchange differences [E 5 ZE%8 6,145 5797
Charge for the year FEEE 5,949 2,290
Balance at the end of the year FIR i 257,873 245779

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
The trade receivables past due but not provided for impairment were
either subsequently settled as at the date these consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issuance or no historical default of
payments by the respective customers. The concentration of credit
risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company believe that there is no
further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for bad
and doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

29. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 29. EZEWRMR R EMEWERIE(Z)
Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors, with a carrying AREB ESREKEZRTDBIER@EE
amount of HK$191,762,000 (2012: HK$206,248,000) which are past 191,762,000 T 2 R F( = F — = F -
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there 206,248,000 70) + EFRERRE AL
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amount are B BAEEENEEEERRAEEAEL
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral BB NWE AU E M i R IR EE - A
over these balances. The average age of these trade receivable is EEVERZELEREEEMER - R -_F
240 days (2012: 270 days) as at March 31, 2013. —=F=A=+—H ZSEFRKERZ

FHRE R2408 (ZF—=4 : 270RH) »
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired: B HIE R B ERE 2 B 5 W BE 2k ~ BRIt
DT ¢
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET T
180 — 365 days 180 - 365H 121,817 127,931
Over 365 days 3658 £ 69,945 78,317
191,762 206,248
The non-trade balances of amounts due from non-controlling interests FEURB B A Rl eI AR 25 S LRI | T B2 AR
of subsidiaries and shareholders of jointly controlled entities are WHRIEIEBSE/RAERR - 2 A
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. RER(EE -

30. Held-for-trading Investments 30. HIEEERE

2013 2012
—E—= —E—F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FH&xT FHET

Equity securities at fair value BAFEFE 2B ETRARE
listed in Hong Kong 11,110 10,893
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 EZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

31. Pledged Bank Deposits/bank Balances and 31. B HHRTHER BT &8 K

Cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
and carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 2.01%
per annum (2012: 0.01% to 2.08% per annum).

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting
to HK$650,711,000 (2012: HK$710,459,000) have been pledged to
secure short-term bank loans and undrawn short-term facilities and
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits
carry fixed interest rate of 1.156% to 3.25% (2012: 1.10% to 3.50%)
per annum.

The details of the Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash which are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities are set out below:

Be

RITHEBEESBEAEEFEZRHE MR
AR ={EASARNE B2 RERRITIER « 1%
BEOOIEE2.01E(ZE—Z% : 0.0
[EZE2.08F) 2 HIGHEEE -

BEERBRITEFIEADNGRE T ALE 2 R1T
BEME R T IRIT 2 F 5K ° 650,711,000
TT(ZT— 4 : 710,459,000/ 7T ) 2 ¥ &
EEEAUREEHRTERRRIERZE
HEE  ARHEARBEE - CEIFIRT
GRIEGF11ERI3BE(ZT——4F:
F110EE350E) 2 EEFET S -

AEBASHBEEER 2MEEBIUINZ
SNEEHE 2 BB IRITERIARIRITER R
Re 2 #BEHIAT

usD HKS$
EY BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
equivalent
FHBT FHET
HER
At March 31, 2013 R-E—=F=ZA=+—H 676,916 24,010
At March 31, 2012 R—E——F=ZA=+—H 1,651,010 18,936
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32. Assets Classified as Held for Sale 32. PEAFKELHEERE
On July 30, 2012, a jointly controlled entity of the Group, entered RN-T— _i‘tﬁ] +H - AEBE KR
into an agreement with a third party to dispose of certain properties BREE - FHIIUpENLEETRETY
in the PRC with a cash consideration attributable to the Group of - @ﬁ{giﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmz 373,00078
HK$412,373,000 (RMB329,899,000). As at March 31, 2013, this TT(AR¥G29,8090007T) e R-ZE— =4
transaction is not completed. The carrying amounts of the related ZA=+—H8 ZXRHHEKRTK - st AKE
properties interests as included in investment properties and prepaid MELEMEEZRBEAEHNM2EAREE
lease payments, which are expected to be sold within twelve months, MEEAMEHEZNOERE  BSEFNEAE
have been reclassified as assets held for sale and presented separately EREBREIRN —_T—=F=A=+—HH
in the consolidated statement of financial position at March 31, 2013. AR ETREBRY - EEMRERIE
The sales proceeds exceeded the carrying amount of the assets and, BEEEERERTE R EEZREERE -
accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.
The carrying amounts of assets to be sold at the end of the reporting ERRERAREEEENRDESMIT -
period are as follows:
2013
—ET-=fF
K000
FET
Investment properties WEME 311,049
Prepaid lease payments A ERIA 36,072
Total assets classified DEABEHEEERE
held for sales 347,121
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 EZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

33. Trade and Other Payables B EMNRAREME[NIRE

BHRNERLEMEMNFRREESESR
RISERAZ REBHE - RIMEMKR - 1%
BRAHZ2Y 2B HRMNERREMMEMNER

33.

Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases and ongoing costs. The following is an aged analysis of
trade and other payables presented based on the invoice date at the

end of the reporting period: H R -
3.31.2013 3.31.2012 4.1.2011
—g—= —E——-F ZZE——F
=A=+—H =ZA=+—H mA—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (E7))
0 — 90 days 0 -90H 1,359,905 1,201,760 1,368,367
91 — 180 days 91 - 180H 257,624 302,054 220,427
Over 180 days 180H Mk 973,444 736,944 606,434
Trade and bill payables B SRR R IER R & 2,590,973 2,240,758 2,195,228
Other payables and EAbEBRIB R ERT B
accrued charges 329,077 313,635 299,595
Construction fee payables ERTRER 364,459 271,344 263,178
Other tax payables JE S H A TR IA 55,872 36,813 62,013
Accrued staff costs & B TR 72,948 53,204 79,672
Loan interest payables FEREFFIB 58,741 60,519 46,659
Advance payments from KERAREER P 2 FBUGRIE
customers for gas supplies 887,771 669,464 494,281
Deposits received from BEREMRFZZS
other customers 79,755 46,549 61,271
Advances received from EmEARERZEHIRE
customers for contract BFPUE Z 25K
works that have not
yet been started 966,084 939,156 929,962
Amounts due to non-controling I B A R IR AL #E 2 2R IR
interests of subsidiaries 85,016 95,639 69,705
Amounts due to shareholders JEAS FE R I B BB AR SR 5k 1A
of jointly controlled entities 53,000 9,938 17,399
Obligation on capital injection PRABRABERLZATECER
to Fujian Anran by
Zhongmin Zhongran - - 23,448
Obligation on acquisition of WM S R R sMER 2 BT
additional interest in
a subsidiary - - 38,095
5,543,696 4,737,019 4,580,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

33.

34.

35.

B BHmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 & Z =

E-—=ZF=ZHA=+—HLFE

Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

Included in the amounts due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
and shareholders of jointly controlled entities are trade payables
amounting to HK$22,478,000 (2012: HK$7,671,000) and nil (2012:
HK$3,273,000) respectively. All of the balances were aged within
90 days based on invoice date and the average credit period is 90
days.

The non-trade balances of amounts due to non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries and shareholders of jointly controlled entities are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Derivative Financial Instruments

As at March 31, 2011, the Group has some outstanding interest rate
range accrual swap transactions not qualified for hedge accounting
with the maturity dates in 2011 and fair value of HK$32,122,000.
During the year ended March 31, 2012, a gain of HK$32,122,000
was recognised in respect of the changes in fair values of derivative
financial instruments.

The Group did not have any outstanding derivatives as at March 31,
2013 and March 31, 2012,

Amount Due to a Non-controlling Interest of
a Subsidiary

The amount is unsecured, bearing fixed-rate interest at 2% per annum,
repayable on demand and denominated in JPY.

33.

34.

35.

B2 BARRRAEMENIRIE(E)

ATARMNE QRIS R ERIE
FIEERRE2SHEIAESRMNER
22,478,000 L( ZF — =4 : 7,671,000/
TI)REBT(ZE—_4F:3,273,000/87T) °
FEHEHZRRBEHEZABEF0H
A FHEERACA o

A B B 2 ) SR IRCHE 28 T St R 2 4 B AR
B RE Y R B ABIER - 68 R AR
TREGEE -

TTEE®MIA

R-EBE——F=ZF=+—0 A&EEEZR
ARINB(FNBAAZET——FERATME
7$32,122,0007 7T ) M) & § B R 512 B 2
SUTNFEERIEREAFEHERE - H
EE—-F=ZA=+—HLEFE K=
32,122,000 L ER ATESRMTAZ R
FEEE -

RIE—=F=A=F+—HBEkZZT—=-F=

R=+—8H XEEMETHHARIBAITE
TH-

FEAS BB 2 R SR IE R 52 7R IR

FREREER  RENER2ERE D
FrER M ARERHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 X —E—=F=/A=+—HIFE

36. Bank and Other Borrowings 36. RITRHEMEE
2013 2012
—E-= —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T T

Bank and other borrowings RITRHMEERE :
comprise the following:

Bank loans RITER 11,130,106 10,250,923
Trust receipt loans EREBIEER 2,048,929 2,207,640
Mortgage loan RIER 1,152 3,889
Other bank borrowings HEMIRITEE 2,756,374 2,889,923
Other loans HiER 8,287 17,787

15,944,848 15,370,162
Secured BHEA 11,784,435 10,829,960
Unsecured iz 4,160,413 4,540,202

15,944,848 15,370,162
Other bank borrowings represent the obligations arising from HEMIRTEEIEA2EMEBIEZBNIE AR H
discounting of intercompany receivables with full recourse. FEWFIBFTEEMNET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 X —E—=F=/A=+—HIFE

36. Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued) 36. RITRHEMEE(ZE
2013 2012
—E—_=F —E——4F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT

The maturity profile of the above b8 Z BHIIERAT
loans is as follows:

Within one year R—FR 9,082,138 8,063,385
More than one year, but LR —F BT BBMFE
not exceeding two years 1,169,263 911,073
More than two years, but ZHMEETBBARTF
not exceeding five years 2,546,844 2,737,790
More than five years ZHRAEF 3,146,603 2,757,914
15,944,848 15,370,162
Less: Amount due within one B —FEREHAR AR ED
year shown under afEz ;A
current liabilities (9,082,138) (8,963,385)
Amount due after one year —F & EH 2 IR 6,862,710 6,406,777
Borrowings comprise: BEBRE:
Fixed-rate borrowings TEEEE 6,030,121 5,660,229
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE
— LIBOR plus 1.5% — AR ZEFREFESMN1.6E 2,828,887 2,787,218
— Base rate of People’s —HREARRITEERNE
Bank of China 7,085,840 6,922,715
15,944,848 15,370,162
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 2 —E—=F=FA=1+—HILFE

36. Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued)

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as follows:

36.

RITREMEE(E

AEEBEZERMNE 2 SE(TMEERTH

ME)AT

2013
—=_ =

— = =

Effective interest rate per annum: BB EF|K ¢

Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE

Floating-rate borrowings FEEE

The details of the Group'’s borrowings which are denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities are set out below:

2.00% - 7.54%
2.00E£7.54F
3.84% - 8.46%
3.84E£8.46E

2.55% — 7.83%
2.55E%7.83E
3.84% - 8.90%
3.84E%8.90FE

AEBEBRZHERERER ZEEBUINZ
SNEFHE 2 EEFIEHIINT

usD JPY EURO

ETT HEl BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHT T

equivalent equivalent equivalent

BER HER BER

At March 31, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 3,258,632 533,287 48,181
At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 4,121,951 439,560 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 ZE - E—=F=FA=1+—HILFE

37. Share Capital 37. B&
Convertible
Ordinary shares preference shares Total
EBER TRRELR &t
No. of shares No. of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
at HK$0.01 at HK$1.00
each each
TR TEr  TREE Tx TR
BkEE BREE
0.01%7T 1,008 7T
Authorised ETE 9,000,000 90,000 124,902 124,902 214,902
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At April 1, 2011 and 2012 R-E——ER-F——F 4,383,085 43,831 - - 43831
mA—H
Exercise of share options (note 48) 1Tl R (Fi7E48) 186,670 1,866 - - 1,866
At March 31, 2013 R-T—=%#=ZA=+—H 4,669,725 45,697 - - 45,697
38. Reserves 38. f#E
2013 2012
—E-=F T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Translation reserve B
At the beginning of the RS B9
reporting period 554,513 467,775
Exchange difference EE M E A 2 B X =58
arising on translation 157,472 111,256
Release upon deemed REHEH B A RO
disposal of a subsidiary - (24,518)
At the end of the reporting period AR iR 711,985 554,513
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Investment revaluation reserve REE G
At the beginning of the Nk
reporting period 3,782 10,636
Increase (decrease) in fair AIHEEREQNTE
value on available-for-sale O L)
investments 1,039 (6,854)
At the end of the reporting period Rk BiR 4,821 3,782
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

39. Deferred Taxation 39. IEERIE
The following is the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and IATNARARNERFERABRFE ZEER
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years. RIERIEEE(EE) ARABMEED -
Fair value Impairment
adjustment on trade
on property, receivables
plant and and amounts
Revaluation  equipment due from
Accelerated on and prepaid customers
tax  investment lease Tax Intangible for contract
depreciation properties  payments losses assets work Others Total
VES g5k
BER WERRR
FEREM FhEF
&5 A ke HEFEZ ZEHIR

& WREH OVERR HEER ARRE REAE  Rf it
HK000  HKBOOD  HKBO00  HKBOOD  HKBOOD  HKSO00D  HKBOOD  HK$000
TR TEr TR TEn  TAr  TEn  TEr AR

At Apil 1, 2011 -3——5MA-R 1 4591 03969 (11806) 25850 ([91468) 4207 445803
Fxchange adjusiments EiAE - 805 5,848 - 6053  (2281) - 10475
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELE-FHELR - 1613 - - 10339 - w21 (18179
Charge {credit) o proft or loss ERRERNE(EE)

for the year (note 12) (RzE12) - 10146 [8049) [@41) 8514 (368) - (1299
At March 81, 2012 RZE-—E=f=1-H 471 55,299 287498 (12,247) 245,720 (94,009) - 482,676
Fxchange adusiments EiAE - 1,090 5,937 - 6,143 235 - 10818
(Credit) charge to proft or loss ERRNER(ES )R

for the year (note 12) (RzE12) - 27 B (1129 [8469) (819) -4
At March 31, 2013 RZE-=E=f=1-H 471 79121 235,389 (13376) 243398 (97,236) - 7767
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of MENGATBHRRERME - BETELETHRE
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been BEERABEBEE TERYE - U TARMB®REM
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for = ZIEETRIBEE SO ¢

financial reporting purposes:

2013 2012
—F-= —T=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

Deferred tax assets BRI IEE = 97,236 94,065
Deferred tax liabilities BEERTBEAE (545,003) (526,741)
(447,767) (432,676)
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R

B BmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 & Z =

E-—ZF=ZHA=+—HLFE

39. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

40.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profit earned by PRC
subsidiaries from January 1, 2008 onward. No deferred taxation has
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
entities amounting to HK$2,4568,523,000 (2012: HK$2,344,103,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

All jointly controlled entities and associates established in the PRC
are held directly by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC which are therefore not subject to the above-
mentioned withholding tax.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses of HK$3,371,554,000 (2012: HK$2,822,417,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$81,059,000 (2012: HK$74,223,000) of the tax losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised for the remaining estimated
tax losses of HK$3,290,495,000 (2012: HK$2,748,194,000) due to
the uncertainty of future profits streams. Included in unrecognised
estimated tax losses are losses of HK$2,396,685,000 (2012:
HK$1,868,673,000) that will expire in 5 years from the year of
origination which is ranged from 2014 to 2018. Other losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Acquisition of Additional Interestin Subsidiaries

(A) Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries

in 2013

On September 19, 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the non-controlling interests of
a subsidiary in the PRC in respect of the acquisition of the
remaining 41% equity interest in the subsidiary of the Group,
SRR 2 H AR AR MR RIS & B IR E £ A A for a consideration
of RMB112,983,000 (approximately HK$137,784,000). The
difference between the consideration paid and the carrying
amount of the additional interest acquired by the Group of
HK$100,956,000 was debited to equity as capital reserve during
the year ended March 31, 2013.

39. IEERIE(2Z)

40.

BIEPBICEREEE AT N\F—A
— A HPEMBARARR SR mE
k7 B SEBRIRTEINRL o 4R A B IS R W 1R
AP B E 8 R 5% F12,458,523,0008 7t ( =
T— 4 12344,103,0008 70) 2 B =58
EHIEEHIERE  REARASERE I%U}%
O] ERE =R ER BEEEERAET
A R R -

FRERREHER LB EARIRAREE
PRIz ETE2EMNBAREERSS - B
It RS DA TR0 -

REREERR - ANEE ] B IR AR R 2
& 5T & ) B B T8 85 18 /83,371,654,0007% T
(ZZT— % :2822417,00087T) - B 5
81,059,000/ Jt( =& — = 4 : 74,223,000
BILIZHEEEERECHEEE - A
RARFCEFRIR ST - Hepfhstiim
& 183,290,495,000% jo( = & — = F:
2,748,194,000% T ) I E R E LR B &
Eo RERGFIHEBRTRIEEREBFE
(ZE—OFE_FT—N\FHMEFAF
A fE 5 2 2,396,685,000/8 TT( — & — —4F
1,868,673,000/8 7T, ) 518 - E b 518 A (R

WM B D R FE MR

(A) RZZE—=FWEKHEB QT EEIN
=
RZEBE—=—FhA+NHE AEHH
B — KB AR Z IR R AT I
EEWHaE NABERERBEARYE
112,983,0007t( #J137,784,000% 7T )
e i AN 55 B P B R B 3B RR 2% Hi i AR IR
RERRREERETQRIBR T41%2
RAERZD - B HREEAEEK
FERRIMER IR E 2 Z§1100,956,000
EIRBE-_Z-—=%F=A=+—H1
IEFEUE A BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

40. Acquisition of Additional Interest in
Subsidiaries (Continued)

(B) Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries
in 2012

(M

(i)

On August 20, 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary in the PRC in respect of the acquisition of 40%
equity interest in the subsidiary of the Group, & 28 & & 1%
RBERETAR('EEER® for a cash consideration of
RMB126,044,000 (approximately HK$153,712,000). The
acquisition was completed during the year ended March
31, 2012 and the difference between the consideration
paid and the carrying amount of the additional interest
acquired by the Group of HK$69,303,000 was credited
to equity as capital reserve during the year ended March
31, 2012,

On December 15, 2011, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary in the PRC in respect of the acquisition
of 20% equity interest in the subsidiary of the Group,
MAaF R for a cash consideration of RMB7,000,000
(approximately HK$8,537,000). The acquisition was
completed during the year ended March 31, 2012 and
the difference between the consideration paid and the
carrying amount of the additional interest acquired by the
Group of HK$3,438,000 was debited to equity as capital
reserve during the year ended March 31, 2012,

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Group entered
into sale and purchase agreements with non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary in the PRC in respect of the
acquisitions of 5% equity interest in the subsidiary of the
Group, FUIFRMRB R A B (RIIFLR) for a total
cash consideration of RMB2,500,000 (approximately
HK$3,049,000). The acquisition was completed during
the year ended March 31, 2012. The difference between
the consideration paid and the carrying amount of the
additional interest acquired by the Group of HK$611,000
was debited to equity as capital reserve during the year
ended March 31, 2012,
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40. WEEM B A RIEEIMER (2

(B) R=F——FWBEHNEATEN

R
(i

(i)

RZZ——%\AZ-+H &%
B S b B — K B & )2 SRR

BRI ZEE R RRER R
R &R EAR126,044,00070

(#9153,712,0007%8 70 ) U B8 R &
EfNEAREEEBEMRERE
FRENFEEEE]) 40%2 kA
o ZWBEREE-_ZT—=
FZAZT—BUEFERTK
BT EEREETREE
SN 7 AR T (B < Z= §869,303,000
BITRBE_ZE——F=A=1+
—BLFEUERFEE AR

o

Bl

—ZET——F+_A+HB AEH
R E R B AR 2 IR AR
KA BB NARBNIZE
KRB ARE7,000,0007T (4
8,537,000/87T) W iE A~ E 1B
NEIREFRIR20% 2 We A KRS © 3%
WBERNEBE—Z——F=A=1+
—HIEFERTR MBS HRE
HAREE AU EREIMERIRAE
2 Z%E3,438,0008 TTREE-Z
——F=A=+—HIEFENER
BRI -

REE-Z——F#=HA=+—81
IHEE AEBEFAE—KWE
RAEZ BRI L EE 7
FOANRERNERSREARE
2,500,0007T (#93,049,000/87T)
Uit B AN 52 [ B B8 2 BRI AR R R
FAEBRAR ([FRIFR]) 5%2
AR - ZWBEREE—T—
—HEZAZ+—HALFERTR
i B AR (B B AL B ATk i 58
MRS AREE 2 Z58611,00078 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

40. Acquisition of Additional Interest in
Subsidiaries (Continued)

(B) Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries
in 2012 (Continued)

(iv)

During the year ended March 31, 2011, the Group entered
into sale and purchase agreements with non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries in the PRC in respect of the
acquisition of 49% equity interest in the subsidiary of the
Group, ) LEH R R TALERQF(WIEF H’) for a total
cash consideration of RMB32,000,000 (approximately
HK$40,260,000). The transaction had not been completed
on March 31, 2011 and the consideration payable of
HK$38,095,000 was recognised as a commitment to
acquire a non-controlling interest as at March 31, 2011
under trade and other payables.

The acquisition was completed during the year ended March
31, 2012 and the difference between the consideration
paid and the carrying amount of the additional interest
acquired by the Group of HK$8,417,000 was credited
to equity as capital reserve during the year ended March
31, 2012,

40. WHBHIE N RIBEIMESR (42

(B) R=ZE——FWHEKHBLAFEIN
R (E)
vy REz-Z——F=A=+—H

IEFE AEEEFBE KRB
A7 IR R L BB

NABRIEBESRBARYE
32,000,0007T (#940,260,0007%
J0) W BB AR SR BT B A R T AR
RIABRAR ([TéHm])

49% 2 R AMER - N=E——F =
A=+—H ZBEXSHATH

i FEFH{B38,095,000/8 TR &
SEM R X E M B BRTE P I
REN-_E——F=ZA=+—RHlk
FE SRR AR AR 2 2 ARG ©

ZWEEREE=_T——F=A
=t+—HLEFEARK  MEX
TR (B B AR SR B AT IR BB 2B SME 25
BR M (B 2 %= 588,417,000/ 7T A
HE-_Z——F=-ZA=+—H1t
FREUNEAFEET AR -
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eV RRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses 41.

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of
subsidiaries in 2013

(i)  On July 31, 2012, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which the Group acquired 80% equity
interest of FHT OB TMRREREBR AR (FHTAY
at a consideration of RMB26,169,000 (approximately
HK$31,913,000). The acquisition was completed on July
31, 2012, on that date the control in fT H was passed
to the Group. LA is principally engaged in natural gas

DS

A) RZE—=FFZBWEHBQTF
W iE 2T

(i) HN—ZE——FtA=1+—H0 K&

E—RMBARE-—BBIUE=

FRI— W ERE Bl ARE

B R EARE26,169,0007T (

#931,913,000/87T) WHEHTAH

BB mHRRERAERAR ([FHT

A]) 80%2 7 iz o sZTBUUEE R

—T——F A=t BRK RE

business. B IOz iEfEsE g e A e E -
FHIREZ2NERARER
Consideration transferred BEENAE
HK$'000
FET
Cash B& 31,913

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition recognised
by the Group:

REERYEAERACEEMARG:

Acquiree’s
carrying amount and
provisional fair value

before combination

WU R E BRI 2

REEREEATE

HK$'000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment E NG 107,505
Prepaid lease payments FEFEE 7,256
Inventories 7E 10
Trade and other receivables B 5 PR3k I E A FE U BR TE 15,892
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 2,849
Trade and other payables B S TR R E M R BRIE (17,147)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (86,341)
30,030

Non-controlling interests e RS (6,008)
Goodwill [EES 7,889
31,913

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of
professional valuation in relation to property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of
subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$15,892,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows
not expected to be collected is nil.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in FHL A recognised at the
date of the acquisition was measured by reference to the
respective proportionate shares of recognised amounts

41, WEBER (2

(A) R=ZB—=FFBWEKBART
WEB ¥R (&)
(i (&)
RURBE B - Frik s > & 5 e 2
R E A FEUNBRTE > AT E KA L
4858 515,802,000/ 7T - UL IS A
WIEEE RN E A KBRS Y B it
fHETAE .

R

AU S B RERR 2 FHT O IR A4
HE2ENBHBAREEFE
WEHECEREBLIHES

of net assets of relevant subsidiary and amounted to 6,006,000/ 7T ©
HK$6,006,000.
Goodwill arising on acquisition REmEE 22
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration transferred EEERE 31,913
Plus: Non-controlling interests e SEERER (FHIRFEE 220%)
(20% share of net
assets in AL A) 6,006
Less: Provisional fair value of B PR ERI B FEE c EE A TE
identifiable net assets
acquired (30,030)
Gooadwill arising on acquisition E B mEE 28 7,889

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of FTH is
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its natural gas
business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

RKFBEFBT AMAES 2 BB ERERA
REBZFEHRETEE

8 HA 0 8 R 5 B U S T EE AE 2 PR AT
AR IE o
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eV IRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of
subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

41. WX (E)
(A) R-B—=EFBWENELT

g K (E)

(i)

(%)
AlEmMELEZRESREH
HER

HK$'000
FHET

Bank balances and Frusls < SRITAESHR MRS
cash acquired 2,849
Cash consideration paid stz RierRE (31,913)
(29,064)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Included in the Group's profit for the year is HK$ 1,009,000
attributable to the additional business generated by FT
H. Revenue included in the Group’s revenue for the year
amounted to HK$17,901,000.

(i) On July 31, 2012, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which the Group acquired 80% equity
interest of A ORI TARERBR AR (‘2O
at a consideration of RMB23,662,000 (approximately
HK$28,857,000). The acquisition was completed on July
31, 2012, on that date the control in ZJA 0 was passed
to the Group. 2A A is principally engaged in natural gas

(ii)

WRBEAREREZHE

AEBEFN N 2ERBR L
O ZBE9NERS 21,009,000 7T
AAREBFRAKREND KA
17,901,000/ 7C »

R-Z——F+A=+—0 4%
E—XRMBRARE-—EBIUE=
FERIN— W E RS Bt AEE
EREARKE23,662,0007T (49
28,857,000/ ) W iEE A+
BT RERERAR ([
A ) 80%2 Bz zs o sz IBUE R
—E——E+A=t+—Hxk RE

business. B a0z nfEEg e emE-.
EAOEBNERARES -
Consideration transferred EEENE
HK$'000
FET
Cash e 28,857
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued) a1, WEEEK(Z
(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of (A) RZE—=FFBWENELT
subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued) WEBER (&)
(i) (Continued) (i) (&)
Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition recognised AEBRBNBERRAZEER
by the Group: afE:
Acquiree’s

carrying amount and
provisional fair value
before combination

WREBHREHATZ

FEEREEATE

HK$'000

FAT

Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB Rk 95,177
Inventories rE 33
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE MR 3k I E A FE U BR TH 3,589
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR RS 2,432
Trade and other payables B S ME IR R E A FE S BR IR (16,613)
Bank borrowings HRITEE (54,634)
29,984

Non-controlling interests FEVERR (5,997)
Goodwil Bk 4,870
28,857

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of
professional valuation in relation to property, plant and
equipment.

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$3,589,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows
not expected to be collected is nil.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in 2 B recognised at the
date of the acquisition was measured by reference to the
respective proportionate shares of recognised amounts
of net assets of relevant subsidiary and amounted to
HK$5,997,000.

EREER 2GR RIETY
e MATIRSARYE.
BB ekt BREREE -

PRULEER - FTikiE 2 B 5 e AR 3K
DEMEWEBRZ A FERALY
4B%8 /53,589,000 - UK EEH
HESELIBBANRE R &
FEHEAT-.

R

AU g B HERR 2 20 D IR B A
B2 ENBEHBAREEFE
N EECRRSELIHES
5,997,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B ZE —E—=F=A=1+—HIFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of

41. WX (E)
(A) R-B—=EFBWENELT

subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued) URBE R (&)
(i) (Continued) (i) (%&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition RAREmMEE ZHE
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred BEEAE 28,857
Plus: Non-controlling interests o IR R (R AFEE220%)
(20% share of net
assets in ZA M) 5,997
Less: Provisional fair value of W TR B FEE 2 EEATE
identifiable net assets
acquired (29,984)
Goodwill arising on acquisition R At B i /22 A 2 PR 4,870

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Z A is
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its natural gas

business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

R 2 OmEL 2 HETER
HRARFI 2 EHENEE

B ERZCRIEmE S 2 B E
AR IA -

AWEmMELEZRESR

FEE
HK$'000
FHET
Bank balances and Frus s < SRITHE SR IR S
cash acquired 2,432
Cash consideration paid it zIRERE (28,857)
(26,425)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the

Group

Included in the Group’s profit for the year is HK$470,000
attributable to the additional business generated by Z5
H. Revenue included in the Group's revenue for the year

amounted to HK$28,272,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued) 41, WIBEK(E
(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of (A) RZE—=FFBWENELT
subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued) URBE R (&)

(iii) On December 31, 2012, a subsidiary of the Group entered (iii) A—ZT——F+-A=1+—H &
into an acquisition agreement with an independent third EE-—ZFHBARE—BEIE=
party, pursuant to which the Group acquired 60% equity FHeEIN— WS B AER
interest of & &R AEIR at a consideration of RMB117,000,000 IRREBARE117,000,0007T (4
(approximately HK$146,250,000). The acquisition was 146,250,000/ 7T) Wi = &aEIR
completed on December 31, 2012, on that date the 60% 2 A #  FZIBWER =T
control in 2R EEJR was passed to the Group. & AEIR ——Ft+-A=t+—B7=R RNER"
is principally engaged in natural gas business. KRR IEHIRESEREE -

REAREREBERARES -

Consideration transferred EEZEAE
HK$'000
FHET
Cash Be 73,125
Deferred cash consideration IR S RE 73,125
146,250
The deferred cash consideration of RMB58,500,000 was B E R £ RKEARE
settled subsequent to March 31, 2013. 58,500,000TtBE R —=F=

RA=+—H&&#5-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued) 41.

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of

subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued)

(iii) (Continued)

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition recognised
by the Group:

B R (2
(A) R=B—=FFBRBHEL
WEET ()
(i) (%)
AEENKEAERZEERE
f&:
Acquiree’s

carrying amount and
provisional fair value
before combination

WU RGBT 2

REHERETELATLE

HK$'000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment I E NG 43,610
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W R 3R I E A FE U AR TE 36,003
Bank balances and cash RITEHREIRS 14,154
Trade and other payables B SRR R E MR BRIA (58,425)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (3,743)
31,599

Non-controlling interests eI = (12,640)
Goodwil [EES 127,291
146,250

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of
professional valuation in relation to property, plant and
equipment.

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$36,003,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows
not expected to be collected is nil.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in < &4 AEJR recognised at the
date of the acquisition was measured by reference to the
respective proportionate shares of recognised amounts
of net assets of relevant subsidiary and amounted to
HK$12,640,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 ZE - E—=F=FA=1+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued) a1, WEEEK(Z
(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of A) RZZE—=FFBREHELQ A
subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued) Wi ()
(iii) (Continued) (iii) (#%&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition HEmEE e
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred EEEAE 146,250

Plus: Non-controlling interests o SEE R s (R ERFEE Z40%)

(40% share of net

assets in KEEER) 12,640
Less: Provisional fair value of W TR B FEE 2 EE A TE

identifiable net assets

acquired (31,599)
Goodwill arising on acquisition ABEmEEZEmE 127,291
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of K&AEER is EU SRR RMELE 2B E
attributed to the anticipated profitability of its natural gas REXARRER 2 TBHIETIE
business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected TE BN A 2B A A 2 P
to be deductible for tax purposes. AR TE o
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition AWEmMELE 2RSSR E R
58
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and Friig 2 tRT R RIR &
cash acquired 14,154
Cash consideration paid iz RerRE (73,125)
(58,971)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the WBHAEBRE2EE
Group Zr Y B R
Included in the Group’s profit for the vear is HK$3,508,000 BER 2 FBINFETE 2 3,5608,0008
attributable to the additional business generated by X & Toe iTARSEEFAW MK A
§EJR. Revenue included in the Group's revenue for the 25,075,00078 7T °

year amounted to HK$25,075,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued)

41, WX (2)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of (A) R-ZZE—=FFBWENRE QT
subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued) WS (&)

(iv) OnDecember 31, 2011, a subsidiary of the Group entered (iv) A—T——&+-_fA=+—H "X«
into an acquisition agreement with an independent third EH-ZFWBARE—RFILE
party, pursuant to which the Group acquired 67% equity = HRIN— W E R B
interest of BEEFHERMEABRAF(EEGET EEZEREARYEG,100,0007T (
at a consideration of RMB6,100,000 (approximately 497,439,000/ 7T) W HiB & B i ¥
HK$7,439,000). The acquisition was completed on April MERMHAERAR ([BE®
1,2012, on that date the control in E EE 38 7¥ was passed L) 67% 2 B - 2B
to the Group. EE#¥ is principally engaged in pipeline R-E——FMA—-RBRK RNE
design in natural gas business. B EEEF2IEHRERERE

CHEEMFFENERARER
KB BRRET ©
Consideration transferred 2EERE
HK$'000
FAET
Cash BE 7,439
Assets and liabllities at the date of acquisition recognised AEBRWIEAERCEERE
by the Group: f&:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount and
fair value before
combination
WUREE 5 & OF
AIZEREER
EEATE
HK$'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment L E TN 1,770
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W BR 3k I E A FE AR TE 2,941
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR RS 14,898
Trade and other payables G RENRR N E A EERTA (16,408)
3,201
Non-controlling interests e (1,138)
Goodwill (6 5,376
7,439
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of
subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued)

(iv) (Continued)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$2,941,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows
not expected to be collected is nil.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in 2 & 3% recognised at the
date of the acquisition was measured by reference to the
respective proportionate shares of recognised amounts
of net assets of relevant subsidiary and amounted to
HK$1,138,000.

Wi (2

(A) RZEBE—=FFBWENEBLT

WS (&)

(iv) (&)
RUEEE - FTUE 2 B SRR K
FEMEKREBZ ATFEREL
{AFE A2 041,000 7T - RUEE R
HEHEZREELR SR &
EEFTARE-

FFIEIR M

R ARER 2 EE @ FIFER
REE2ERBMNBAREES
ENSABECERISELLIE
741,138,000 7T

Goodwill arising on acquisition HEmEE 22
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred DEERE 7,439
Plus: Non-controlling interests RS (EREFRER®F
(33% share of net WA 2 IEIE i e F & = 2 33%)
assets in&E E il ¥and
non-controlling interests
in the subsidiaryE & i##)¥) 1,138
Less: Provisional fair value of BT BRI B FEECEE AT E
identifiable net assets
acquired (3,201)
Goodwill kS 5376
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued)

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase of
subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued)
(iv) (Continued)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition

W g (42
A) R=ZB-—=FZBREHWBXA

s K (E)

(iv) (&)

HWEmEL 2RSSR F

L
HK$'000
FHT
Bank balances and Fri g 2 SRITHE IR
cash acquired 14,898
Cash consideration paid Xt zReRE (7,439)
7,459

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

During the year, there is no material impact to the result
for the Group for the additional business generated by
BEE ¥ No material revenue for the year ended March
31, 2013 was contributed by BB ¥,

If the above acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2013
had been completed on April 1, 2012, total group revenue and
profit for the year would have been HK$21,280,510,000 and
HK$2,078,668,000 respectively. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of the operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had above acquisition been
completed on April 1, 2012, nor is it intended to be projection
of future results.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued) a1, WIBEK(E
(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase of B) R-ZZE—C-—FFZEBWE—FRHE
a subsidiary in 2012 NG5

On June 11, 2011, a subsidiary of the Group entered into RZE——FXA+—HB KEE—FK
WEBARE —EBLE=FHIL—H
WHEHE BUHASBZREARKE
65,700,0007T (%780,123,00077T) U il
LIERLIRO0%,2 I # o ;R IEUUE R —
T——FNA=THFEKR RER  LIEE
TR ERI B E R - LIRS

an acquisition agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Group acquired 90% equity interest of
T ZEELIR at a consideration of RMB65,700,000 (approximately
HK$80,123,000). The acquisition was completed on June 30,
2011, on that date the control in EE LR was passed to the
Group. EFELIR is principally engaged in trading of LPG.

HEEERIAMRES -
Consideration transferred BEZEAE
HK$'000
FET
Cash Be 80,123

AEBRKBERERZEERAR

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition recognised by
the Group:

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount and

fair value before
combination

BB

REBtRTZ

REHERATE

HK$'000

FHT

Property, plant and equipment S EN N 14,965
Prepaid lease payments AR E KA 21,336
Inventories FE 1,994
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEUER 3R N HoAb E UL BRI 8,785
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRE 8,999
Trade and other payables B SRR R EMEIRIE (15,164)
Taxation 18 (26)
40,889

Non-controlling interests SRR (4,089)
Goodwill [EkS 43,323
80,123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 ZE - E—=F=FA=1+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued) 41, WIBEK(E
(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase of (B) RZE—Z—FFEBWE —XHEB
a subsidiary in 2012 (Continued) NEWEBEK(E)
The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts of the RWEB  FTEZZEZRIET R
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to HK$S, 785,000 HiEWREE A FTERE BT L
at the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of 8,785,000/ 7T o AU A ¥ T8 HAfE %
the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is nil. WEEHRERZHEGETAS -
Goodwill arising on acquisition FHWEmELZBHE
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration transferred EEERE 80,123
Plus: Non-controlling interests RS (BEERREER
(10% share of net TRH B A B2 IEE R R
assets in LEALIR and FEEZ10%)
non-controlling interests
in the subsidiaries of FE8EIR) 4,089
Less: Fair value of identifiable W FTEE R RFEE 2 A FE
net assets acquired (40,889)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W i 2 A 2 PR 43,323
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of I 4E8 was attributed W EERERMEE CHE AR
to the anticipated profitability of its LPG business. HEREARRER 2 TBEATREES -
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was expected TEHA R IEWEmE £ 2 mEA
to be deductible for tax purposes. HREFIIR ©
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition HUK BT EEZ BT FE
HK$'000
FAET
Bank balances and cash acquired FriiE 2 iR1TEE R RIR© (8,999)
Cash consideration paid Xz ReRE 80,123
71,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

41. Acquisition of Businesses (Continued) a1, WEEEK(Z

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase of B) R-ZE—C-—FEBWE—FRHE
a subsidiary in 2012 (Continued) NEWEBE(E)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Wi KR EFEECZE
Group
Included in the Group'’s profit for the year ended March 31, REBHEE-_TE——F=A=+—8H
2012 was HK$7,588,000 attributable to the additional business LEFEZNBEEBREERRZ
generated by EZEEEIR. Revenue included in the Group's FEINETS 2 7,588,0008 7T © 5t AKE
revenue for the year ended March 31, 2012 amounted to BEHEZ T —F=ZA=1+—HItF
HK$241,768,000. WA Z A F241,768,0007 7T ©
If the above acquisition during the year ended March 31, 2012 Wb E—_E——F=A=+—
had been completed on April 1, 20711, total group revenue and ArtFEEz7WEEFEHEIN T ——
profit for the year would have been HK$19,019,438,000 and FMA—HRZEK FRZEBELUWA
HK$1,144,001,000 respectively. The pro forma information is K& R #& 9 Bl A19,019,438,0004 7T
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication 1,144,001,000% 7T o # & & & &
of revenue and results of the operations of the Group that HERAE - BARM AW ERIE EEY
actually would have been achieved had above acquisition been PR-ZE——FEMA—BRERBEARE
completed on April 1, 2011, nor is it intended to be projection BERERES I WAREEEE ZIE
of future results. & D ERERRRER TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV RRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 & Z =

42. Disposal of Subsidiaries

E-—=ZF=ZHA=+—HLFE

HEREQR

(i)  During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Group has partially (i)
disposed of 41% equity interest of /8 ¥ as held by the Group
to BN FH, an associate of the Group at a consideration of
HK$6,588,000. Since then, 8 #TI& ceased to be a subsidiary

of the Group and became an associate.

i_;—*iiﬂiﬂ——lﬂﬂ:i
B AEBEMAREEEERBAEMNFR
A HEREERFA 2 DEHE41%

B S w25
Pl

K {8 56,588,000/ TT °
ﬁﬂf%ﬁlﬁ$ﬁ%$%w%@

Al A AEE QT

HK$'000
FHET
NET ASSETS OF #/8#& SHEDBHEZFEE
DISPOSED OF
Property, plant and equipment W - BB &G 1,959
Prepaid lease payments AR ERIA 741
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE U BR 3k I E A FE MU BR TE 1,533
Prepayments AT RIR 1,076
Inventories FE 15
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR IS 10,290
Trade and other payables B 5 M BRI H A BRI (4,783)
Advance from customers REEF E’J@m (598)
Amounts due to group companies JER&EBREFIA (70)
Net assets disposed of & FEE 10,163
Net assets disposed of Tt &EF&E 10,163
Non-controlling interests SRR (3,557)
6,606
Interests in associate at fair value B HERRE 2 A FEFTERBE 5 2
on initial recognition (2,439)
Gain on disposal e 2,421
6,588
SATISFIED BY: TEHAR:
Cash received by the Group AEEBUIRES 6,588
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING HEMELEZREREFE
ON DISPOSAL
Cash received by the Group AEEDUBERE 6,588
Bank balances and cash disposed of P& 2 IRITHEB MRS (10,290)
(3,702)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

42. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the shareholders’
meeting of /8 HEERIZRER A A EEHA’) held on
November 25, 2011, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with a PRC third party, to dispose of the entire equity
interest held by the Group in f@MNA R XRRER AT at a
consideration of RMB2,000,000 (approximately HK$2,439,000).
The disposal was completed on December 8, 2011. The net
assets of HHEE Y at the date of disposal were as follows:

2. HEMBAR(E)

(i) WELSPHERZERERAB( E
HHRH DR ZE——F+—A=+H
AERzZREEZ LRB Y LTEAE
ROAEEHEFRE=FTL—HRK
meEERE - URE ARK2,000,000
TC(#12,439,000% 7T ) H&E A EE s
BINF R MR AR AR Z 2K
AR - ZEHEER 2 ——F+
ZANBERK - RHEEBH - PHE
HZFEEWMT

HK$'000
FHET
NET ASSETS OF Hif#5 Y% BHEFHEXZFEE
DISPOSED OF
Property, plant and equipment W - BB KB 2,604
Prepaid lease payment AR ERIE 1,032
Inventories Ea=y 735
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE MR 3k I E A FE U BR TE 370
Trade and other payables B 5 ME IR F R oAb FE TR IR (3,731)
1,010
Non-controlling interest B (606)
Gain on disposal HE ke 2,035
2,439
SATISFIED BY XHFR:
Cash consideration received by the Group ZAEBDUWIESHRE 2,439
NET CASH INFLOW ARISING HEMEEZ2RERAFER
ON DISPOSAL
Cash consideration received YRS RE 2,439

43. Deemed Disposal of a Subsidiary

On April 8, 2011, Zhongyu Gas entered into a placing agreement with
the placing agent, pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place
up to 394,000,000 new shares of Zhongyu Gas at a price of HK$0.41
per placing share and the placing was completed on April 18, 2011.
As aresult of the placing, the Group’s effective interest in Zhongyu Gas
was reduced from approximately 56.33% to approximately 46.96%.
The Group is no longer in a position to exercise control and instead has
significant influence over Zhongyu Gas. The fair value of the Group’s
interest in Zhongyu Gas of HK$867,309,000 as at April 18, 2011,
determined based on quoted market price of Zhongyu Gas at the same
date, has been regarded as cost of the interest in associate from the
date on which the Group ceased to have control, and incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The net assets of Zhongyu Gas at the date of disposal
were as follows:

43. WHRB/HEHRE LT

RZE——FMHANE AR ERE
REITUREE R BEZHE BER
BEEAGREERKH04IBIEERSE
394,000,000 P M R B ZEEEE R
—T——FMA+N\BEK - EEHAE
ERFHIRNER#E RS B £56.383% 8 E
#146.96% - AEBEH R BRMRTHITHEE
FlEMEHEBEAVE RN ——FNW
A+N\B  AEBERFHRRRER 2 ATE
867,309,000 T I ERFHRRIRE B 2
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

43. Deemed Disposal of a Subsidiary (Continued) 43. HRAHEMB AR (E)

HK$'000
FAT
NET ASSETS OF ZHONGYU EHEFHRRRZFEE
GAS DISPOSED OF
Investment property EME 6,245
Property, plant and equipment L E N Y 1,187,993
Goodwill [EES 577,947
Prepaid lease payments TR ERE 117,362
Avallable-for-sale investments AEHERE 3,026
Other intangible assets HEimpaE 148,105
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEmZE - BMERRE2IES
plant and equipment 180,874
Inventories FE 61,771
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEUER S N H A U BR TR 115,497
Amounts due from customers for contract works  EEF 2 &4 TIRFIA 19,165
Pledged bank deposits BRI TR 13,979
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIIRE 253,781
Trade and other payables E%EHEE%K&EMEHEEIE (477,246)
Amounts due to customer for contract works ERER ZE\?'JI*” a (20,303)
Amount due to group company AN ESEIVNGIES (146,580)
Taxation payable JER 1 (12,811)
Bank borrowings RITEE (671,982)
Deferred taxation EERIR (16,179)
Net assets disposed of FriiEF&EE 1,340,644
Net assets disposed of & FEE (1,340,644)
Non-controlling interests B fof b 418,159
(927,485)
Interests in associate at fair value B HERSE 2 AFEETE
of initial recognition AN R 2R 867,309
Loss on deemed disposal REBLEZEE (60,176)
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING ON DISPOSAL HEHEmMEEZR SR EE
Bank balances and cash disposed of b ERITEMH LIRS 253,781
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

44. Operating Lease Arrangements 44, BREBRNVZH
The Group as lessee AEBIERAEBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RI|EER > REBREE N HBERZ
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating THEMERBEZ TR RS LR L mEE
leases in respect of rented premises and equipment which fall due BN RR L 2 HIEBESOT -
as follows:
2013 2012
—E-—=fF —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 62,890 35,021
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF(BEEEMT) 62,600 43,952
After five years hFE 70,425 36,019
195,915 114,992
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group in LEMH 2 HEREERHEHE L RETF
respect of leasehold land and buildings and equipment. Leases for REBEMNZHES  HEWERKREHROK
rented premises and equipment are negotiated for an average term EEFHAERENE  #HEEE -

of two to six years with fixed rental.

The Group as lessor AEBEEREHBEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with MREREHIR » RBIEE ™5 I8 fEm 2 T 0] &
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments under non- HHEEYELEHY  AEBSHBERHIA
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall TARFKEHEESETAX -

due as follows:

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within one vyear —FR 6,409 7,334
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRF(BEERNSF) 4,940 10,489
After five years hFE 730 63
12,079 17,886

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two to ten years with MOz FHFRLETEMFE+F - B

fixed rentals. S EE -
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

45, Capital Commitments 45, BAEIE

The Group has entered into the following transactions, which have not
been completed at the end of the reporting period nor at the date these
consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance.

As at March 31, 2013, the Group has capital commitments in respect
of the acquisition for property, plant and equipment and construction
materials for property, plant and equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial statements amounting to
HK$107,821,000 (2012: HK$173,183,000) and HK$13,009,000
(2012 HK$42,337,000) respectively.

On December 16, 2012, the Group has entered into an acquisition
agreement with Fortune Oil PRC Holdings Limited (“Fortune Oil") and
Wilmar International Limited (“Wilmar International”), pursuant to which the
Group will acquire entire issued share capital of Fortune Gas Investment
Holdings limited (“Fortune Gas”), at consideration US$400,000,000
(approximately HK$3,120,000,000) (“Acquisition”). Fortune Oil is an
investment holding company which holds 85% issued share capital of
Fortune Gas. Each of Mr. Liu (the Managing Director of the Company)
and Fortune Oil owns 50% interest in the total issued share capital
of China Gas Group Limited ("CGGL"). CGGL owns 419,478,000
shares, representing approximately 9.18% of the total issued share
capital of the Company. In addition, Mr. Liu had been involved in the
discussions with Fortune Oil in respect of the Acquisition. As such,
Fortune Oil is considered as a connected person of the Company
with respect to the Acquisition pursuant to Rule 4A.11(4)(a) of the
Listing Rules and the Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is
subject to the independent shareholders’ approval and the reporting
and announcement requirements thereunder. Wilmar International is an
investment holding which holds 156% issued share capital of Fortune
Gas and its controlling shareholders are independent third parties of
the Company. Subsidiaries of Fortune Gas are engaged in the business
of natural gas, wholesale and retail distributions, natural gas refuelling,
upstream coal bed methane business, liquefied natural gas supply to
public transit vehicles and developing liquefied natural gas dual fuel
vessel refuelling business along the Yangtze River. The transaction was
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company in the
special general meeting on February 8, 2013. The transaction is also
subject to the substantive approvals by Anti-Monopoly Bureau of the
Ministry of Commerce of the PRC. As at March 31, 2013, no deposit
was paid and the transaction has not been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

46.

47.

Pledge of Assets

The Group pledged certain non-current and current assets and equity
interests over certain subsidiaries to banks to secure loan faciliies
granted to the Group. Carrying amount of the non-current and current
assets pledged to banks to secure loan facilities granted to the Group
is as follows:

46. EEEH

AEEBNETHEBAR ZETIERB LR
BEERBRERRTRT  (FAKEERZ
EXMEZER - EERTRITERLEE
ERZEFRMERRZIFRDEABDEER
EEWT :

2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Long-term loan facilities REEREE
Investment properties "EYE 54,000 42 350
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB MR 259,282 282,593
Prepaid lease payments AR ERIE 16,123 17,349
Short-term loan facilities EHERRE
Inventories FE 153,750 -
Trade receivables 5 REIERR 25,994 31,056
Pledged bank deposits BRI R 650,711 710,459
1,159,860 1,083,807

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group has joined a MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
rate specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect
of the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years at March 31, 2013 and 2012.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are covered by
the retirement and pension schemes defined by local practice and
regulations. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific
percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement and pension
schemes. The only obligation of the Group in respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the specified contribution.

The calculation of contributions for PRC eligible staff is based on
certain percentage of the applicable payroll costs. The contribution to
the MPF Scheme is calculated based on the rules set out in the MPF
Ordinance which is 5% on the basic salary of the relevant employee
subject to a specific ceiling.

47. BIRBRIEHE

REBMAMBEARELMABTESHE -8
ST 2 TR AR BIERFESEG) - MR 5
MRAFEEHEEERIM  wESHEZE
ERASEZEESRABBATHEBIZTA
B REBESHBE 2R BEXRES
AR AIEE 2 R Mt B o A%
Bstoatt Lt 82— RERKKE 2R
KER - RZB—=FR-_F—=-—F=A=
+—H - WELBER A BRI R R EF B
(S

AEEBRANMNEBERARZEEZMITED KR
EREZBIRFRKR 25 BIRIE - KB QA
BEERARERSFERRETERAZE
JE B D AR R - RE B LR RE ARG S
ZBEERERREMHRRK -

BREERBETHNIIRIBER TERLRS
TEOLE - HRBESHE 2 HHTIRE
SREEERGIAIARANGE  NERREER
¥ Z 5% E LR
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZE —E—=F=A=+—HIEFE

48. Share Option Scheme and Share-based 48. BRI ESTEIR R XA

Payments

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant to a
resolution passed on February 6, 2003 (the “Scheme”) for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to any directors of the Company, any
employees of the Group, or any employee, partner or director of any
business consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser or legal
adviser of the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of shareholders’ approval of the
Scheme (“Scheme Mandate Limit") or, if such 10% limit is refreshed,
at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme
Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
total number of shares of the Company In issue from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company then in issue. Each grant of options to any
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder must be approved
by independent non-executive directors. Where any grant of options
to substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
or any of their respective associate would result in the shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already
granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued
share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-
month period up to the date of grant must be approved in advance
by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$10 per each grant. Options may be
exercised at any time from the date to be determined by the board
of directors to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant and
(i) the nominal value of a share.

The life of the Scheme is effective for 10 years from the date of
adoption until February 5, 2013. The unexercised options granted
under the Scheme are exercisable up to the end of its respective
exercisable period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

48. Share Option Scheme and Share-based
Payments (Continued)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s share options

held by employees (including directors) and movements in such
holdings during the two years ended March 31, 2013:

(&

48. BRETERUR G E XA

TR R B (@I58 %) i3 A~ 2 M
R RBE T SF=A=+— AW
EF AR 2 SR -

Number Number Number
Exercise of share Transfer ~ Forfeited ofshare  Transfer  Exercised  Forfeited  of share
price  options at during during  options at during during during ~ options at
Date of grant  Vesting period Exercisable period per share 4.1.2011 the year theyear 3312012  theyear  theyear  theyear  3.31.2013
HZ%--F HZ%-2f H-g-zf
BE-AzZ =B=+-R Zh=1-H
etz #EE TEHR ERAEE RRERE  FR2ER  EACRM ZBREME  EROER  EREGE  EAERY ZBREHA
HKS (Note ] (Note 6) Noted)  (Noted  [Note)
A (o) (Hzt6) (W) (as) (ki)
Held by Directors
HEZHA
19.2004 1.9.2004 0 8.30.2004 91,2004 0 18,2014 080 9000000 (5,000,000) - 4000000 5000000 (5,000,000) - 4,000,000
1.9.200428,30.2004 9.1. 2004182014
10.6.2004 Note 1) (Note 1) 071130000000 {130,000,000) - - 130,000,000 (130,000,000 - -
(W) (hizt1)
10.202006 1020200510 10192010 10.20.20100 10.19.2015 150 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
10.20.2005210.19.2010 10.202010210.19.2015
8.23.2007 8.23.2007 0 9.18.2008 9.19.2008 10 822.2017 23 3000000 - - 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
8.23.2001%9.18.2008 9.19.200828.22.2017
8.3.2009 Note 4) (Note 4) 210 100,000,000 {100,000,000) - - 100,000,000 - - 100,000,000
(k) (higka)
8.3.2009 83.2009082.2011 83.2011 10822014 210 23,000,000 - - 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000
8320092822011 8320112822014
9.17.2009 9.17.2009 10 9.16.2012 9.17.201210 9.16.2014 260 2,000000 - - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
9.17.200929.16.2012 9.17.201229.16.2014
213,000,000 (235,000,000) - 36,000,000 285,000,000 {135,000,000) - 138,000,000
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 & Z =
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48. Share Option Scheme and Share-based

48. B ETE R AR M XK

Payments (Continued) (&)
Number Number Number
Exercise of share Transfer ~ Forfeited ofshare  Transfer  Exercised  Forfeited  of share
price  options at during during  options at during during during  options at
Date of grant  Vesting period Exercisable period per share 412011 the year theyear  331.2012  theyear  theyear  theyear  3.31.2013
HZ%--F w2 H-g-z=f
BE-A2 =B=1-H Zh=1-H
RHA% ik TEER SRARE RREEE  FR2ER  EACRM ZBREME  ERDER  EREGE  ERERY ZBREHA
HKS Note 5) (Note ) Noted)  MNoled  MNote)
£ (Hsto) (o) (W) k) (st6)
Held by Others
REBARE
192004 1.9.2004 0 8.30.2004 9.1.20040 18,2014 080 2910000 5,000,000 - 7910000 (5000000 {1,000,000) - 1910000
1.9.2004%8.30.2004 9120042182014
106.2004 [Note 1) (Note 1) 071 - 130,000,000 - 130,000,000 {130,000,000) - - -
(K1) (K1)
10.6.2004 1062004 10 8.19.2005 320200610 105.2014 071 34000000 - (300,000) 33,700,000 - (100,000) - 33,600,000
Note 2)
10.6.20043,19.2005 3202006%105.2014
(k)
10.20.2000 1020.200610 10192010 10.20201010 10.19.2015 150 124,000,000 - [6,200000) 118800,000 - [11,500000) - 107,300,000
10.20.2005%10.19.2010 10.202010£10.19.2015
1.21.2008 121200610 126.2011 121201210 1262016 152 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000 - (6500,000) - -
127, 20061 262011 1.27.201021.26.2016
8.3.2009 (Note 4 (Note 4] 210 100,000,000 100,000,000 - 200,000,000 {100,000,000) - - 100,000,000
(F ) ()
8.3.2009 83200910 82.2011 8320110822014 210 53304000 - [6090000) 47,304,000 - (312400000 (360,000) 15,714,000
8320092822011 8320112822014
9.17.2009 9.17.2009 10 10.13.2009 1014200910 9.16.2014 260 1,600000 - (500,000) 1,000,000 - - [o00,000) 500,000
9.17.2009%10.13.2009 10.14.200929.16.2014
9.17.2009 9.17.20090 9.16.2012 9.17.2012109.16.2014 260 3000000 - (500,000) 2,500,000 - (1330,000)  (500000) 670,000
9.17.2009%9.16.2012 9.17.201229.16.2014
36304000 235000000 (12590,000) 547,714,000 (286,000,000 (51,670,000)  (1,360,000) 259,694,000
598,304,000 - (12590,000) 685,714,000 - (186,670,000)  (1,360,000) 397,694,000
Welghted average exercise prce HKS1.50 A HKS1.89 HKS1.50 NA - HKS10E  HKR247  HKS1AD
ETHRE 15687 TR 1AL mET TER BT aEm 180ERm
Exercisale &t the end of the year 316,910,000 333,910,000 197,694,000

TRERSTE
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48. Sha

re Option Scheme and Share-based

Payments (Continued)

Notes:

Q)

The exercise of the options will be subject to the condition that the
consolidated net asset value of the Company and its subsidiaries
which shall be certified by the auditors appointed by the Company
as at the date of the exercise of the options being not less than
HK$1 billion. Exercisable period is between November 22, 2004 to
October 5, 2014.

The original exercisable period was July 1, 2005 to October 5, 2014.
Pursuant to a resolution passed in the board of directors meeting
held on March 20, 2005, the exercisable period is changed to the
period from March 20, 2005 to October 5, 2014.

During the year ended March 31, 2013, weighted average share
price on exercise dates and the weighted average price immediately
before exercise dates are HK$4.23 per share.

The exercise of option will be subject to the condition that the annual
consolidated profit after taxation of the Company and its subsidiaries
which shall be certified by the auditors appointed by the Company
as at the date of the exercise of the options being not less than
HK$1.5 billion. Exercisable period is between August 3, 2009 to
August 2, 2019.

The options transferred related to removal and re-appointment
of a director, Mr. Liu Ming Hui, on April 2011 and August 2012
respectively, who received the options in his capacity as a director
before the removal as director.

The options were forfeited upon resignation of the employees

48. BRETERUR G F XA

(%)
G

M
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48.

49.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 & Z =

E-—=ZF=ZHA=+—HLFE

Share Option Scheme and Share-based
Payments (Continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, fair value of
share options granted to employees determined at the date of grant is
expensed over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to
the Group’s employee share-based compensation reserve. In the current
year, an amount of share-based payment expenses in respect of its
share options of approximately HK$4,919,000 (2012: HK$19,405,000)
has been recognised with a corresponding adjustment recognised in
the Group’s employee share-based compensation reserve.

The options outstanding as at March 31, 2013 have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2 years (2012: 3 years).

Related Party Transactions

Apart from the amounts due from/to related parties and transactions as
disclosed in notes 26, 29, 33 and 35 respectively, the Group entered
into the following transactions which do not constitute as connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, with major related parties that
are not members of the Group:

() During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Group purchased gas
for total amount of HK$537,864,000 (2012: HK$121,997,000)
from a shareholder of a jointly controlled entity and non-
controlling interests with significant influence over the the relevant
subsidiaries.

(ii) During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Group paid rental
expense to a shareholder of a jointly controlled entity in respect
of leasehold land and buildings for total of HK$17,421,000
(2012: HK$14,3383,000).

(i)~ During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Group received
interest income for total amount of HK$17,117,000 (2012:
HK$14,570,000) from an associate.

(v)  During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Group paid
construction fee which are recorded as cost of property, plant
and equipment in the consolidated statement of financial position
for total amount of HK$15,835,000 (2012: HK$58,487,000) to
an associate.
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48. B ETE R AR M XK

49.

(&

RERE BB EERIFE5R ARHDE R
M) RAELAHEBEER TIEE 2 BRE
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BzBROERBIEEELBERAR - XK
FE - BREBREZ ARDE A RE L
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B REBEEEE QBRI F B
AMEB17,1170008 T( & — =
114,670,000 7T) °

(iv) 2T —=F=—A=+—HLF
E - AEEBEM ﬁ%%“?iﬁﬂi,\
& $£15,8350008 (&2 ——F :

58,487,000 7T ) Eﬁé#%éﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
FKINAEDE  BEREEZKA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV IRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

49. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

9. BEAXLRZ(E)

The remuneration of key management of the Group was as follows: AEETEEREZMET -
2013 2012
—F-= —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short-term benefits 2 BRtE A 44,349 14,515
Post employment benefits BB 2 1R 53 60
Share-based payments AR e 3K 349 4,820
44,751 19,395

Apart from the emoluments payable to a member of senior
management of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2013 as
included above, during the year ended March 31, 2013, that senior
management received HK$16,907,000 and HK$8,917,000 as the
bonus payments for the financial years ended March 31, 2010 and
20171 respectively in accordance with the terms of his employment
contract with the Company as detailed in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration of key management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

BREXBEEE—_Z-—=F=ZA=+—H1
FEZEN—ZAEESLEEEREMH S
G REBE_E-—ZFZA=+—HBIF
B ZeaREREERBEERARRZERE
WRRRBE_T—ZTFER-_T——F=A
=+ — B 1B R FE U EN6,907,0007 7T K&
8,917,000/8 L2 fE4L » FEIBEHNIRA I KR
RKIWFE2 ©

ITZEHEMeATHEREELERBAR
BETISBBEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZE —E—=F=A=+—HIEFE

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries 50. T EMB L EIFE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBATHENT :

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
i FEEEa
ditfh,/ £BR HRBEA A/
HWEAREE EEBY B RE/EMER EREELH IBER
2013 2012
2= —E-Cf%
% %
Hai Xia Finance Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100 100%  Securities investment
HK$2
BREBERRA Eh i Lak BHRE
0BT
lwal's Holdings (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding,
Limited HK$1,000 property investment
Non-voting - - and provision of
deferred shares management services
HK$1,000,000 to group companies
(Note 1)
A iz LER RERR  NERE
1,000 7 REREERRET
BRFERT LN
Rt
1,000,000/
ial
Wellgem Asia Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100 100  Property development
HK$10,000
BETNERAA Eh i Lak NEER
10,0008
TRRREZ(RINERAR PR Wholy-foreign Registered 100° 100 Investment holding
Zhongran Gas (Shenzhen) owned US$29,800,000 and treasury
Company Limited* enterprises
("WFOE")
ik WEBERE HMER RABRREIE
(IEBELE])  29,800,000%7T
PR EBRAT PRC WFOE Registered 100¢ 100t Investment holding
USD250,000,000 and treasury
Gk NEBERE AR REBRRAE

250,000,000% 7
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries 50. X EMBLARFERE(E)
(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBARGFIEWOT ¢

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
A [iiEcamh g
ditfh,/ E3 8 S HRBEA BA/
WEAREH EEBY B RE/EMER EREELH IBER
2013 2012
2= —F-Cf%
% %
ERRRAREREMERAR  PRC Shno-foreign Registered 60 60%  Sales of natural
Beiing Znhongran Xiangke equity joint RMB20,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Qil Gas Technology venture construction
Company Limited*
Gkt POEERE FMER AARHE RIAR
AEH EERE
20,000,0007T
Elegant Cheer Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 1007 100" Property holding
HK$10,000
BHERAT 3 Bz LR BENE
10,0007
REPMEERRAR PRC WFOE Registered 100% 100%  Investment holding
Wuhan China Natural Gas RMB69,980,000
Investment Company Limited*
Gkt IEBERE FMER RERR
AEE
69,980,0007T
wEPATREERBRAF  PRC Sho-foreign Registered 80% 80%  Sales of natural gas
Yiyang Central Gas & City Gas equity joint RMB44,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
k! MR ERE FMER AARHE IR
N EERE
44,000,0007T
BREPMRTERERAA PRC Sino-foreign Registered 907 90%  Sales of natural gas
Wuhu City Natural Gas equity joint RMB100,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Company venture construction
Limited*
i e ERE HMER AAREE IR
AEH EBRE
100,000,0007T
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

50. FEMB L AFHE(E)

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBRRFBAT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
Bt FEEEa
WM,/ E3 8 HRBEA Ba /i
HWEAREH EEBY BRA RE/EMER EREELH IBER
2013 2012
—Z-=f =—3-Z%
% %

LR EIREER AT PRC Limited Registered 80% 80%  Sales of natural gas
liability RMB2,000,000 and gas pipeline
company construction

e BREEAT HMER AARBERRE
AR EERE
2,000,0007T

BRI AR AR PRC Limited Registered 70 70%  Sales of natural gas
liability RMB1,000,000 and gas pipeline
company construction

i BREEAT HMER AARHERAR
AEE EERE
1,000,0007C

EHmAREREMEAERAT PRC Limited Registered 80 80%  Sales of natural gas
liability RMB1,185,000 and gas pipeline
company construction

k! BREHEAH FHER AARHE IR
AEH EERE
1,185,0007C

HEPMATRRERBRAF  PRC Limited Registered 70 70%  Sales of natural gas

Yichang Zhongran City Gas ligbility RMBT70,000,000 and gas pipeline

Development Limited* company construction
M BRELAH HMER AARHE RIRR
ARE EERE
70,000,0007T

140 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED Bl %A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B Z —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

50. FEMB L AFHEE)

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEWBRRFBNAT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
R FREga
Wit/ £BR HREEA R/
i PNGES EEBY B RE/EMER EREELS TTER
2013 2012
2§ Z%-C
% %

ERRRIRMRER AT PRC Limited Registered 95" 95" Sales of natural gas
liability RMB46,000,000 and gas pipeline
company construction

HE BRELAT HMER AARBEERIRR
ARH BERE
46,000,0007T

Clever Decision Enterprises BVI Incorporated Ordinary 100 100%  Investment

Limited US$100 holding
EERAHE B Liak RERR
100%7T
ERPIRBER R PRC WFOE Registered 100 100%  Investment holding
BRAT RVB20,000,000
HE IEBELE HMER RERR
AR
20,000,0007T
EETIRETRRERERAR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
Huainan China Gas City Gas equity joint RMB72,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HE mOMEERE HMER AARBEERRR
ARH BERE
72,000,0007T
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries 50. X EMBLARFERE(E)
(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRRFEOT :

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
R FREga
Wit/ ¥BR HRERA R,/
iofE PNGES EEBY B RE/EMER EREELH TEER
2013 2012
2§ Z%-C
% %
SEPRATRRAR A PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100% 100%  Seles of natural
equity joint RMB3,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
venture construction
e mMEERE HMER AARBEERRR
ARH BERE
3,000,0007T
BRI EEERAR  PRO Sino-foreign Registered 100# 100%  Sales of natural
Suizhou Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB35,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
i POEERE HMER AARHERAR
AEE EERE
36,000,0007T
ZRAMAARBRAR PRC Shno-foreign Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
Xiaogan China Gas Co., Ltd.* equity joint RMB118,950,000 gas and gas pipeline
venture construction
i mMRERE FMER AARHE RIAR
N EERE
118,950,0007C
ZRATHATRARRERARA  PRC Shno-foreign Registered 100 100%  Sales of natural
Xiaogan (Zhongya) China Gas equity joint RMB16,002,000 gas and gas pipeline
Co., Ltd.* venture construction
M mMRERE HMER AARHE IR
AEE EERE
16,002,0007C
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50. FEMB L AFHEE)

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

TEMBRRFBNAT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
Y FEEEh
i,/ E3% HREEA R/
HWEARBHE EEHY B A/ EREA EREELH TEER
2013 2012
% %
BRI ERERAR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100# 100%  Sales of natural
Hanchuan Jchina Gas Co., Ltd.* equity joint RMB11,274,000 gas and gas pipeline
venture construction
HE mMEERE HMER AARHE IR
N BERE
11,274,0007C
Z2RIRETIRREREMRAR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100# 100%  Sales of natural
Yunmeng China Gas Co., Ltd.* equity joint RMB9, 708,000 gas and gas pipeline
venture construction
HE PMEERE HMER AARBERRE
ARH BERE
9,708,0007T
ERRRATRREREBRAR  PRC Shno-foreign Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
Yingcheng Jiaxu China Gas equity joint RMB10,074,000 gas and gas pipeline
Co., Lid.* venture construction
i POEERE HMER AARHERAR
AEE EERE
10,074,0007C
EGRRRARBRAT PRC WFOE Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
Danyyang Zhongran Gas HK$20,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Co., Lid.* construction
k! IEBELE FHER AARHE IR
20,000,0007T BERE
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

50. FEMB L AFHE(E)

TEMBRRFBAT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
Y FEEEs
i,/ E3 % HREEA R/
i NGRS EEBY B A/ EREA EREELS TEER
2013 2012
% %
Wik mRRERERAR  PRC WFOE Registered 100# 100%  Sales of natural
Pizhou Zhongran City Gas US$3,060,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
HE NEBELE Balg-v AARHERIRR
3,060,000 7T BERE
EMFRATRRERERAR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered 75 75%  Sales of natural
Suzhou Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB40,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HE mMaERE Balg-v AAREERIRR
AR %40,000,0007 BERE
BNERATREREERAR  PRC WFOE Registered 100% 100 Sales of natural
Cangzhou Znongran City Gas HK$2,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
HE NEBELE Balg-v AAREERIRR
2,000,000 7T BERE
ERSEPRATMAEEERAF PRO WFOE Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
Nanpixian Zhongran City Gas HK$10,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
HE NEBELE HMER AARHERIRR
10,000,000 7T BERE
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50. FEMB L AFHEE)

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEWBRRFBNAT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
NG|
R FRE8a
i,/ EBR HREEA %/
WEL AR EEHY B RE/EMER EREELH TEER
2013 2012
“F-=f %=
% %
BERGPIMATMRERARAR PRC Sho-foreign Registered 100% 100 Sales of natural
Wuhuxian Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB10,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
e e ERE BalE-v AAREERIRE
AEH BERE
10,000,0007C
PRI TR ERERAR  PRC WFOE Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
Qinzhou Znongran City Gas RMB20,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
ikt IEBERE HMER AARBEERRE
AREB BERE
20,000,0007T
BRRATREERBRAF  PRC WFOE Registered 100 100%  Sales of natural
Yangzhong Znongran City Gas US$1,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
k! IEBERE FMER AARHE IR
1,000,000% 7 BERE
AERRETRREREBRAR  PRC WFOE Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
Tianmen Znongran City Gas HK$9,450,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
k! IEBERE FMER AARHE IR
9,450,000/ BERE
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50. FEMB L AFHE(E)

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

TEMBRRFBAT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
NG|
KL FRE8a
i,/ E38 HREEA R/
WEL AR EEHY B RE/EMER EREELS TEER
2013 2012
“E-=f %=
% %
BERRETREREEBRAR  PRO Shno-foreign Registered B4 64%  Sales of natural
Baoji Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB265,725,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd. venture construction
e mMEERE Baig-v AARSEERIRE
AEH BERE
265,725,0007T
ARPRETREERERAR  PRO Sino-foreign Registered 100% 100 Sales of natural
Nanjing Zhongran Clty Gas equity joint RMB200,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
i POMEELE HMER RAREERRE
ARB EERE
200,000,0007T
TP TREERBRAF  PRC Shno-foreign Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
Yulin Znongran City Gas equity joint RMB20,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
ikt POEERE HMER AARHERAR
N EERE
20,000,0007T
EEPARARBRAR PRC WFOE Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
RMB50,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
construction
k! IEBELE HMER AARHE RIRR
AEH EERE
50,000,0007T
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50. FEMB L AFHEE)

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

TEWBRRFBNAT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
R FREga
Wit/ ¥BR HREEA R/
i PNGES EEBY B RE/EMER EREELH TTER
2013 2012
2§ Z%-C
% %
BIERIRHTRIERERAR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
Fushun Znongran City Gas equity joint RMB133,330,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HE mOMEERE HMER AARBEERIRR
ARH BERE
133,330,0007C
BARRATREEREERAR  PRO Sino-foreign Registered 100% 100 Sales of natural
Wuwei Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB18,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
i POEERE HMER AARHERAR
AEE EERE
18,000,0007C
EEANEBRARERAELF  PRC Shno-foreign Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
equity joint RMB20,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
venture construction
i mORERE FMER AARHE IR
N EERE
20,000,0007T
BENRRERAT PRC Sino-foreign Registered 80% 80%  Sales of natural
equity joint RMB183,800,000 gas and gas pipeline
venture construction
M I HMER AARHE IR
AEH EERE
183,800,0007C
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

50. FEMB L AFHE(E)

TEMBRRFBAT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
R FREga
Wit/ ¥BR HRERA R,/
iofE PNGES EEBY B RE/EMER EREELS TEER
2013 2012
“I-=f %=
% %
BEMRFERARMAEBAE  PRC Sino-foreign Registered 80* 80*  Natural gas refil
equity joint RMB30,000,000 senvices and gas
venture station administration
e mMEERE HMER AARMERBER
ARH MAKER
30,000,0007T
BETHRREETRERAT PRC Sino-foreign Registered 80* 80*  Design, construction
equity joint RMB10,000,000 and maintenance of
venture city pipeline projects
i POEERE HMER BmEEER Y
AEE Rt BERRE
10,000,0007C
Zhongyou Hua Dian PRC Limited Registered 1007 100%  Sales of LPG
liability RMVB300,000,000
company
FRES Gkt BREEAT AR RILRAREE
AEE
300,000,0007T
BiLiiy PRC Limited Registered 100 100%  Investment in
liability RMB500,000,000 petrochemical facllities
company of storage and
transportation,
fundamental facilities
of pier, sales of raw
chemical materials and
construction materials
Gkt BREEAT AR RlcERRERRER
N EREMRBRE  LEMHR
500,000,0007T BEMRIEE
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50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

50. FEMB L AFHEE)

TEWBRRFBNAT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
NG|
TR FRE8a
i,/ EBR HREEA A,/
WEL AR EEHY B RE/EMER EREELS TEER
2013 2012
“F-=f %=
% %
B EREBRAR PRC Limited Registered 100% 100 Sale of inflammable
lighility RMB20,000,000 gas, LPG, inflammable
company liquid and inflammable solid
e BRELAT BalE-v SRR RICRRE
AEH SIRRERSMERHEE
20,000,000
BN RERLR PRC Limited Registered 100% 100%  Refaling and wholesaling
liability RMB3,000,000 of LPG and accessories
company
i BREEAT HMER RILRAER
AR BAZERRE
3,000,0007T
EMESBRRRERAT PRC Limited Registered 65 65%  Manufacturing of highly
liability USD8,000,000 purified LPG, highly
company purified propane and butane
k! BREEAT HMHER BHURIEARR
8,000,000% 7t BELARRT iR
ERTHERERLA PRC Limited Registered 86+ 86%  Storing and trading of
liability USD7,000,000 LPG, sales of chemical
company products, filing of
LPG and delivery of
hazardous products
HE BREAAH HMER RicRBREFREE
7,000,000% 7 E2ERRE  RILABANE
REBmEs
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

50. FEMB L AFHE(E)

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBRRFBAT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
NG|
KL FRE8a
i,/ E38 HREEA R/
WEL AR EEHY B RE/EMER EREELS TEER
2013 2012
“E-=f %=
% %

TE PRC Limited Registered 100%  099.86%  Producing and storing
liability US$8,100,000 LPG and chemical
company product

e BRELAT Baig-v RicRBAR
8,100,000% T tEEREERRE

EFTEERBRERAT PRC Limited Registered 70% 70*  Operation of gas In cities,
liability RMB21,250,000 filing of LPG, delivery
company of hazardous products

and wholesaling and
refaling of chemical products
ikt BREEAT HMER FeRmAR  RILABAME -
AEH fekmiEn Rk
21,250,007 TEERRERTE
China Gas Corporate Services Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100 100%  Nominee and secretarial
Limited HK$2 services
FERRAEREERARA A Bz LR REARHERT
BT
lwai Style Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 1007 100%  Provision of management
Limited HK$2 services to the Group
3 Raiav Lak WAERRHERRE
BT
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50. FEMB L AFHEE)

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEWBRRFBNAT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
N
R FEEEh
R,/ E3% BHRERA BA/
WEARER EEBY B RE/EREA EREELS TEER
2013 2012
—F-=% —%-C
% %

HEER PRC Limited Registered 100% 100%  Shipping delivery
lighility RMB100,000,000 services, technical
company development, providing

consultancy services and
services and agent of delivery
M BREEAT HMER MERT - RiTHE
AR REBRRBER
100,000,0007 ERRBRAE
ERMEORETHRER PRC Limited Registered 100% 100%  Sales of natural
BRAF liabilty RIVIB30,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
company construction
ik BRELAF HHER AARHE IR
N EERE
30,000,0007T

B PRC Limited Ordinary 80% 80*  Sales of natural
liability RMB68,500,000 gas and gas pipeline
company construction

ikt BREEAT TR AARHE IR
N EERE
68,500,0007T

Briliant China BvI Incorporated Ordinary 1007 100" Investment holding

US$50,000
ERRLHE iz TR RERR
50,000% 7T
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50. T EMB L TAFHEE)

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBRRFHBAT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
NG|
Y FEEEh
R,/ E3 % HRERA R/
WEARER EEBY B A/ EREA EREELS TEER
2013 2012
—F-=% %=
% %
Beiing Zhongmin Zhongran PRC Limited Ordinary 1007 100"  Investment holding
Trading Company Limited lighility HK$30,000,000
(Zhongmin Zhongran’) company
IRPRARESERDF i BREAAH Lak RERR
(RS 30,000,000%7
HTABIR PRC Limited Ordinary 1007 100 Sales of natural
liability RMB40,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
company construction
HE BREAAH LRk RARHERMR
AEH EERE
40,000,0007T
HETH PRC Limited Ordinary 100# 80*  Sales of natural
liability RMB15,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
company construction
e BREEAT Lak AARBEERRE
ARH BERE
15,000,0007C
FTRRERBRAR PRC Limited Ordinary 100% 100%  Sales of natural
liability RMB50,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
company construction
i BREEAT Bl RAARBEERRE
AR EERE
50,000,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended March 31, 2013 iZ —E—=F=A=+—HILFE

50. Particular of Principal Subsidiaries 50. X EMBLARFEBE(E)
(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FTEMBRRFEOT :

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/ business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
NG|
Y FEEEh
R,/ E3 % HREEA R/
HWEARER EEBY B A/ EREA EREELS TEER
2013 2012
“T-=f %=
% %

HEEE PRC Limited Registered 1007 100 Sales of natural
liability RMB60,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
company construction

e BREAAH AR RARHERMR
AEH EERE
60,000,0007T

LERR PRC Limited Registered 90* 90*  Sales of LPG
lighility RVB30,000,000
company

e BREEAT HMER RICRBREE
AR
30,000,0007T
* English name is for identification purposes only. * R ABERE -
# The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/registered # RRREFHBHZEHTRA EMHELR

capital/registered capital directly held by the Company.

”“ The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/registered
capital/registered capital indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Note:

(1) The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, practically
carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or
vote at any general meeting of the Company or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the both years.

HEEMEAEBELD

o RRARBAEZEEITRAEMERS
MM EAREELLD -

ERBINEERAYAKEREREEE T
EREBI2ARNREEIEMBAR - EER
R REEMHBARFEEERE/BRN
TR e

(1) BEBROYIFOARERE MERL
I K URER AR B AR R RMEARIAR
RAgBE HEEIINELERER
RIBRE D ZEM DR Z R -

P8 22 R0 A% R 8 4 [ A SR B 30 A AATR

=
BERHES -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HBEE
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLEFE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F ZZ—-F 22— ZZ2-TF —TTHE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FET FET FET
(restated) (restated)
(&71)) (271
Results E
Revenue WA 21,250,266 18,933,565 15,861,880 10,211,959 6,323,823
Profit for the year /NG|
attributable to B AL
owners of the Company FERF 1,764,264 953,926 599,145 824,915 108,679
At 31 March
R=RA=+-—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F —E-—F E——F —Z-FF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FTET TAT FHET
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&51) (&31) (&31) (&3)
Assets and liabilities EERBE
Total assets BEE 35,367,560 31,874,385 30,898,783 22,997,594 18,024,749
Total liabilities BEE (22,530,830) (21,075,395)  (20,636,477) (17,818,078)  (14,042,621)

12,836,730 10,798,990 10,262,306 5,179,616 3,982,128

Equity attributable to the VA/NGIEZ 2SN

owners of the Company FE( R 11,484,640 9,742,213 8,687,204 4,072,301 3,223,270
Minority interests DERRRER 1,352,090 1,056,777 1,575,102 1,107,215 758,858

12,836,730 10,798,990 10,262,306 5,179,616 3,982,128
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

Location

b BE

Type
Al

Group’s interest (%)

AREEE 2 (%)

Lease term

Y

Leasehold land and buildings
HELHMRET

In Hong Kong:
SR

16/F., AXA Centre

No. 1571 Gloucester Road
\Wan Chal

Hong Kong

e

EF

ELITE1615R

RO 1612

In the People’s Republic of China:
AR EARFEME :

RN T B KIES0025%
B4 EI5BEE131E K 1818

ERMmERFIEZ IR

Office premises
MAEYE

Commercial

[GES

Office premises
MAEYE

100

100

100

Long lease

REIEK

Medium term lease

T AT A

Medium term lease

hEIRL
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

Investment properties

REWXE

No. 28-30 Kai Tak Road Vacant land 100 Medium term lease
Kowloon City =E i FRERFRAY

Kowloon

Hong Kong

BE

JLEE

FUEE

B8 28-30%%

Development site located Residential/Commercial 51 Medium term lease
on westemn side of FE ¥ FRHEAFRAY
Gongnong Bing Road

Huimin District

Hohhot City

Inner Mongolia

Autoriomous Region

the PRC

(WHiREY

NER&BRE

W RS R

(IS

ITRERAEERAH
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